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GROUP PROFILE

About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Fountain Set Group”) (Stock Code:
00420.HK)

One of the world’s largest and long-established fabric manufacturers, the Fountain Set Group produces knitted fabric and garments
through vertically integrated operations in fabric knitting, dyeing, printing, finishing and garment manufacturing, for many of the
renowned apparel retailers and brands.

As a strong believer of research and development, we collaborate with brands and suppliers to develop innovative and creative fabric
and garment products to consumers all over the world. Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Fountain Set Group has 7 production facilities in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and representative offices in 4 countries and a global staff force of close to 5,800 strong.

Mr. HA Chung Fong, founder and honorary chairman of the Company remains one of the substantial shareholders of the Company.

To learn more about Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited, please visit www.fshl.com
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEER

HONORARY CHAIRMAN
Mr. HA Chung Fong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Xianfu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 April 2023)

Dr. LI Gang (appointed as executive Director on 1 June 2023)

Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

Ms. ZHAO Jianli
(appointed as executive Director on 1 December 2023)

Mr. ZHANG Zheng

Mr. SUN Fuii (resigned as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 1 April 2023)

Mr. ZHAO Yao (resigned as executive Director, authorised representative and
senior consultant of the Company on 1 December 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)
Mr. TAO Yongming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. CHENG Wai Han Charmaine

REGISTERED OFFICE & PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Block A, 6/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.fshl.com

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.

SOLICITORS

Loong & Yeung

Vivien Chan & Co.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
SHARE REGISTRAR

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
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EXTENSIVE WORLDWIDE NETWORK
SR AIRBRARAS

YANCHENG Biift

TOKYO R &
SHANGHAI L&

HONG KONG &i#
MACAO 3%F9

HO CHI MINH CITY #&BE

JAKARTA ERfNiE

@ HEADQUARTERS ##8
@ PRODUCTION FACILI
@ TRADING OFFICE i}

¥ | .

weapauarters « 8 I Traoinc orrice - ki

HONG KONG &#& CHINA H[E MACAO %P9

houatansst (Holdings/)\l_imited Sales of Dyed Fabrics &7 & Raw Materials Sourcing R EHRRE
Shenzhen Faun Textiles Limited Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
AN BRERAR PE% CRPIBE =R BRAT
Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd.

PRODUCTION FACILITY « £ERMN +5emsasssRas HO CHI MINH CITY #3583

Fountain Set Limited

CHINA #[E - Vietham Representative Office

Knitting & Dyeing $t 4R & HONG KONG &# %E@EE%;E%E@E

Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited Raw Materials Sourcing FH¥ & .

IREEGEARAR Highscene Limited TOKYO %3

Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited BERAERAT Fountain Set Limited

RS EERAR S - " - Japan Representative Office

) ales of Dyed Fabrics &% it - Jap P

Knitting, Dyeing & Printing $t4 « & R ENTE Fountain Set Limited EREXERAF

Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles EEREE2ERAT - BEEAERMR

Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. P

EE I HE RGN RAER AT Sales of Garments ¥ 7K &

i Hiway Textiles Limited

Garment Manufacturing 2 7% EEARARAT

Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. nstar Textiles International Limit

ERBIRBEKRERAT

Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.

BRAIREKARAT

JAKARTA ERhniE

Garment Manufacturing 37X
P.T. Sandang Mutiara Cemerlang

COLOMBO A fi
Knitting, Dyeing & Printing $14 « 2t & R ENTE

# Chinese names are only translations of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.
PXEBEAREEFAXLBZEX MELE  BIUAXLERE
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR AR sHEE

2023 2022
HK$Mil EEET  HKSMI B2 E7T
Operating Results EEEE
Revenue =R 2 4,440.2 6,053.6
Financial Performance BRI
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners KANBEB A
of the Company FE1LERA], (B518) 50.9 (115.5)
Profit margin B 1.1% (1.9%)
Earnings per share (HK cents) SREF GEW)
— Basic — &K 4.2 9.4)
- Diluted — 58 4.2 (9.4)
Dividends 35}
Proposed final dividend per share BRANSRFRIPRE
(HK cents) CEAL) 3.00 -
Dividend payout ratio TREEEX 71.43% -

At 31 December

At 31 December

12A31H 128318
2023 2022
HK$Mil BEE7T  HKSMIl &5 & &
Financial Position at Year End REERERZBHERR
Net current assets MEEEZFE 2,203.5 2,193.0
Total assets BEEME 4,900.8 5,046.8
Non-current bank borrowings é‘E/uL@ﬁEﬁth% 91.1 235.5
Total bank borrowings HIRTTREE 199.6 436.2
Net bank borrowings fﬁmﬁéaﬂﬁ (1,181.3) (962.9)
Total liabilities aE48E 1,432.2 1,623.0
Net asset value per share (HK$) SREEZRE (Br) 2.67 2.63
Capital expenditure BARREE 87.9 163.6
Financial Statistics A4t

Return on equity (%) 1 7 [O1 3R 2 (%) 2.0% (2.7%)
Consolidated tangible net worth FERAETEE 3,189.3 3,126.4
Consolidated total bank debt to RERIRTTARHREFER

consolidated tangible net worth BEELA 0.1 0.1
Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated imEe EMITE RSN EEERS

interest expenses 1 5 S W EE A 12.5 8.8
Consolidated current assets to e REBEERGZA R

consolidated current liabilities =gl 2.9 2.9
Inventory turnover period (days) EFEFER (H) 69 62
Trade and bills receivables turnover EEYrES e

period (days) BEE (H) 66 56
Trade and bills payables turnover EERERENRIE

period (days) BAEHE (/) 58 33
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

A summary of the financial information of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the respective published
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out as below. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

FABDREMNBARBERBYRFEEZYME
ERHE BN EAFEAMEERGREME
]R) HIWMT - WL E L TERE B G S/
BERKRZ—ED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS REEmR
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HZ20195 220205 HEo021E HEo008 #Z20235
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 128318
I35 HFE IHFE IEFE LLFE

HK$'000 T8  HK$000 FB7L HKS000 FH7T HKS000 F47T HK$000 FHmT

~

Revenue e 6,605,655 4,943,230 6,751,277 6,053,645 4,440,235

Profit/(loss) before income tax ~ BRFTISH % HATRF]/

expense (&518) 209,619 122,145 337,450 (20,210) 111,128
Income tax expense g (42,805) (20,554) (67,192) (72,954) (43,284)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEERA/ (B8 166,814 101,591 270,258 (93,164) 67,844
Attributable to: L

Owners of the Company KARBEBA 141,089 85,706 241,334 (115,532) 50,903

Non-controlling interests TR ER 25,725 15,885 28,924 22 368 16,941

166,814 101,591 270,258 (93,164) 67,844




BEEE(%E)ERAT  2023FFEHR T

FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)

MHEEE (&)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EEMBERRRER
At At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
128318 128318 #12R31H 128318 128310
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HKS'000 T HK$000 FB7T HKS000 FH7T HKS000 F 57T HK$000F#HT
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,835,805 1,746,822 1,728,511 1,671,542 1,532,032
Current assets TEEE 3,461,095 3,678,889 4,019,879 3,375,223 3,368,307
Current liabilities REEaE 1,331,653 1,619,636 1,771,099 1,182,174 1,165,291
Net current assets TEEEFE 2,129,442 2,059,253 2,248,780 2,193,049 2,203,516
Total assets less current liabiitles ZEMERREEE 3,965,247 3,806,075 3,977,291 3,864,591 3,735,548
Non-current liabilities El e =L 380,191 226,286 218,193 440,824 266,882
Net assets BESE 3,585,056 3,579,789 3,759,098 3,423,767 3,468,666
Capital and reserves BAKEE
Share capital Fg & 889,810 889,810 889,810 889,810 889,810
Reserves E4 2,529,651 2,504,762 2,670,428 2,331,257 2,378,536
Equity attributable to owners AR R NELER
of the Company 3,419,461 3,394,572 3,560,238 3,221,067 3,268,346
Non-controlling interests JEEERG R 165,595 185,217 198,860 202,700 200,320
Total equity EmiEE 3,585,056 3,579,789 3,759,098 3,423,767 3,468,666
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
B2 TE o508

Fountain Set Limited

EHEXARAT

File
number

X 4R
Al

A2

A3

Awards/Certifications name

1RTE/RE TR

Scope Certificate (Global Recycled Standard 4.0 (GRS 4.0))
2IKEIWZERIZ 2 (GRS 4.0):0E8 =

Scope Certificate (Organic Content Standard (OCS) Version
3.0)

Bi%IE 2 212 25(0CS 3.0)58:EHE

Scope Certificate (Global Organic Textile Standard (GOTS)

Version 6.0)
S2IRB A B mIRZE(GOTS 6.0)50:88 =

Dongguan Futian Oasis Heating Co. Ltd.
R@EELMNERAFIRAT

File
number

X 4R
B1

;nn-p o

Awards/Certifications name

1RIE/RE LB

Hong Kong - Guangdong Cleaner Production Partner
(Manufacturing)

BEBREEUH BIER)

Issued by
HEEE A

Intertek Testing Services NA, Inc

ECOCERT GREENLIFE S.A.S.

ECOCERT GREENLIFE S.A.S.

Issued by

PR AR

Department of Industry and Information Technology of
Guangdong Province

EBRETENEECEE

Environment and Ecology Bureau The Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
BEBFEIITHRET IRIERERER



Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited

AREESBERAR

File
number

X {H4RSR
Al

A2

A3
A4
A5

A6

§ 1, Daoolor Centity

< p—

Awards/Certifications name

RIE/BE R

ISO14001 Environmental Management
System Certificate
ISO140011R 1% E IS R 5058

ISO 50001 Energy Management System Certificate
ISO 50001 5ER EIEAS R 5056

Mill Certificate
Colorist Certificate

Datacolor Certify Certificate
(Global Assessment Program)

2022 Outstanding Contribution Award for High-quality
Development
2FESEEBEREL FRE

EEEE(%E)HRLE  2023FF#K

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
RIA K058 (1)

Issued by
PEEEAE

Beijing Zhongjing Quality Certification Co., Ltd.
ITRARRIREERFTHRAE

Beijing Zhongjing Quality Certification Co., Ltd.
ITRARRIRE SRR HRAE
CARTER’S

CARTER’S

datacolor

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Committee of Communist Party of China
RTRSMRMEXFAER TFEEE
Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone
IREMkNEXRAEEEESZES

9
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIR R85 (1)

Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd.
REVHESHBENEFRAT

File
number

X4 ER
Al

A2

A3

Ad
A5
AB

A7
A8
A9
A10
Al
A12

A13

Awards/Certifications name

RIA/RERTE

Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Certificate HKKO 056043
Oeko-Tex 1Z2#100 582 HKKO 056043

Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Certificate HKKO 041727
Oeko-Tex 1Z#100 552 HKKO 041727

Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Certificate HKO15 215774
Oeko-Tex 122100 582 HKO15 215774

Certificate of Color Accreditation Program
PUMA Laboratory Accreditation Certificate

Certificate of Accreditation

Laboratory Accreditation Certificate

Certification of Assessment

Assigned Colorist Certificate

Datacolor Certify Certificate

Certificate of Color Accreditation Program for Puma

Certificate of Accreditation

Laboratory Accreditation Certificate

Issued by
RE B

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG, It #5 &  E P

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG, I #5 &% E P

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG, I T4 &tm e Pl

natific AG Switzerland
SGS

Carter's Global Sourcing Ltd
Bureau Veritas Consumer Products Services
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.

NEXT

Abercrombie & Fitch Co.

Abercrombie & Fitch Co.

datacolor

Colour Apparel Development Services Limited

Bureau Veritas Consumer Products Services
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.
The Children's Place

Bureau Veritas Consumer Products Services
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.
UNDER ARMOUR



File
number

XA HRSR
B1

B2

B3
C1

C2

C3

RENALTUH BT L)

EEEE(%E)HRLE  2023FF#K

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
RIA K058 (1)

i
T COMPLETION OF
VERIFIED MODULE

Awards/Certifications name

RIR/DERTE

Hong Kong - Guangdong Cleaner Production Partner
(Manufacturing)

EBBREEBH RED)

B REsTE (EERE) (LCMP)

[EBERA KR EE

Certificate of OEKO-TEX STeP
BB B SRR

Higg Index Facility Social & Labor Module
Higg Index FSLMiE4B:5 =

TEEHESZ RRASHHEE (WA) KARE

Issued by
PEEE AR

Department of Industry and Information Technology of
Guangdong Province

ERE TEMERCE

Environment and Ecology Bureau The Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
SEFINTHEHN IRERERD

WWF

HREARSE

BERE T EMEMCE  EREKFE

TESTEX Swiss Textile-Testing Ltd.
In A RIS SRR

Sustainable Apparel Coalition
PIFF A AR S B R

thiz \R#AEEMEE

11
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
ﬁlﬁ& Wb‘ﬂﬁ (ﬂﬁ)

Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited

B EESSARAR

File
number Awards/Certifications name

XfHRE  SRIR/AREATE

Al Certificate of Accreditation

A2 Top 30 Chinese Knitting Industry in 2022
20224F E HH Bl #4817 %3038

A3 022FEEmEERERE

A4 Laboratory Accreditation Certificate
BR=EDAEE

A5 Supplier Laboratory Accreditation Certificate

A6 H4nEf2023 E Y IR M BE B BR E R L H 5 =

A7 LLBEANE RRFHHEE
A8 BEREDAES
A9 Comparison Test Certificate

EE¥ RS EE =

A10 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Certificate SHO15 144422
Oeko-Tex 1Z#100 55 SHO15 144422

Al Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Certificate SHO15 208514
Oeko-Tex Z#E100 583& SHO15 208514

A12 2028 Ak 2 2B FH1E

-
PELIS B AL

':;:M,’;;IHI LELE L] i

| SANRY, SERE J

s _1___,;;5

Issued by
RE B

Carter's Global Sourcing Ltd

China Knitting Industry Association
FEHBT XS

FRE BB AT R TR S @ TIER S & « B A o
HEEEERZES

ANTA Sports Products Limited
ZUHEARARAH
Intertek — Softlines

The Children's Place

FRE 4R A T 25 o g RO

L.L.Bean INC
LLBeanBE A EER=

EERERETRREERARERART

China Textile Industry Federation Testing Center
FREAL A TSRS S 15RO

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG, i 45 @k 4% 7€ Fit

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG, Tt #5 & E P

(WA AR B T ) MEs8 4L



File
number

XA HRSR
B1

B2

B3

C1
c2
C3

C4
C5
C6

Awards/Certifications name

BIR/RE AT
EIERATEES

1o
SRE

BRORREERER

MZEAEREREE

022 EFEREB=24E
SLERE T ASiESREE

BE_+ABRZHEE BENTIRIBIARKEES
MR

hEEESERERER
AT EE Sz BB sE &
R MEABEmRES

FEEEE(EE)HRAT  2023FFR

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)

IR s058 (48
L
* 1
AFFEASE SR AL AR ‘
ARCENCARDY.
B =
/. = N %
raweraznan |}
L e o B
A Pz #R :
HARAE*E =||

ol &)

Issued by
PEEE AR

China Quality Mark Certification Group
FEESREEEARAT

China Knitting Industry Association
FEHBTERS

China Knitting Industry Association
FEHBTERS

BT ARBUT
RERTE
B AR MmARERTE

hHPEEEARASEE
HEBTHETHERBRATNEZES

China Knitting Industry Association
PR ST EGE

13
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIR R85 (1)

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited

BEEE @A) BRAF

File
number

X4 ER
Al

A2
A3

A4

A5

AB

A7

A8

A9

A10

ceamiricate [l

Awards/Certifications name

1RIE/ATE TR

Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Certificate 07.BH.52767
Oeko-Tex 1Z#100 582Z 07.BH.52767

Laboratory Certification

bluesign® SYSTEM PARTNER
bluesign® SYSTEM B

Facility and Merchandise Authorization (Licensee: Fashion
Uk)

Facility and Merchandise Authorization (Licensee: Marks &
Spencer Plc)

Laboratory Approval Certificate
=] %ﬁiﬂi/ DH =

George Laboratory Certification Scheme
George B EREREsTE

Certificate of Good Manufacturing Practice

RiFEERBLES

Global Organic Textiles (GOTS) 6.0
2IRE 4 & R(GOTS) 6.0

Organic Content Standard (OCS) 3.0
Global Recycled Standard (GRS) 4.0
B S E1R%E(0CS) 3.0
2 IREIWIZZE(GRS) 4.0

Issued by
RE B

Hohenstein Textile Testing Institute

Intertek

bluesign technologies ag

Disney

Disney

Gap Inc.

George & Intertek Group
George& K&

SGS Lanka Ltd.
B rERRARERRAR

Control Union Certifications B.V
ﬁ'fgm, NS (J:;/é) EFE@E‘

Control Union Certifications B.V
ﬁ'fgm, N (J:;/é) Eﬁﬁ/j_\\ﬁ_‘



File
number

XA 4R
A1

A12

A13

Al4

A15

A16

A17

A18
B1

COMPLETION OF g
VERIFIED MODULE

Awards/Certifications name

RIR/NERTE

Higg Index Facility Social & Labor Module
Higg Index FSLM#E4Hz5 =

ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management Systems

ISO 14001:2015 IRIE B IR R 4R

ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety
Management Systems
ISO 45001:2018 W= Z 2B EEIERHF

Marks & Spencer Premier Accreditation Scheme
B BEERMRDEE

Next Laboratory Accreditation Certification

Next B =000 5

Registration Certificate for End Users of Precursor
Chemicals

SitlEb2RRKARERH

Supplier to Zero Certificate

regenagri Content Standard (version 2.1)

Environmental Protection Licence

EEEE(%E)HRLE  2023FF#K

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
RIA K058 (1)

Issued by
PEEEEAE

Sustainable Apparel Coalition
A AERR IS B BR

SGS United Kingdom Ltd.
HEEBBARERRAE

SGS Société Générale de Surveillance SA
It AREERAR

Marks

& Spencer Group

P EEEHE
NEXT Retail Ltd.

Sri Lanka National Dangerous Drugs Control Board
R REREREY E B

ZDHC

Bt RS HRAR S
Control Union (UK) Limited

Board

of Investment of Sri Lanka

15
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)

BRIA K05 (1)

Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd.

LEEEHBEZARAE

File
number
X4
Al

A2

A3

Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd

Awards/Certifications name

ST/ TR
2022 FE R FTBFH IR

20231B M FER — R {ERIFTiE

20238 FriR

EREIBMRKRERAE

File
number
X455
Al

A2

Awards/Certifications name

SIB/ARE TR
BE MRS
EEBERE

Annual Report 2023

B

FHINE Ber s

e

HERE

i
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company” or “we” or “our”, and the “Board”, respectively), | would like to
present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group” or the “Fountain Set Group”) for the financial year ended 31
December 2023 (“2023”), and to provide you with an overview of the Group’s
strategy and business outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The financial year of 2023 was a highly challenging year for the Group, mainly
attributed to (1) the global economic growth slowdown, insufficient international
market demand, and significant decrease in the average unit price of main
exported textile products; (2) inadequate total domestic demand and intense
price competition in the domestic market; (3) a sharp increase in primary
costs and unresolved relocation issues concerning Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles
Limited (the Company’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary) (“Jiangyin Fuhui”),
resulting in increased operating pressures; and (4) proactive adjustments to
Jiangyin Fuhui’s production capacity, including the voluntary payment of one-off
redundancy severance compensation to certain employees.

Facing the difficult time in textile and apparel industry and various risks
and challenges, the Group responded calmly and made efforts to maintain
operational stability. The net profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was mainly attributable to the one-off gain
of approximately HK$259 million recorded during the year from disposal of the
land use rights of part of the land parcel located at number 12, West District,
Xiaoshan Road, Jiangyin City pursuant to the land resumption agreement
dated 19 November 2023 between Jiangyin Fuhui and the local government
of Jiangyin City People’s Government Chengdong Subdistrict Office* CI[2
mARBFMEEENELR). The profit obtained from this land use rights
sale is one-time in nature, supplemented the Group’s cash flow and reduced
external financial costs, provided cash security for the current operations and
overall future plan of the Group. The Group maintained stable operations, with
a consistently low debt ratio, abundant cash flow and ample working capital.
The cash and cash equivalent as at 31 December 2023 was HK$1,379 million,
as compared to that of about HK$1,394 million as at 31 December 2022.

* For identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
EFEHRSE (@

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”)
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

To go green by minimising printing and as our common practice, we shall
only upload the 2023 ESG report on the respective websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company. The 2023 ESG report
details the Group’s progress in multiple ESG areas, showing where we
exceeded expectations and where we need further improvement. We have
embraced sustainable innovation as a powerful engine for growth not only
for our own business, but across upstream and downstream partners in
our industry. Since 2016, we have set up a “Sustainability Development and
Enhancement Committee” (the “Committee”) which consists of different
subsidiaries and cross-functional departments. The Committee not only helps
drive the vision across the Group, but also implements our sustainability
objectives and goals. The Committee prompts our business to understand our
sustainability impacts, sets ambitious targets to address them and overcome
obstacles in meeting them.

In 2016, we started a revolutionary new business — centralised heat supply
project (the “Project”), of which the business model is a pioneer in the industry.
The Shatian Town Environmental Industrial Park (the “Park”) (for electroplating,
fabric printing and dyeing industry) is one of the seven largest environmental
industrial parks in Dongguan, China. It integrates and assembles the industry’s
enterprises within the Park and in other areas in Shatian Town, which are
required to be relocated. The Project, being one of the ancillary projects of the
industrial park development, is also a key project of the implementation plan of
the centralised heat supply in Guangdong Industrial Park and Industrial Cluster
Areas. The Project has been contributing to cleaner air for the community and
neighbourhood by reducing the emission of nitrogen oxide, sulphur dioxide as
well as smoke and dust by reducing the remaining 28 coal-fired heaters within
the district. The Project has completed the first phase of construction in 2018
and put into operation to supply heat to local enterprises. The second phase
of construction of the Project started in 2019. According to the Guangdong
Province’s “Blue Sky Defense”, second phase commenced after the removal
of the remaining coal-fired boilers and two new natural gas boilers have been
built and put into operation in 2021, gradually replacing the original coal-
fired boilers. Natural gas is a clean energy source, which can be efficiently
burned and utilised. Upon the completion, it can further reduce overall energy
consumption and carbon emissions, promote green development, and improve
ecological environment of the region, overall social benefits and contentment.

The Group will continue to invest in advanced technologies and install
additional equipment to prevent and reduce pollution. The Group provides
periodic training workshops to staff members regarding environmental
protection and pollution controls. The Group also invites qualified advisers
to visit its factories from time to time to evaluate whether the environmental
protection measures are up to standard and to give recommendations for
further improvement.
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LOOKING FORWARD

According to the World Bank’s January 2024 Global Economic Prospects
Report, this year’s global economic growth is expected to further slow down
due to factors such as monetary policy tightening, constrained financial
conditions, and weak global trade and investment. It is projected to decrease
from 2.6% in 2023 to 2.4% in 2024, the third consecutive year of deceleration
and is nearly three-quarters of a percentage point lower than the average of
the 2010s. In 2024, the textile and apparel industry’s foreign trade in dyed
and printed fabrics will continue to face instability and uncertainty. The Group
will encounter challenges such as insufficient demand and declining orders in
traditional markets such as Europe and the United States, while also embrace
new opportunities in rapid growth of emerging markets and developing
economies. The underlying long-term positive trend in the domestic Chinese
economy remains unchanged. The Chinese government has set a target
of around 5% economic growth for 2024, which is expected to continue to
outpace the global growth forecast. Domestic consumption is expected to shift
from post-pandemic recovery to sustained expansion.

All staff members of the Group will work towards the Board’s direction
and objectives as well as implement the work plans set by the Board,
and will further map out our long-term development strategy. With our
spirit of “diligence, frugality, sincerity and integrity”, and promote “pursuing
excellence and prioritizing performance”, uphold the behavioral principles of
“professionalism, innovation, responsibility and challenge”. The Group will
adhere to the business principles of “institutional management, resource
optimization, and collaborative efforts” and actively pursue a strategy of “steady
progress and reform and innovation.” We will actively expand the market,
seize orders, accelerate strategic deployment, and intensify efforts to improve
product quality and competitiveness. We will solidly promote technological
processes and product research and development (“R&D”) innovation,
build a high-quality professional talent pool, continuously improve operating
efficiency, and reduce operating costs. We will strive diligently to reverse the
financial performance of the Group. We are prepared to turn challenges into
opportunities and will forge ahead against all odds.

FINAL DIVIDEND

After reviewing the financial results and cash flow situation of the Group, the
Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$3.00
cents per share (payout ratio: 71.43%) in respect of the year ended 31
December 2023. There is no final dividend has been paid for the year ended 31
December 2022. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Friday, 21 June 2024, it is expected that the payment of the final
dividend will be made on or about 16, July 2024 (Tuesday). Going forward in
2024, the Group expects to maintain a similar range of dividend payout ratio
as our dividend policy so as to provide rewarding investment return to the
Shareholders, subject to the dividend policy stated on page 72 of this annual
report.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
EF$E¢ (II\E)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group acknowledges the need and importance of corporate governance
as one of the essential elements in enhancing shareholder value. The Group
is devoted to improving its corporate governance policies in compliance with
regulatory requirements and in accordance with international recommended
practices. The Company has formed the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee” or “AC”), remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”
or “RC”) and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee” or “NC”) alll
at the Board’s level, to provide assistance, advice and recommendations on the
relevant matters that aim to ensure protection of the interests of the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole.

APPRECIATION

We are grateful for the excellent guidance and counsel from our fellow Board
members. We appreciate the ongoing support of our Shareholders, customers,
end users, suppliers, business partners and the entire Fountain Set Group
during the previous challenging year. We are confident that, with our unrelenting
bold vision, customer focus and business momentum, we will achieve have
a turnaround in the coming year and position Fountain Set with exciting
opportunities in the months and years ahead.

LIU Xianfu
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
22 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Since 2023, the textile and apparel industry, in which the Group operates, has
faced increasingly complex and challenging internal and external situations.
Global economic growth was sluggish, geopolitical risks escalated, and the
efficiency of the industry and supply chain integration were affected, leading
to an overall contraction in external demand. The textile and apparel supply
chains for export markets underwent restructuring, with an accelerated shift
towards regional distribution. Due to the combined impact of the global
economic recovery being slower than expected and supply chain restructuring,
downstream customers continued destocking, resulting in a significant year-
on-year decline in China’s textile and apparel exports to the Europe and US
markets. Domestic consumption demand remained weak while recovery was
still slow in terms of consumers’ purchasing power in the textile and apparel
market.

Market competition intensified, with brand customers shifting their demands
towards “small batches, multiple varieties, high quality, and fast delivery.” End
consumers’ demand for clothing shifted toward “personalization, functionality,
and high-cost effectiveness”. The textile and apparel industry continued to
experience a decline in factory prices, leading to intensified price competition.

Affected by the aforementioned unfavorable factors, the Group’s orders
and average unit prices experienced a significantly year-on-year decline.
The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
HK$4,440,235,000, a reduction of 26.7% (2022: HK$6,053,645,000) due to
the reasons stated in the above paragraphs. The profit attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$50,903,000 (2022: loss attributable to owners of
the Company: HK$115,532,000), including the one-off gain of approximately
HK$259,011,000 incurred in the Jiangyin Fuhui land resumption.

Faced with an extraordinarily severe market situation and complex and volatile
operating environment, the Group took decisive measures during 2023 to
stabilize its operations and lay the foundation for overcoming challenges and
achieving recovery growth in 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEFRAD (&

Adapt to market changes, actively develop new customers, and
make every effort to stabilize orders

The Group actively adapted to market changes, closely followed market
and customer dynamics, and conducted targeted R&D of new products,
achieved positive outcomes, and received customer acclaim. The
series of new products developed by the Group demonstrated strong
competitiveness and were well received by internationally and domestically
renowned sport and leisure brands. In 2023, while striving to maintain
the stability of orders in existing customers, the Group actively pursed
market development and customer acquisition efforts. Through various
channels, the Group successfully secured over 10 renowned domestic
and international brand customers.

Proactively adjust production capacity, prudently advance new
plan, and accelerate the establishment of a new framework

The Group proactively responded to new changes in the accelerated
restructuring new plans of the global textile and apparel supply chain
by actively adjusting production capacity and order allocation. Based
on the market’s new dynamics, the Group pragmatically adjusted the
construction plans of the Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited (the Company’s
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary) (“Yancheng Fuhui”) expansion project,
and completed the initial sketches of the product design and process
equipment plans. The Group successfully initiated the land resumption of
Jiangyin Fuhui living area, and proactively reduced the fabric production
capacity of Jiangyin Fuhui. By replicating the successful model of the
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited (the Company’s indirect owned subsidiary)
(“Ocean Lanka”), the Group accelerated the implementation of the “go
global” strategy.

Implement lean management, construct a comprehensive
quality control system, and enhance product quality

In the fabric production sector, the Group implemented a comprehensive
quality control system, further strengthened the tracking mechanism of
product production. Standardized operating procedures, assessment
criteria, and reward and punishment measures were developed to
strictly control the quality issues of products. Continuous improvement
in production and manufacturing levels, along with ongoing optimization
of production processes and technological advancements, earned
customers’ acclaim. In 2023, Ocean Lanka was honored with the 25th
edition of the Presidential Export Awards — Honorary Award for the Best
Knitted Fabric Export Company and the 31st Annual Export Awards-2023
for the Commerce Best Supplier Gold Award, and the Victoria’s Secret
(VS&CO) Raw Material Supplier Cost Efficiency Award.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

IV. Promote centralized procurement, strengthen supplier

management evaluation, and reduce procurement costs

The Group strengthened the centralized procurement organizational
structure, formulated procurement regulations and documents, and
established and optimized expert database of procurement experts and
supplier directories. Through the construction of information systems,
online monitoring and approval processes were further reinforced, fully
leveraging the functionality and role of centralized procurement. Supplier
management evaluation was strengthened with clear evaluation criteria
and improved mechanisms for admission and withdrawal. The Group
expelled some unqualified suppliers and avoided intermediaries by
directly procuring from resource owners that effectively helped to reduce
procurement costs.

Strengthen production management, resolutely reduce the
capital occupation, and continuously reduce costs and increase
efficiency

The Group systematically carried out process technology equipment
upgrades and transformations, continuously optimized production
processes and order scheduling, identified hidden loopholes,
reduced unreasonable waste, and consistently lowered the defect
rate. Management processes for cotton yarn procurement and fabric
production were optimized, with clear responsibilities assigned to each
party. Effective control of inventory levels and safety stock levels was
implemented, along with control over raw material procurement quantities
and schedules, reduced inventory pressure effectively. Inventory was
promptly utilized to reduce capital occupation. The Group continuously
optimized its personnel structure by reducing the proportion of managerial
staff and increasing frontline staff, thereby building a workshop-based
factory.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEFRAD (&

VI.

VII.

Value R&D innovation and strengthen the construction of R&D
capabilities

The Group established a professional R&D management system and
working mechanism, systematically carrying out R&D activities. Strengthen
the R&D and sampling capabilities of new fiber and functional fabric
products, ultimately improving customer service levels. Continuous efforts
were made to improve the performance and upgrade of conventional
pure cotton fabrics, enrich the functions of new fiber fabric products, and
strengthen the R&D of new fabrics.

Maintain a strong safety defense and create a green and
environmentally friendly factory

The production safety situation of the Group remained stable, with all
indicators met the operational standards. In line with the demands of high-
end customers, efforts were made to build a green and environmentally
friendly factory. Jiangyin Fuhui was awarded the Green Power
Consumption Certificate issued by the Beijing Electricity Trading Center.
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. (the
Company’s indirect owned subsidiary) (“Shatin Lake Side”) was honored
as a provincial-level benchmark enterprise for water conservation in 2023,
as announced by the Guangdong Provincial Department of Industry
and Information Technology and the Guangdong Provincial Department
of Water Resources. Among the 21 benchmark water conservation
enterprises in Guangdong Province, Shatin Lake Side was the only textile
printing and dyeing enterprise, and also the only selected enterprise in
Dongguan City.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEFRANT (@

The key operating and financial indicators of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2023 are set out below:

FA 5Ol R

KEFHE2023F12B31BIFFEEZ TELE

REABEREIWT

2023 2022
Statement of Profit or Loss Items EERIEE

(All amounts in HK$ thousands unless (FR¥FRIGERRINT B B

otherwise stated) HULF BTN
Revenue O 4,440,235 6,053,645
Gross profit EH 321,989 577,817
EBITDA* BT EE S 85 A0 328,919 188,096
Profit/(loss) for the year BEERMN (HB) 67,844 (93,164)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the ~ ZNATHEB AEGERF] (518

Company 50,903 (115,532)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREARHY (B8 GBI

(HK cents) 4.2 (9.4)

Key Financial Ratios FEMBFLEE

Profitability ratios BFGEHEE
Gross profit margin (%) EME(%) 7.3% 9.5%
EBITDA* margin (%) EMITER#HERHIEE (%) 7.4% 3.1%
Expenses as a% of revenue B E £ E
Distribution and selling expenses DR IEEE R 1.7% 1.5%
Administrative expenses THER 10.7% 9.2%
Finance costs G 0.6% 0.4%
Asset efficiency BENE
Inventory turnover period (days) FEFES (H) 69 62
Trade and bills receivables turnover EEKRERREWFIEZEA (H)

period (days) 66 56
Trade and bills payables turnover period % % & ZiE fE (= IEE EH (H)

(days) 58 33

*

EBITDA means earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

* EBITDARRTE A ERIT & Rt RT 7 o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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At 31 December

At 31 December

#12831H R12H31H
2023 2022
Asset ratios BELX
Current ratio* SR E) EE R 2.9 2.9
Net debt/EBITDA ratio BETS BIRITE RS X (3.6) (6.1)
Gearing ratio BARaELEER
Total liabilities/Equity attributable to BEERE KABHE NEEER
owners of the Company 0.4 0.5

# Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.
MENLEENF B A AR BB ERLREAE

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$4,440,235,000 (2022: HK$6,053,645,000).

Revenue by business segments

18.0%

EEHE

EEEE2023F12B31HIEFENEX£ENS
4,440,235,0003 70 (20224F : 6,053,645,0003
7T) °©

EEEREBOE

Production and Sales of
Dyed Fabrics and Yarns

82.0% FY2023

2023844

BUSRSHE D k)

@ Production and Sales of Garments
BB MIHERMTK

For the year under review, the Group’s core business, production and
sales of dyed fabrics and yarns, generated revenue of approximately
HK$3,639,699,000 (2022: HK$5,150,345,000), which accounted for 82.0%
(2022: 85.1%) of the Group’s total revenue. Revenue from production and sales
of garments was approximately HK$800,536,000 (2022: HK$903,300,000),
which accounted for 18.0% (2022: 14.9%) of the Group’s total revenue.

REIBEEE EEZLER - NENBERS
R 4b By 2B 49 %43,639,699,0005 7T (2022
& 1 5,150,345,00078 70) » HEBEEEEEEE
B82.0% (20224 : 85.1%) o B K E Y
TRHY % 2 2E494800,536,000 7T (20224
903,300,00078 7T) > L& EE £ F842(ER18.0%
(20224F : 14.9%) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2023, overall cost of sales of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$4,118,246,000 (2022: HK$5,475,828,000) and
overall gross profit margin was 7.3% (2022: 9.5%).

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue decreased by 26.7%
compared with the same period last year, which was mainly due to the
decrease in sales volume of fabric by approximately 22.9%. Compared with the
same period last year, the decrease in percentage of revenue was larger than
the decrease in percentage of production cost, which led to the decrease in
gross profit margin.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s overall distribution
and selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$74,477,000 (2022:
HK$92,291,000), which accounted for 1.7% (2022: 1.5%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s overall administrative
expenses amounted to approximately HK$476,389,000 (2022:
HK$559,179,000), which accounted for 10.7% (2022: 9.2%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s EBITDA amounted to
approximately HK$328,919,000 (2022: HK$188,096,000) and the EBITDA
margin was 7.4% (2022: 3.1%).

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s finance costs amounted
to approximately HK$26,258,000 (2022: HK$21,408,000), representing 0.6%
(2022: 0.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$87,871,000 (2022: HK$163,631,000) in additions of property, plant and
equipment. The Group’s commitments primarily relate to the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
had contracted capital commitments of approximately HK$86,721,000 (31
December 2022: HK$86,607,000) in relation to the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment.

EEEFRAN (B

HEMEREF

SEEEE2023F 12831 HIEFE 2 BEiEiH
E AL A4118,246,000% 75 (20224
5,475,828,00078 7T) > BAEEF|ZEA7.3% (2022
1 9.5%) o

REREFR - BB EERF L TE526.7%
TERHNERHEE TEKA22.9% BEER
HAMREL  EX B THRIBE AN EEMEN T
BRI SIEFFR L -

DHRHEER

EEHE2023F12B31HIEEEZEEDH
RS E B RN ATL,477,0008 T (20224
92,291,000 7T) »HEE S EREREN1.7%
(20224F : 1.5%) ©

THER

EEFHE2023F12H31H L FE BETHE
F497%476,389,000%8 75 (20224 : 559,179,000
BIT) (HEBREEREAEM10.7% (20224F .
9.2%) °

ST E K #8551 7 (EBITDA)

EEE E2023F12B31HIEEEZ BRITE
R s8N A1) 49 4328,919,00058 71 ( 20224 -
188,096,000/ T) > BMITE REHIH HE
A7.4% (20224 1 3.1%) ©

= 1p%:
EREE2023F12831HIEFEZHEREL

7326,258,0005 7T (20224F : 21,408,000 7T)
(HEE S EEBAEEM0.6% (20224F : 0.4%) °

BEERx%

REBEER £EEEKELS87,871,0008 7T
(20224 : 163,631,000 7T) LU Ny %
WRERRE ERNEARKEETE NI RBEEY
¥ MBS o N2023FE12A31H  EEAE
B HENRENEENELARKENS
86,721,00078 75 (2022F12831H : 86,607,000
BIT) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2023, income tax expense of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$43,284,000 (2022: HK$72,954,000).

Profit/Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2023, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$50,903,000 (2022: loss attributable to owner
of the Company HK$115,532,000) and the corresponding profit margin was
1.1% (2022:-1.9%).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s inventories amounted to approximately
HK$783,908,000 (31 December 2022: HK$929,526,000). The inventory turnover
period was 69 days, an increase of 7 days compared with 62 days in 2022.

Trade and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade and bills receivables amounted
to approximately HK$808,091,000 (31 December 2022: HK$928,721,000).
Trade and bills receivables turnover period was 66 days, an increase of 10 days
compared with 56 days in 2022.

Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade and bills payables amounted
to approximately HK$651,571,000 (31 December 2022: HK$491,299,000).
Trade and bills payables turnover period was 58 days, an increase of 25 days
compared with 33 days in 2022.

Frisfiz
EEHE2023F12H31HIEFEZFAEREZH
#9743,284,00078 75 (20224 © 72,954,0007
7T) °©

FRAEEAANEGERT B

EEEHZE2023F 12831 EEE 2R AT EE
AN FE(E & R4 750,903,000 77 (20224 © A
A AELE1E115,532,000%87T) » H 48RS
BFIEA1.1% (20224F 1-1.9%) o

LAS
EFER2023F12831H 275 #44783,908,000

BT (20224128310 : 929,526,000 7T) © 17
EREEACOK » BA2022F 62 KB EEIE N7K

EERRBEERWRIE

EER2023F12B3 1A 2 S ¥R EHEER
T8#97808,091,000/ 75 (20226128311 :
928,721,000 70) c E ¥ K EHREWNIEE &=
HAA667K% > 12022856 K ABEEIE 110K ©

EEES T bR

EEP2023F 1283 1HZ EX R ERHRENR
TB4)%4651,571,0008 75 (20228128311 :
491,299,000787T) c EEX K RIEENRIBEE
HRA58K » 81202233 K AR LEIE iN257K ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s net assets amounted to approximately
HK$3,468,666,000 (31 December 2022: HK$3,423,767,000). The key figures
of the Group’s financial position were as follows:

EEEFRAN (B

BRI RMEER

R2023F12A31H  EBEEFELNS
3,468,666,0008 7 (2022F12H31H :
3,423,767,000787T) - EEM BTN EEER
wr

At 31 December At 31 December

#12831H 128318

2023 2022

HK$’000F &7z HK$'000F T

Non-current assets EREEE 1,532,032 1,671,542

Current assets BB E 3,368,807 3,375,223

Total assets BEEHEE 4,900,839 5,046,765

Current liabilities mEIEE 1,165,291 1,182,174

Non-current liabilities ERBEE 266,882 440,824

Total liabilities BEEE 1,432,173 1,622,998

Net assets BHEFE 3,468,666 3,423,767

The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation £ [E L% LFE SHEREKRIBITHREHPER

by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term bank ﬁEﬁEI PETHRE MEAHAIZANFEHRR
borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term bank ﬁ%—fﬂﬁf‘ﬁo

borrowings.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted to
HK$199,557,000 (31 December 2022: HK$436,248,000). Details of the bank
borrowings of the Group are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank balances and cash, including
short-term bank deposits, amounted to HK$1,378,997,000 (31 December
2022: HK$1,393,679,000) and were mainly denominated in HKD, USD and
RMB.

R2023F12831H  AEBIETHEES
199,557,000 7T (2022412831 H : 436,248,000
BIT) cAEENIRITEEFHBEHNGEHTH
HFMIFEI0

R2023F 128318 AEBEWIRITHEFEIRE
(BIEAEHRIR1T R & 3£1,378,997,000% 7T
(20224128318 : 1,393,679,0007T) » T &

R ETR AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEFRAD (&

As at 31 December 2023, the principal financial covenant figures/ratios
(according to the definitions of the Group’s principal banks) were as follows:

12023F12831H » TEMMFHLMAEUR th=x
(RBEAEETEARRITHNER WOF :

At 31 December
#12831H
2023

At 31 December
128318
2022

Consolidated tangible net worth RERBEREE
Consolidated total bank debt to RERRITEaEY
consolidated tangible net worth rarATEELG

BIRITE R B F
AREN B HEEA

Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated #r&
interest expense

Consolidated current assets to HAMBBEEY
consolidated current liabilities e I=K = m o]
Consolidated capital expenditure FEBEAREX

HK$3,189,317,0007% 7T

HK$87,871,0007& 7T

HK$3,126,412,0007# 7T

0.1 0.1
12,5 8.8
2.9 2.9

HK$163,631,00078 7T

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 the Group had complied
with all covenant ratios and undertakings.

Risk Management

The Group follows a stringent and prudent risk management policy to manage
foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

The sale and the purchase of raw materials of the Group were mainly
denominated in HKD, USD and RMB. Since the Group mainly carries out
production in China, we are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from RMB
exposure. The Group has been closely monitoring the exchange rate fluctuation
for USD and RMB and will continue to monitor the trend of the exchange rate
and adopt appropriate measures in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk in
a cautious manner.

In addition, bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in HKD and
interests were mainly charged on a floating rate basis. The average effective
interest rate of bank borrowings of the Group was 5.99% per annum (2022:
2.64% per annum) for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the bank
borrowings were repayable within two years (2022: within three years). All
bank borrowings were unsecured for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022. The Group will continue to monitor the interest rates
fluctuation in the market and will adopt appropriate measures to minimise the
interest rate risk.

REIE2023F 20225 12H31HIEEERN » &
EECEETHAE LA R R KEE -

= Bz E

EEgRERRABENAREEBRRELE
BE Re FI R @ g o

EEZHENMRMRBLUET EARARE
mE-MEBTBHNEEEMUNPE 80T KR
ARBREEZIERR EE—EHEYER
EUkAREERNES  GREGEENTSG A
BREBGEXNED  ZHSEOEIELURKE
SN R Bz

o EEMIRITEEUBTABM METE
LUEBH R B - AEFBRTEEZFHER
FFIEE.99% (2022 : 2.64%) » HIETEEBR
MERERE (2022 | ZFER) < HZE2023F 128
31H K2022F 12831 HILFE  FRAIRTHEES
HAEKR AERRKEEZETHENAER
) W2k aBAE i LU R = @k o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 5,800 (31 December
2022: 5,900) full-time employees. The Group will continue to implement
streamlined production so as to further minimise its labour cost. The Group’s
emolument policies are formulated based on the performance of individual
employee and the salary trends in various regions, which are reviewed regularly.
The Group may, subject to the profitability, distribute a discretionary bonus to
its employees as an incentive for their contribution to the Group.

The Company also provides regular training courses and subsidies for
continuing education so as to improve the skills of its employees with respect
to production, selling and management.

STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT

We obtain and understand the views of our stakeholders regularly. This
communication provides valuable feedback for our business and assists us
to understand stakeholders’ needs and assess the best way to leverage
our resources and expertise to contribute to future business and community
development.

Across the supply chain, we have taken steps throughout the Year to ensure
that we operate responsibly and in the interests of our customers, workforce,
suppliers and other stakeholders.

Employees perform management, administration and human resources,
operation and finance relation functions respectively. The Group determines
the remuneration of its employees by reference to the market salary of their
individual experience and performance. The Group will continue to improve
and upgrade their management and professional skills. None of the Group’s
employees is represented by any collective bargaining agreement or labour
union. The Group has not experienced any significant problem with its
employees or disruption to its operations due to labour dispute, nor has
the Group experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff.

EEEFRAN (B

B 8 KB = B

EEF2023F 12831 HZ 2 REEAZLNS
5,800\ (2022F12H31H : 5,900\) o 25 &1
MEBHEBEE UBERV BN 4
EENNEBREREENREBEN TIERER
EHE FH N BB M6 E M E B EH AR 5T o A&
BrgRERAER NEZERTLATEEU
SEMMMEAEE 2SR

FEBTEREEREINREREDEMES
2 LRsREZLEE HEKREERAE-

EmASHR
RMCHEERTRESANER EBEE
ARPNEBRHETHASHRBEER LA
HMTRESANER LFERENBER
ME MM % > LURERREBMALEH
#Ro

FEREHREES > RN BEFES RIS
EREMAUEEENEELCEXS URHER
fzR BT HERMEMERZ AR -

FEEREDHBTEE - THAANERE
B UBRREERFRBE AEE2EZREEE
ANERRRBNT S S REEEFH A&
EREBENERBEAHEEREERG A&
EEEMETAEEXFBERNTITAR K
EHREHEETESAMENE/FZEM LM
REHEBMFRE AEETEEEBRGEEE
KERETRIE LSBT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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OUTLOOK

The World Bank has made a pessimistic forecast for global economic growth
in 2024, predicting the weakness of the global economy to surpass that of the
2008 global financial crisis, the 1997 Asian financial crisis, and the early 2000s
dot-com bubble. The Chinese economy continues to face challenges such as
“insufficient effective demand, excess capacity in certain industries, weak social
expectations, numerous hidden risks, and obstacles in the domestic economic
cycle.” The complexity, severity, and uncertainty of the external environment are
also on the rise. The textile and apparel industry, in which the Group operates,
is challenged by the reconstruction of the international textile and apparel
industry chain and supply chain, increased uncertainty in the international trade
environment, as well as the opportunities brought by rapid growth of emerging
markets, steady improvement of the domestic economy, and the continuation
of the recovery trend in the domestic market.

In the face of severe situations and challenges, the Group will accurately grasp
and actively integrate into the new development pattern of the global textile
and apparel industry. We will seize opportunities, turn crises into opportunities,
seek steady progress, promote stability through progress, pursue reform and
innovation, and undergo transformational development. Our goal is to drive the
Group’s transformation from a fabric manufacturing-oriented enterprise with
a primarily domestic presence into a balanced fabric-to-garment integrated
product and technology R&D innovation service-oriented enterprise, both
domestically and internationally.

Striving to achieving the strategic development goals for the
China’s 14th Five-Year Plan (the“14th FYP”) period with continued
efforts

In recent years, the global economy has been sluggish, and the global textile
and apparel industry supply chain has undergone reconstruction. The supply
chain layout is rapidly evolving towards regional distribution, while competitors
are accelerating their overseas expansion and implementing intelligent
and automated upgrades to their factories. A new competitive landscape
is emerging in the textile and apparel industry, where Fountain Set Group
operates. The current and upcoming years remain a strategic opportunities
period for Fountain Set Group, which must proactively adapt and accelerate its
transformation and upgrading.

In the future, Fountain Set Group will be guided by innovation and pursue a
path of specialization and novelty. Relying on technological innovation, we will
expedite the balanced domestic and international layout and the integration of
fabrics-to-garments production. Fabric products and R&D innovation services
will hold a significant position, and we will drive high-quality development
through technological innovation.

Al S

HRIBITEH2024F 2 KB ILE REHERTE
R FESH 2 IR BV IR 5572 FE S 182008 F &
KB REH 1997 FE NS RB 1 » LLK2000
FEY BB AT FEKSENEGRE EX
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Fountain Set Group will continue to consolidate its advantages, address its
weaknesses, and enhance product quality and competitiveness. We aim to
further solidify our leading position in the field of cotton knitted fabric printing
and dyeing while gradually addressing the shortcomings in the area of synthetic
fiber fabrics. We will continuously improve our product strength, value, and
industry influence, providing customers with high-quality, high-efficiency
products and comprehensive technical R&D service solutions to foster mutual
growth.

Fountain Set Group will intensify the optimization and adjustment of production
capacity layout in line with the direction of balanced domestic and international
development. We will accelerate the transformation and upgrading of
factories through digitalization and intelligent initiatives. In the rapidly evolving
competitive landscape, Fountain Set Group must swiftly achieve a balanced
domestic and international layout and accelerate global expansion. Additionally,
building upon the successful implementation of the Yancheng Fuhui MES+
project, we will expedite the establishment of smart factory models and
replicate and promote them in other factories.

Fountain Set Group will adapt to market and customer demand trends by
consolidating existing markets, focusing on developing emerging markets, and
accelerating the development of domestic mid-to-high-end markets. We will
prioritize renowned international and domestic brand customers and develop
products that prioritize comfort, ecological sustainability, functionality, and
fashion based on their specific needs.

Fountain Set Group will continue to be driven by technological innovation. We
will increase R&D investment and carry out planned, targeted and directional
R&D activities. We will promote collaborative R&D, increase product varieties,
and enhance product quality, and driving the transformation of Fountain Set
Group from a fabric processing and manufacturing enterprise to a provider of
fabric products and R&D technology services.

We firmly believe that all employees of Fountain Set Group, in accordance
with the directives of the Board, will work unitedly and cooperatively. We
will continuously improve and optimize integrated operations in production,
supply, and marketing, actively explore new markets, strengthen technological
R&D, enhance operational management, improve operations efficiency, and
focusing on addressing challenges related to orders, layout, costs, and quality.
We will solidly advance the implementation of the Group’s long-term strategic
plans, quickly turn our business profits from losses to gains, complete various
annual business goals, and create better returns and benefits for shareholders,
customers, employees, and society.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEELRS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures as it believes that an effective corporate
governance framework is fundamental to promoting and safeguarding interests
of shareholders and other stakeholders and enhancing shareholder value.
Throughout the year from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Year”),
the Company has consistently adopted and complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the section headed “Part 2 — Principles of good corporate
governance, code provisions and recommended best practices” of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively) as
guidelines to reinforce our corporate governance principles.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2023, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Directors” and the “Board”, respectively) comprised 11 members, namely 5
executive Directors (the “EDs”), 2 non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”) and
4 independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”). The NEDs and INEDs
represented about 55% of the Board members thereat. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following members:

EDs
Mr. LIU Xianfu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 1 April 2023)
Dr. LI Gang
(appointed as ED on 1 June 2023)
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew
Ms. ZHAO Jianli
(appointed as ED on 1 December 2023)
Mr. ZHANG Zheng
Mr. SUN Fuii
(resigned as ED and Chief Executive Officer on 1 April 2023)

Mr. ZHAO Yao
(resigned as ED, authorised representative and senior consultant
on 1 December 2023)

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)
Mr. TAO Yongming

INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi

The Company has complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules which the number of INEDs representing at least one-third of the Board.
The profiles of all the current Directors are set out on pages 56 to 61 of this
annual report. The relationships among the Board members (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships, if any) are also
disclosed thereto.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

All Directors have entered into service contracts or letters of appointment with
the Company, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at the
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”). Article 102(A) of the Articles provides that
at each annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then the number nearest one-third or any other number subject to
such manner of rotation as may be required by the statutes, the Listing Rules
or other codes, rules, and regulations prescribed from time to time by the
applicable regulatory authority, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire in
every year shall be those who have been the longest in office since their last
election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined
by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Article 93 of the
Articles also provides that any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy (who
shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company) or as
an addition to the Board (who shall hold office until the next following AGM)
shall then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation to the
Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the business operations of the Group in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) providing insights regarding the
Group’s culture and values by formulating strategic directions and monitoring
the financial and management performance of the Group.

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the Board. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group’s business
to the executive management team, and focused its attention on matters
affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and the Shareholders.
The executive management team assumes full accountability to the Board
for the operations of the Group. A formal schedule has been formulated and
will be reviewed regularly to identify specific matters that shall be reserved
to the Board and those delegated to the management. The Board has given
clear directions to the management that certain matters must be referred to
the Board for consideration and approval. The Board is the ultimate decision
making body of the Company except for matters requiring the approval of
the Shareholders in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations.
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Board Independence

The Company recognises that board independence is critical to good
corporate governance and board effectiveness. The participation of
Independent non-executive Directors in the Board brings independent and
objective judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance,
conflicts of interest and management process to ensure that the interests of all
Shareholders have been duly considered.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the Board, the
mechanisms described in this Corporate Governance Report are established
by the Board, and Board Committees follow the same processes, where
applicable.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Four regular Board meetings at approximately quarterly intervals were held
during the Year. Each of the Directors has actively participated in each meeting
in person or via telephone or videoconferencing. Decisions were made by
majority vote at the Board meetings.

The dates of 2023 regular Board meetings had been determined in 2022 and
any amendments to this schedule were notified to all Directors at least 14 days
before the meetings. Appropriate arrangements were in place to allow the
Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

All Directors had access to the services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) who regularly updated the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. Any Director, wishing to do so in the
furtherance of his respective duties, might take independent professional
advice (through the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)) at the Company’s
expense. The availability of professional advice extended to three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee” or the “AC”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee” or the “RC”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee” or the “NC”). Minutes
of the Board meetings were taken by the Company Secretary and, together
with any supporting documents, were available to all Directors. Draft and final
versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment and record
respectively.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and such transaction or proposal was determined
by the Board to be material, the individual Director had to declare his interest
and was required to abstain from voting on any matter in which he or any of
his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had a material interest and
that he would not be counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meeting

Details of the attendance of the Directors at meetings of the Board, the AC, the
RC and the NC and AGM during the Year are set out in the following table:

EEERRS (B

EENEFTER EFZETERRERRK
GZHERBR
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Meetings attended/Meetings required to be attended during the Year

FEERESZHERY, RELREZEH

Name of Directors Board AC RC NC AGM
EEy EE BRZEY hMzeg R&ZEE KRRBEFEAE
EDs HirgE
Mr. LIU Xianfu (Note 1) ABREE W) 4/4 - - 11 1
Dr. LI Gang (Note 2) FREL W2 3/3 - - - 11
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew il Epeeies 4/4 - - - 11
Ms. ZHAO Jianli (Note 3) HEEL L W:s) - - - - =
Mr. ZHANG Zheng RIELE 4/4 - - - 11
Mr. SUN Fuji (Note 4) BRLELE ita) 1/1 - - - -
Mr. ZHAQ Yao (Note 5) RS E (Wzts) 4/4 - - - 11
NEDs FHITEE
Dr. YEN Gordon BEWEL 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. TAO Yongming MK 8% 504 4/4 - il - 11
INEDs BUFHITEE
Mr. NG Kwok Tung RE&REE 4/4 4/4 11 - 11
Mr. YING Wei feRLsE 4/4 - 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wiliam LAM MEMLE 4/4 4/4 - 1/1 1/1
Mr. WONG Kwong Chi I8Zas 4/4 4/4 - - 1/1
Date of the meetings 2 HE 24/03/2023 06/01/2023 15/11/2023 15/11/2023 20/06/2023

14/07/2023 17/03/2023 Note 6 Note 7

25/08/2023 11/07/2023 Hizt6 74

17/11/2023 18/08/2023
Notes: Kizt :

1. Mr. LIU Xianfu was appointed as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 April 1.

2023.

2. Dr. LI Gang was appointed as an ED with effect from 1 June 2023.

3. Ms. ZHAO Jianli was appointed as an ED with effect from 1 December 2023.

3.
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4. Mr. Sun Fuiji was resigned as ED and Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 April
2023.

5. Mr. ZHAO Yao was resigned as ED, authorised representative and Senior
Consultant with effect from 1 December 2023.

6. During the Year, apart from the meeting held on 15 November 2023, written
resolutions had also been circulated and passed by all the RC members on 4
occasions, which were dated 20 March 2023, 31 March 2023, 28 June 2023 and
1 August 2023, respectively.

7. During the Year, apart from the meeting held on 15 November 2023, written
resolutions had also been circulated and passed by all the NC members on 3
occasions, which were dated 10 March 2023, 31 March 2023 and 27 June 2023,
respectively.

Training of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the duties
and responsibilities as a Director as well as relevant laws, rules and regulations
applicable to the Directors, the duty of disclosure of interest and the business
of the Group and induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.

All Directors have been updated from time to time on the latest developments
and changes in the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he had complied with code provision
C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. Throughout the Year, each
of the Directors named below has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh his knowledge and skills and provided a
record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors Topics of Training covered (Notes)
EDs
Mr. LIU Xianfu (@), (b) and (c)
Dr. LI Gang (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew (@), (b) and (c)
Ms. ZHAO Jianli (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. ZHANG Zheng (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. SUN Fuiji (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. ZHAO Yao (@), (b) and (c)
NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon (@), (b) and (c
Mr. TAO Yongming (@), (b) and (c)
INEDs
Mr. NG Kwok Tung (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. YING Wei (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. William LAM (@), (b) and (c)
(@), (b) and (c)

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi

Notes:

(@)  corporate governance
(b)  regulatory requirements or risk management
(c) finance or business operation/management

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal action against the Directors and officers.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(THE “CEO”)

Since 1 April 2023, Mr. LIU Xianfu, the Chairman and an ED, has taken up
the position of CEO of the Company, details of which were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 March 2023. This deviates from code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, which stipulates that the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. However, having considered the current status of
the Group, vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same person
enables the Group to plan its overall strategy more efficiently and achieve the
budgeted target. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority
under this arrangement is adequately ensured by the Board which comprises
experienced, professional and high caliber individuals with a sufficient number
thereof being INEDs.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the existing NEDs and INEDs were appointed for a specific term. Each of the
NEDs and INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of one year, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at
the general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the existing INEDs, an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considers that all the INEDs are independent and at least one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. In response to the specific enquiries made by the Company on
all Directors, they have confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
each with specific terms of reference. Their terms of reference have been
reviewed and approved by the Board and are updated by reference to the
CG Code from time to time. The terms of reference of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the Year, these committees adhered to their principles, procedures and
arrangements set out in their respective terms of reference. The respective
committee secretaries took full minutes of the meetings of these committees
and the work of each of these committees was reported to the Board regularly.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Company’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised and
effective on 1 January 2019. The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to
consider the appointment and remuneration of the external auditors, to monitor
the integrity of the Group’s financial statements with a focus on the changes
in accounting policies and practices, major judgmental areas, significant audit
adjustments, going concern assumptions, and compliance with accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and other applicable legal requirements, and to
review the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung, Mr. William LAM and Mr. WONG Kwong
Chi, and is chaired by Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the Year and details of the
attendance are shown in the table on page 37 of this annual report. A summary
of the work of the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

o provided recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor, and approved the audit fee and the terms of
engagement of the independent auditor;
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° reviewed and monitored the independent auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, and discussed with the independent auditor before
the audit commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and the reporting
obligations;

° reviewed the financial statements, interim report and annual report as well
as significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

e reviewed the financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems;

e discussed the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management had performed its duty
to have effective systems. Such discussion included the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

e to consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and for
the management’s response to these findings;

e ensured co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensured that the internal audit function was adequately resourced and had
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewed and monitored its
effectiveness;

e reviewed the financial and accounting policies and practices; and

e reviewed the independent auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the independent auditor to management regarding
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. They were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The independent auditor’s
statement about its reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 76 to 83 of
this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the
Group’s existing independent auditor in respect of audit services for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$2,645,000, the non-audit services mainly
consisted interim review of HK$360,500, payroll services of HK$55,000 and
The State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council’s report of HK$550,000, respectively.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference and its principal duties are 1) to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually; 2) to identify and recommend
suitably qualified candidates as new Director(s) or to fill Board vacancies as
they arise for the approval of the Board; 3) to assess the independence of the
INEDs; and 4) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises an
ED, Mr. LIU Xianfu, and two INEDs, namely Mr. YING Wei and Mr. William LAM,
and is chaired by Mr. LIU Xianfu.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the Year and details of the
attendance are shown in the table on page 37 of this annual report. A summary
of the work of the Nomination Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

o made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy on
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and Chairman and
assessed the independence of the INEDs;

° reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board; and

o reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed the
balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with a diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the appointment
of Directors (including an INED) in accordance with the following procedures
and process:

i.  The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the current
composition and size of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the search effort;

i. The Nomination Committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals
from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm and proposals from the Shareholders with due consideration
given to the criteria which include but are not limited to:

(@) Diversity in the aspects of, amongst others, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge

and length of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available
time and relevant interest;

(c) Qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the
relevant industries in which the Group’s business is involved;

(d) Independence;
(e) Reputation for integrity;

()  Potential contributions that the individual can bring to the Board; and

(@ Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

RABEE
RLBEBRRENTEFRAEAESER
BEHES (QBBIIFNTES)

RYEZEGRBEEEREFTERBAEAMN
MRE > BEFIE —HEBNKRE B
R BE LERSREIIF;

i. RLHZEGUEZEANEISBENEMAER
B LU B SRR S B REA  fIWNERE
FEENHER BES - F=AREATHN
EBERRENRER UWEEZE (BFEEF
RIS TR :

@ BHEHZHRE HRSEMRF
B -XEHNHEER FELR K
FE~ MM ARFEFIR

b) HERBNEFGHEA T LAIE
B s BRI A = 5

© B SEIRAEEEBIERT

FEBIR TSR
(o) B,
€ WMEBE,

 EARTUAEETSHRAOEETER ;
)4

@ S»EFCAFEEIMHIZILEE-



Vi,

Vil

Viil.

EEEE(RE)ARSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it considers
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party reference
checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of candidates who
are in and outside of the Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the Nomination
Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of the
selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of
the remuneration package of such selected candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation to
the Board in relation to the proposed appointment, and where a Director is
considered, the Remuneration Committee will make the recommendation
to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed by
the members of the Board, who are not members of the Nomination
Committee and the Board will thereafter deliberate and decide the
appointment as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the consent
to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or accept the appointment
as Director, as the case may be) to be filed with the relevant regulatory
authorities, if required.
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POLICY OF DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a policy of diversity of the Board (the “Policy”).
The criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in considering whether
the relevant personnel are suitable as Directors include their qualifications,
experience, expertise, skills, knowledge, ethnicity, age, cultural background and
so on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the particulars of the
Policy as adopted by the Board are summarised as follows:

Purposes:

1. toincrease diversity at the level of the Board;

2. to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and the quality of its
performance; and

3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and sustainable and
balanced development of the Group.

Traditionally, there has been short of female talents in the operation level in the
Group due to industry norm and culture influences. However, the Company
believes the balance of gender in the Board would bring more inspiration to the
Board and enhance the overall business strategies development of the Group.
Hence, the Company has appointed a female talent to join the Board with
effect from 1 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the Company has
a workforce gender ratio of approximately 3:1 (male:female) to avoid a single
gender workforce (including the Directors and senior management) and will
timely review the gender diversity of the Company’s workforce in accordance
with the business development of the Group.

Measurable Objectives

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and other experience of the Directors. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will bring to the
Board.
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For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the following
measurable objectives were adopted:

1. The Company should comply with the requirements on board composition
in the Listing Rules from time to time.

2. The number of INEDs should be not less than three and one-third of the
Board.

3. At least one of the INEDs must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

4. At least one Director should be the professional or have intensive
experience of the industry on which the business of the Group is.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has achieved the
measurable objectives under the Board Diversity Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference and its principal duties are 1) to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy for all Directors; 2) to review
and approve the Group’s remuneration policy proposed by the CEO and
make recommendations to the Board; and 3) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration and incentive assessment indicators proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives. The Group’s
remuneration policy is to provide a competitive level of remuneration in
accordance with current market conditions to attract and motivate the
Directors and staff for their contribution.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee comprises a
NED Mr. TAO Yongming, and two INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr.
YING Wei, and is chaired by Mr. YING Wei.
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The Remuneration Committee has convened 1 meeting during the Year and
details of the attendance are shown in the table on page 37 of this annual
report. A summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee during the Year
is set out as follows:

e  made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and assessed
their performance;

e reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration and incentive
assessment indicators proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and

e  ensured that no Director or any of the respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The risk management and internal control
systems employed by the Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material and/
or financial misstatement or loss. The Board is also responsible for evaluating
and determining the risk related to the Group’s environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) reporting (‘ESG Report”) and ensuring that appropriate
and effective ESG risk management is in place. Details of the ESG risk
management system will be disclosed in the Company’s ESG Report. The
Board has delegated the Audit Committee the following duties:

1. to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems;

2. to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty
to have effective systems. This discussion should include the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

3. where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness; and
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4. to consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and the
management’s response to these findings.

The Company has established the Internal Audit Department (the “IAD”) and
the CEO Office to manage the internal control and risk management issues of
the Group respectively. The CEO Office reports to both the AC and the CEOQO,
while the IAD reports only to the AC.

The AC and the CEO report to the Board periodically regarding material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and other risk
issues of the Group identified by the AC and the CEO from time to time. The
Board, through the AC, reviews risk management and internal control matters
approximately once every six months. The Board and the AC are satisfied with
the effectiveness of the Company’s procedure for financial reporting.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The IAD is responsible for the internal control matters of the Group and
currently comprises 3 staff members. It is governed by an internal audit charter
and has established an internal audit approach for its internal audit function.
The IAD has prepared 13 internal audit reports during the year ended 31
December 2023. The Board has confirmed that IAD had been provided with
adequate resources and budget and comprised qualified staff with sufficient
experience and training programs to perform its internal audit function.

The missions of the IAD are:

— to evaluate and improve the Group’s risk management, control and
operation processes; and

— to assist the organisation in achieving the best practice, thus becoming
the best managed company.

The IAD is authorised to have unrestricted access to records, personnel, and
physical properties relevant to the performance of audits. Their relevance
depends on the nature and extent of the audits as well as the audit
environment, and is subject to the internal audit guideline on the handling of
sensitive information as endorsed by the AC. The IAD is authorised to directly
and regularly communicate with the senior management and all executives in
individual organisation being audited to discuss its major findings. All personnel
within the Group are required to assert full cooperation any time and in any
place with the IAD necessary to allow it to discharge its responsibilities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management framework
(the “Framework”) since 2016. The Framework is to execute the basic risk
management measures in various business sectors such as production,
operation and management, with the aim to (i) develop a group-wide, open and
proactive risk management culture, and (i) safeguard the strategic development
and current business operations of the Group.

The Framework consists of the following concepts:
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The Comprehensive Risk Management Framework
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The Company has also established the guideline for the Framework (the
“Guideline”). According to the Guideline, the risk management function of the
Group is made up of the Board, the AC, the CEO, senior management, the
CEO Office, the IAD and various subsidiaries of the Company.

The Framework is a tri-layer system. The first layer is mainly made up of senior
management and heads of various functional and operational departments of
the Group, who are the key players for minimising potential risks in advance.
The second layer consists of the AC, the CEO and the CEO Office, which
is mainly responsible for the organisation, co-ordination and planning of the
corporate risk management works and monitors the progress of the risk
management works. Thus, the second layer is vital during a risk management
crisis. The third layer is formed by the AC and the IAD to review and audit
the existing operation flow such as information system, business flow and
financial disclosure. The third layer is often the key to mitigate risk factors in the
aftermath of a risk management crisis.
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The following diagram displays the relationship and interaction among the three ~ FEIFER 7 1E2R3B 2 M 2 BAEKRES) :
layers of the Framework:
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In 2024, the CEO Office will continue to focus on the following risk 20244 > R M A SR E R+ TH WA TE
management issues: BEEE .

1. Continue to strengthen and deepen the risk self-assessment and internal 1. # & 058 R bR B F 5%(H & 79 2T 1E
assessment work; T1E;

2. Set reasonable assessment standards and methods for the impact of risk 2. ¥R [GER & 22 E R H 75 58
categories; and TEERE &

3. Accelerate the implementation progress of the risk management work. 3. MARKMEETENEMERE-



52

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2028

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
EEERRS (@)

During 2023, the IAD and the CEO Office had reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and reported their findings to the
AC. The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed twice
during the Year. There was no significant defect found in respect of the risk
management or internal control system under review. The Board and the AC
are satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has established a policy for ensuring that inside information (the
“Inside Information”) is disclosed to the public in an equal and timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The senior management of the Group is to provide timely and accurate
information, to allow the Board to make an informed decision to determine
whether the information is the Inside Information and/or whether the Company
has to disclose such information to the public. Senior management of the
Group must report to the Board and/or the CEO any information they have
which they believe to be the Inside Information and will trigger the Company
to discharge its disclosure duty. The Company Secretary will follow up
accordingly.

The Company Secretary is responsible for disclosing the Inside Information to
the public and/or is authorised to collect any information from any department
and/or employee of the Group in order to help determining whether the alleged
information is Inside Information and/or whether disclosure is required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of
the Group, including (a) developing and reviewing the policies and practices
on (i) corporate governance and (i) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements of the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management;
(c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (d) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report. The Board has, amongst other matters, reviewed this
corporate governance report, ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHENG Wai Han Charmaine (“Ms. CHENG”), the company secretary of the
Company, has continued to perform and discharge the duties of a company
secretary under the Listing Rules.
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Ms. CHENG joined the Group in October 2003 and is currently the Deputy
General Manager (Corporate Governance Department of the Group) of the
Company. She has over 25 years of extensive working experience specialising
in company secretarial matters, credit management, investor relations,
corporate affairs and insurance operation. Ms. CHENG is a fellow member
of each of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators) in England. Ms. CHENG obtained a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from Mount Allison University, Canada, an Executive Master’s degree
in Business Administration (EMBA) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Science degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong. Ms. Cheng was the first
female president of the Alumni Association of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong Executive MBA Program and is currently a director of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong Federation of Alumni Associations. Ms. Cheng is a
member of the fundraising committee for the 2023 Chinese University of Hong
Kong Alumni Day Graduation Commemorative Class. She is also a member
of the Breast Cancer Support Center Committee of the Hong Kong Breast
Cancer Foundation from 2023 to 2024. Ms. CHENG has fulfilled the specified
qualifications and experience under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and she has
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and the management of the Company endeavour to maintain
a continuing communication with the Shareholders and investors through
various channels, including the Company’s general meetings. Set out below is
a summary of how the Shareholders can convene a general meeting and put
forward proposals at such meetings.

Convening a general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), Shareholder(s)
holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a
right to vote at general meetings may, by written request authenticated by the
Shareholder(s) making it (the “Written Request”) and sent to the Company,
require the Directors to call a meeting.

The Written Request (i) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with; and (i) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement of the relevant Shareholder(s) and such
meeting must be held within 28 days after the date of the notice convening the
meeting.

* For identification purpose only
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If the Written Request received by the Company identifies a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, the notice of
the meeting must include notice of the resolution. The business that may be
dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution that has been included in such
notice of meeting. If the resolution is to be proposed as a special resolution, the
Directors must include, in the notice of the meeting, the text of the resolution
and specifies the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution.

If the Directors do not call a meeting as required by the Written Request, the
Shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a
general meeting.

The meeting to be called by the Shareholders must be called (i) within
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting and (i) in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders requesting the
meeting by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a meeting must be
reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 580 and 582 of the Companies Ordinance, a Shareholder
may request the Company to circulate a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to a matter mentioned in any proposed resolution or other
business to be dealt with at any general meeting.

To put forward proposals at the meeting, a Written Request must be made
by (i) Shareholder(s) holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a proposed resolution at the
meeting; or (i) at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a
proposed resolution at the meeting.

The Written Request must identify the statement to be circulated, and must
be received by the Company at least 7 days before the relevant meeting. The
expenses of circulating such statement must be paid by the Shareholder(s)
who requested the circulation of the statement unless (i) the Company resolves
otherwise or (i) the meeting to which the requests related is an AGM; and
requests sufficient to require the Company to circulate the statement are
received in time to enable the Company to send a copy of the statement at the
same time as it gives notice of the meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shareholdings or
change of address or distribution instructions to the Company’s share registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited. Shareholders may at any time send
their enquiries to the Board via the Investor Relations Representative of the
Company whose contact details are shown under “Shareholder Information” of
this annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
AGM and other general meetings. The chairman of the Board, all other
members of the Board including INEDs, and the chairmen of all Board
committees (or their delegates) will make themselves available at the AGM to
meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
www.fshl.com, where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to ensure
that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy
is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholder communication policy during the year and conclude that it is
effective because some minority shareholders have personally approached the
company and ask for relevant news.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
Year.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Xianfu (“Mr. LIU”)

Chairman of the Board

Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Aged 58, has been an ED since 28 August 2018 and was re-designated as
a NED on 1 November 2021. He was re-designated from a NED to an ED
and was further appointed as the Chairman of the Board and chairman of
the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2022, and appointed as the CEO on
1 April 2023. Mr. LIU has over 29 years of experience in the textile industry.
Mr. LIU graduated from Anhui University of Finance and Economics (formerly
known as Anhui Finance and Trade College*) in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) in 1987 in professional accounting with a Bachelor’'s degree
of Economics. He graduated in finance and obtained a Master’s degree in
Economics from Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences (formerly known as The
Research Institute for Fiscal Science) in the PRC in 1990 and an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from The University of Texas at
Arlington, United States of America (‘USA”) in 2010.

Dr. LI Gang (“Dr. LI”)
Vice President and Executive Director

Aged 45, was appointed as an ED and Vice President on 1 June 2023. Dr.
LI has 10 years of experience in the textile industry, 17 years of experience
in strategic research and planning, strategy implementation and investment
project management. Expertise in strategic development planning and more.
Dr. LI once served two Hong Kong listed companies, China Agri Qils and
Sinochem Fertilizer. He graduated from Hubei University of Technology with
a bachelor’s degree in industrial finance and accounting in 2001, a master’s
degree in economics from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in
2004, and a master’s degree in economics from Renmin University of China in
2007.

WITEE (MTER))
BIWERE (RI%ED
EERESE
BEEERESE

IRF585% » H20184F8 828 HEEHIEHITES >
WH2021FE 11 B1HBEAFERNTES  HER
2022FAB1HBEARTESUEZTAES
TEEMREREESERF  MN2023F481H
ERTATHEE B EERBIB2IFERSE
TR BIRETE1987TFEEENFE
T RAKSE FIR . 2P ESER) > 52 E
X OEBRESBBE LB HE1990FEN P E
ANEHME (TH ) B BRI 2R (FiFE - B
ELER B LR 2R 3 FT) IR B x> R
EERETEN; WHR2010FE B ER S E
ABMBESRBEZNTRAELEHEEELT
Bfio

FHEL (TFE1))
BB RATEE

IRFA55% > H2023F6 B 1HEHERITES R
B E = THEI10ERBHBITELSR
17EEBRATERE RN THREEEEE
B = E T BRI PR E - F1E1E
EMREBLTAE BB TEESELETK
R EXMREEBRERAIS T ENEE
H o B 2001 EEX£FNIE TE RSB T XA
BHEHARNFESEREEEE LB IR
C004F BEN TP KBUEAA BB LRELE
IR PR2007ERXNFBEARKBLEZE L

B0



Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew (“Mr. YAU”)

Aged 55, was appointed as an ED on 28 August 2018. Mr. YAU is also
the chief marketing officer of the Group and holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. YAU joined the Group in 1992 and has
over 29 years of experience in the textile industry with extensive experience
in operations and strategic planning. Mr. YAU is also a director of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited. Mr. YAU graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
1991 with a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology and subsequently obtained
a Master of Science degree in Textile Engineering from the University of Leeds
in England in 1992. He earned an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree and a Master of Science (MSc) degree in Finance from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2015 and 2019, respectively.

Ms. ZHAO Jianli (“Ms. ZHAO”)

Aged 47, was appointed on 1 December 2023 as an ED. She is a legal
professional with legal professional qualification* G£ 128 2 & #&) and corporate
lawyer qualification* (‘A S{EEAE L) in China. She has 21 years of experience
in legal, strategic, and board management. Ms. ZHAO graduated with a
Bachelor's degree in Laws and obtained her Master’s degree in Laws from
Peking University Law School in 1999 and 2002 respectively.

Mr. ZHANG Zheng (“Mr. ZHANG”)

Aged 38, was appointed as an ED on 1 April 2021. Mr. ZHANG graduated
with a Bachelor Degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in 2009,
and a Master’s Degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in 2011.
He obtained with the professional qualification of board secretary of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in 2017. He has adequate knowledge in equity financing,
mergers and acquisitions and fund management. Mr. ZHANG was the
Researcher, Assistant of Fund Manager and Fund Manager of Da Cheng Fund
Management Co., Ltd. between 2011 and 2017. He is currently the director
and board secretary of Huafu Fashion Co., Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.

* For identification purpose only
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. YEN Gordon (“Dr. YEN”)
Non-executive Vice Chairman

Aged 54, has been a NED since 31 May 2013 and was further appointed as
the Non-executive Vice Chairman of the Board on 28 August 2018. Prior to
that, he was the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and an ED. He joined
the Group in 1999 and was then promoted to the role of ED in 2004 before
being re-designated as a NED. Dr. YEN is currently the founding managing
partner of Radiant Tech Ventures Limited, an innovation and technology venture
capital firm. Dr. YEN is registered as a responsible officer under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance for Type 9 (asset management) regulated activity. He
serves as an independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee and the nomination committee as well as the chairman of the
sustainability committee of Impro Precision Industries Limited, and also serves
as an independent non-executive director and a member of the nomination
committee of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited, both companies listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Dr. YEN is
a distinguished professor at the City University of Hong Kong; Honorable Life-
Chairman of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited; chairman of
the Hong Kong Business Angel Network; and a co-chairperson of the Technical
Committee of Hong Kong Venture Capital & Private Equity Association
(HKVCA). He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Manufacturing Engineering from
Boston University, USA; a Master degree in Business Administration from
McGill University, Canada and a Doctorate in Business Administration from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. TAO Yongming (“Mr. TAO”)

Member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 58, was appointed as an ED and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 28 August 2018 and re-designated from an ED to a NED, and
remain as a member of the Remuneration Committee on 1 April 2022. Mr. TAO
graduated from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Foreign
Trade Accounting in 1987.

* For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. NG Kwok Tung (“Mr. NG”)

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 73, joined the Board in 1993 as an INED, and was then appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. NG is a practising accountant. He holds a Bachelor of
Commerce Degree and a Licentiateship in Accountancy from McGill University,
Canada and a Diploma in Chinese Law from the University of East Asia,
Macao. Mr. NG is a member of each of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants of
British Columbia, Order of Chartered Professional Accountants of Quebec,
The Canadian Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants, The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and
the Society of Registered Financial Planners in Hong Kong.

Mr. YING Wei (“Mr. YING”)
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 57, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee on 1 January 2015. Mr. YING holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the University of San Francisco and a Bachelor's Degree
in Economics from the Zhejiang Gongshang University (formerly known as
Hangzhou Institute of Commerce) in the PRC. He is a non-practising member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. For the period from
1989 to 2007, Mr. YING served as an ED and the Vice President of China
Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited. Between 2007 and 2009, he
served as the Vice President of China Water Affairs Group Limited, a company
listed in Hong Kong. From July 2008 to July 2009, he held the position of an
ED and the President of China City Infrastructure Group Ltd. (formerly known
as China Botanic Development Holdings Limited), a company listed in Hong
Kong. From September 2011 to March 2022, Mr. YING was an independent
non-executive director of China Hengtian Lixin International Co., LTD. From
May 2016 to February 2021, he served as a director of Shenzhen listed
Giant Network Group Co., LTD. (formerly known as Chongqging New Century
Cruises Co., LTD.). Currently, Mr. Ying is an independent non-executive director
of Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong.
Mr. YING is also a managing partner of CDH Investments.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. William LAM (“Mr. YING”)
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 65, was appointed as an INED, a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee on 9 May 2016. Mr. LAM is a solicitor
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the Supreme Court
of England and Wales, and a civil celebrant of marriages in Hong Kong. He
graduated from the University of Manchester, England in 1981 with a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Electronics and Electrical Engineering. His major study
included computer design, power transmission and telecommunications.
He is also a member of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
(M.LE.E.E)) in USA. After obtaining his Bachelor's Degree, he studied laws
at the Manchester Polytechnic (now known as Manchester Metropolitan
University), England and the College of Law in Chester, England, respectively.
Mr. LAM returned to Hong Kong in 1984 to work in family business of Tai
Sun Company (@ member of The Hong Kong-Kowloon Yarn and Fabrics
Association), and Shing Fung Finance Company Limited, both founded by
his late father Mr. LAM Muk Kwong in 1958 and 1972, respectively. In 1992,
Mr. LAM furthered his studies in laws at the University of Hong Kong and
obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) and was admitted as a
solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1994 and of the Supreme
Court of England and Wales in the following year. In 1999, Mr. LAM founded
William Lam and Company, Solicitors to start his own practice in law. Mr.
LAM also serves in many areas. He is an executive committee member of the
Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations, the founding
president of the University of Manchester Alumni Association of Hong Kong,
General Committee of Yau Yat Chuen Garden City Club Ltd. and a member of
the InnoTech Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong from 18 January
2005 to 30 September 2020 and was a coopted member of the Chinese
Temples Committee from 2009 to 2015. Mr. LAM has also acted as the legal
advisor of various organisations, such as the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Textiles Limited, the Chamber of the Hong Kong Computer Industry, the Hong
Kong Information Technology Joint Council, the Hong Kong WEEE Recycling
Association, the Hong Kong Society of Medical Professionals, the Hong Kong
Software Industry Association and the Hong Kong New Youth Energy Think
Tank.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. WONG Kwong Chi (“Mr. WONG”)
Member of the Audit Committee

Aged 72, has been an INED since 30 June 2021 and was further appointed
as a Member of the Audit Committee since 1 November 2021. Mr. WONG
was an INED from 1998 to 2012. He has extensive experience in the capital
investment market. Mr. WONG is a founding partner and a member of the
investment committee of Whiz Partners Asia Limited and he is the chairman
of the board of directors of Cornwall Medical Holding Company Limited. He
was an executive director of CDC Corporation which is a listed company in
the United States and an executive director of CDC Software Corporation
which is a public company in the United States. He was also an executive
director of China.com Inc. (now known as Sino Splendid Holdings Limited)
and an independent non-executive director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited and Sinoref Holdings Limited (now known as Cybernaut International
Holdings Company Limited), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. WONG holds a Bachelor’'s degree of Science in Physics and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Additionally, Mr. WONG served as the former Chairman of the Hong Kong
Venture Capital and Private Equity Association, the former Vice President of
The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association and the former Vice President
of the Hong Kong Auto Parts Industry Association. He is also a member of the
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and the Honorary Advisor of the Hong
Kong Critical Components Manufacturers Association.

* For identification purpose only
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the textile and garment businesses, including the production
and sale of knitted fabric and garments. Details of the principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s financial performance for the Year and the financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 84 to 180 of this annual report. No interim dividend was
declared for the six months ended 30 June 2023. The Board has resolved to
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3.00 cents per share of the
Company (the “Share”) in respect of the Year (2022: Nil) to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) whose names will appear on the register of
members of the Company (the “Register of Members”) on Friday, 5 July 2024
and the retention of the remaining profit for the Year.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to be held on Friday, 21 June 2024, it is expected that the final
dividend and the special dividend will be paid on or about Tuesday, 16 July
2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of the performance
for the Year and an indication of likely future development in the business of
the Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis (the “MD&A”) of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found throughout
this annual report, in particular the Risk Management and Internal Control
section under the Corporate Governance Report and the Possible Risks and
Uncertainties section of this Directors’ Report. The Group did not have any
significant event after the Year and up to the date of this annual report. An
analysis using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial
and Statistical Highlights and the MD&A. Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group can be found
throughout this annual report, in particular, the Corporate Governance Report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and relationships
with the key stakeholders that have a significant impact on the Group
are contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Policies and
Performance section in the Chairman’s Statement and the Stakeholders’
Engagement section in the MD&A of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Possible Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s possible risks and uncertainties range from raw material risk,
market risk, operational risk, credit risk and financial risk.

Raw Material Risk

The Group’s business is dependent on the supply and cost of raw materials,
in particular cotton yarns and any disruption in the supply or fluctuation in the
prices of such raw materials, which could materially and adversely affect the
Group’s business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Market Risk

The global financial markets have experienced volatility recently, which may
have a negative impact on the Group’s business operation. Affected by the
China-United States trade war, textile industry related products have appeared
in the list of tariffs imposed by both parties. Therefore, the latest trend of trade
negotiations will determine the extent of the impact of tariff policies on the
textile and garment industry. The financial uncertainty may affect the global
textile and garment industry, which in turn may affect the business of major
retail brands and garment manufacturers, which are the principal customers of
the Group.

Operational Risk

The Group’s fabric production facilities emit wastewater and other pollutants
and are subject to various environmental protection laws and regulations in
China and other countries where the Group’s production facilities are located.
Any change to, or failure by the Group to comply with, environmental protection
laws or regulations may cause the Group to incur additional costs and
expenses.

In addition, if the production facilities of the Group experience any power,
steam or water shortages, the Group’s business and results of operations may
be harmed.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that a customer in a transaction may
default. The Group identifies and manages credit risk by defining the target
market segment, formulating appropriate credit policies, and carrying out credit
assessment and monitoring asset quality. The Group has established policies,
procedures, and rating systems to identify, measure, monitor, control and
report on credit risk. They are reviewed and enhanced on an ongoing basis
to cater for market changes, statutory requirements and best practices in risk
management processes.

Financial Risk

For financial risk, please refer to the Risk Management section under the MD&A
and note 37(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars
of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 75 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group had additions of HK$87,871,000 to property, plant
and equipment, which were mainly used to expand and upgrade the Group’s
manufacturing facilities.

Details of the above and other movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as
at 31 December 2023, calculated under Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), amounted to
HK$1,035,531,000 (31 December 2022: HK$1,030,269,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were as follows:

EDs
Mr. LIU Xianfu (Chairman)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 1 April 2023)
Dr. LI Gang
(appointed as ED on 1 June 2023)
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew
Ms. ZHAO Jianli
(appointed as ED on 1 December 2023)
Mr. ZHANG Zheng
Mr. SUN Fuii
(resigned as ED and CEO on 1 April 2023)
Mr. ZHAO Yao
(resigned as ED, authorised representative and senior consultant
on 1 December 2023)

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)
Mr. TAO Yongming

INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi
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According to the Articles, Mr. LIU Xianfu, Mr. ZHANG Zheng and Mr. TAO
Yongming will retire and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM. Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr. YING Wei have served as
INEDs for more than nine years. The Nomination Committee of the Company
believes that both Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr. YING Wei have demonstrated
their integrity and independence in their appointed positions and contributions
to the Board, providing independent judgment and fresh perspectives to the
company'’s affairs, unaffected by their length of service. The Board is confident
that their in-depth understanding of the Group’s business and their extensive
experience and professional knowledge will continue to make significant
contributions to the Board.

According to the Articles, Ms. ZHAO Jianli (appointed as an ED on 1 December
2023) will retire but is eligible for re-election at the 2024 AGM, and she has
expressed her willingness to stand for re-election.

The independence of INEDs has been assessed by the Company’s Nomination
Committee. The Company has also received annual confirmations regarding
their independence, as per the independence guidelines under Listing Rule
3.13. The Board confirms that all Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company are independent individuals.

As at 31 December 2023, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM had a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 56 to 61 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”), which were required to be: (a) notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), (b) recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO (the “Register”), or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules” and the “Model Code”, respectively), were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares:
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Number of Approximate % of
Name of Directors Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Held Total the Issued Shares
NEFRAFTHE
BR4 &1p EaiE 17 R RARR 15 B By BITREEAL
Dr. YEN Gordon Beneficial owner Personal interest 8,380,000 8,380,000 0.68
REHEL BEnEAA (EPN: -5
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,508,000
b BEnEAA (EPN: -5
2 24
Spouse’s interests Family interest 380,000 /888,000 0
FofBEs RIGES (Notg) (M%)
Note:  Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew is deemed to be interested in 380,000 Shares held by A3t . 1RIEZ S RIERM) PIEELEWRAE

his spouse under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
(@) had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
(b) were recorded in the Register, or (c) had been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company)/entities had interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register of interests of
the substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO (the “Substantial Shareholders’ Register”).

Long positions in the Shares:

/|

FERRKEEMATED

R20283F 128318 RIBEAQNBEFEHF KIS
BRI EIBRFMEEZFTERERM (EERK
Refh) i FIALT (RRABESFTHRST
BAERRIN EBENRRNAREEIRGS DES
ERRRES

REMNERER

Name of Number of Approximate % of
Substantial Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Held Total  the Issued Shares
HILEET
TERFRE 13 REtE FERNEE BY RipEAL
CGOFCO Corporation (‘COFCO”) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 485,092,000 485,092,000 39.60
FiEEEERAE (Tig)) corporations EERER (Notes 1 and 2)
EREEN R (Hizt1k2)
Chinatex Corporation Limited Interest of controlled Corporate interest 485,092,000 485,092,000 39.60
(“Chinatex”) corporations HERER (Notes 1 and 2)
FEPHERERAR (R4  ERIEENER (hizt1k2)
Chinatex Yieldfull Investment Beneficial owner Personal interest 409,036,000 409,036,000 33.39
Co., Ltd. (*Yieldfull’) EnEAA EVN 30
HHREREEEERAR
(rBeg))
Mr. SUN Weiting (“Mr. SUN’) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
BERLE (REE) corporations FEER (Note 3)
EREEN R (Hz23)
Ms. CHEN Lingfen (‘Ms. CHEN”) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
B¥EHL LT (MBet)) corporations HERER (Note 3)
EREEN R (Hz23)
Huafu Holding Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
(“Huafu Holding”) corporations HERER (Note 3)
EIRRBERAR (EZER) BEHZENER (Hz23)
Huafu Fashion Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
(“Huafu Fashion”) corporations HERER (Note 3)
EIRHRNERAH EREEN R (Hz23)

(MEEFHH))
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Name of Number of Approximate % of
Substantial Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Held Total  the Issued Shares
NIEERAT
TERREHE 13 EatE HERNYE By AP AL
Mr. HA Chung Fong (‘Mr. HA") Beneficial owner Personal interest 80,282,948 80,282,948 6.55
ElSzEe =P BB BN
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui (‘Ms. TANG”) ~ Spouse's interests Family interest 80,282,948 80,282,948 6.55
Wzt (M5 t)) gy B4 (Note 4)
(Wiit4)
* For identification purpose only * (EEEE
Notes: et -

1. Yieldfull is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinatex and Chinatex is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of COFCO. Therefore, each of Chinatex and COFCO is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Yieldfull under the SFO.

2. As at 31 December 2023, Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited (“Chinatex (H.K.)”)
held 76,056,000 Shares as beneficial owner. Chinatex (H.K.) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinatex and Chinatex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO.
Therefore, each of Chinatex and COFCO is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Chinatex (H.K.) under the SFO.

3. Hong Kong Tin Shing Trading Limited (“Tin Shing”) held 211,966,000 Shares as
beneficial owner. Tin Shing is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huafu HK Co. Limited
(“Huafu HK”). Huafu HK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Huafu Import
and Export Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Huafu”) and Shenzhen Huafu is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Huafu Fashion. Huafu Fashion is owned as to 30.62% by Huafu
Holding and Huafu Holding is owned as to 50% by each of Mr. SUN and Ms.
CHEN. Therefore, each of Huafu HK, Shenzhen Huafu, Huafu Fashion, Huafu
Holding, Mr. SUN and Ms. CHEN is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Tin Shing under the SFO.

4. Ms. TANG, spouse of Mr. HA, is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Mr.
HA under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of
the Company) who/entities which had any interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares, which were recorded in the Substantial
Shareholders’ Register.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company, or
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and no such arrangements subsisted as at 31 December 2023.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office. Such provision was
in force during the course of the Year and remained in force as of the date of
this report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ Report below and note 42 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company, or its holding companies, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2023 or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the Year or during the period from 1 January 2024 to
the date of this Directors’ Report are available on the Company’s website at
www.fshl.com.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, there
was no contract of significance (whether for the provision of services to the
Group or not) in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules)
(the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) in accordance with the Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and by reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
has issued a letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. The information in relation to the Continuing
Connected Transactions entered into during the Year is set out in note 42(c) to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s independent auditor has confirmed that all of the Continuing
Connected Transactions (a) had been approved by the Board; (b) were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where applicable; (c) had
been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
the transactions; and (d) had not exceeded the respective cap amounts in
respect of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions.

The INEDs have also reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions and
confirmed that the same had been entered into by the Group:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Save for the transactions disclosed in note 42(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the related party transactions disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted a one-off connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements for all the one-off
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the case may
be) in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company had not redeemed its listed securities, nor did
the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all the INEDs meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key management) of the
Group was established by the management of the Group on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence. The Remuneration Committee will review
and approve the remuneration policy to be recommended to the Board for
approval.

The remuneration of each of the Directors is reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee to the Board for approval, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. None of the Directors or executives, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), is involved in dealing with his own
remuneration.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the dividend policy, provided the Group is profitable and without
affecting the normal operations of the Group, the Company may consider to
declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia: () the general financial condition of the Group; (i) capital
and debt level of the Group; (i) future cash requirements and availability for
business operations, business strategies and future development needs; (iv)
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders; (v) the general market conditions; (vi) the interests of the Shareholders;
and (vii) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) had any interest in any business (apart from the Group’s
business) which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.
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UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the information of
the Directors since the date of the 2023 interim report of the Company required
to be disclosed in this annual report are as follows:

- Ms. ZHAO Jianli was appointed as ED of the Company with effect from 1
December 2023.

- Mr. ZHAO Yao was resigned as ED, authorised representative and senior
consultant of the Company with effect from 1 December 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for the EDs’ service contracts) concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers was less than 30% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) owns more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers during
the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling
HK$10,000 (2022: None).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 34 to 55 of this annual
report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares throughout the Year and the
period thereafter up to the date of this Directors’ Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REVIEW

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Company’s financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management.
The Audit Committee presently comprises three INEDs, and one of the
INEDs acts as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the audited consolidated final results as well as the systems
of internal control and risk management of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
audited by SHINEWING, who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the 2024 AGM. A resolution will be proposed to the
Shareholders at the 2024 AGM to re-appoint SHINEWING as the independent
auditor.

On behalf of the Board

LIU Xianfu
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
22 March 2024
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

pR2023F 128310 ZEEREYEAIEFHEUT ¢

REYFFS

The Group’s
Location Lease Use effective interest
bt HEFH R& TEEBENEDS
Unit A2 on 5/F,, & Unit A1 on 7/F, Medium-term leases Warehouse and office 100%
Eastern Sea Industrial Building, AR E SEERHAE
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BB AR EIBZE S 1K29-395%
REBITHEKE
SIBA2E RTIBA1E
Office Units A3801, 083, 05, 06, 08-10 and 12, Medium-term land Office 100%
Block A, United Plaza, Futian District, use rights WAZE
Shenzhen, the PRC FREA - 3t fsE PR A
FR B 2R 31 T 43 R (& & R B B 2 R e A2 B R
& BIBARIEIE
A3801, 083, 05, 06, 08 10F112
Factory Nos. 3 (Phase 1), 5, 6, 9 and 11, Medium-term land Factory and office 55.5%
Factory Nos. 3 (Phase 2), 1, 2, 12 and 13 (Phase 3),  use rights BRI AE
Factory Nos. 4, 14, 15, 16 and 17 (Phase 4) and ~ FREALHI{FE R #
portion of bare land,
No 66-68, Danxia Road,
Xiangshan Industry Zone,
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
FEMNIEEETRIUGRTE(ER
£ £2 #566-685%
& RS (189) ~56 9K 15EmE
& P93 (288) ~ 12~ 12 135% (380) =~
P& P4~ 141516817 (480) B~
DUz BB 93 22 31,
Portion of Dormitory No. 3, Medium-term land Dormitory 55.5%
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights B
Xiangshan Industry Zone, PR A o 3 6E A
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
R TE B EMmR L% T 2 EE FT 2 k66-685%
& AN3RE D TES
A pier located at west port dike of Baiqu Port, Medium-term land Pier 100%
near No. 9 Xiaoshan Road, High-tech Zone, use rights ]
Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province, the PRC FREA - it R PR A

ELER B LIS SR & A L BRO5R55
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZENHR S

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited

311 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 84 to 180 which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment of inventories
Refer to notes 4(g) and 19 to the consolidated financial statements

A degree of substandard products is typically produced during the normal
course of the Group’s production process. Moreover, inventories of the Group
will become aged and/or obsolete in the absence or cancellation of orders. The
Group maintains a sophisticated information technology system to keep track
of the aging and utilisation of inventories and materials regarded as wastage for
the estimation of net realisable value.

Based on the utilisation of inventories which became wastage and long-aged,
the Group made an accumulated provision of HK$174,981,000 as at year end
by reference to estimated net realisable values of inventories.

We identified the impairment of inventories as a key audit matter because
the estimates of net realisable values and how materials are regarded as
wastage on which this impairment entailed a significant degree of management
judgement.

Our response:

We performed audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of inventories which included:

— obtaining an understanding of the key procedures implemented by
management in estimating the net realisable values of inventories and
allowance for inventories and performing periodic reviews of inventory
obsolescence;

— evaluating the methodology and key assumptions adopted by
management in estimating the net realisable values and discussing them
with management;

— challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry;

—  checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the input data
used by management in capturing the aging and utilisation of inventories
and estimate the net realisable values of those inventories; and

—  Testing the subsequent utilization and sales, on a sample basis, to source
documents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets

Refer to notes 4(m), 13, 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had property, plant and equipment, investment properties and right-
of-use assets for its production and sales of dyed fabrics and yarns located
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong with gross
carrying amount to HK$894,402,000, HK$26,550,000 and HK$133,235,000
respectively, which constituted a significant portion of total assets as at 31
December 2023. Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
right-of-use assets are subject to impairment assessment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

Management reviews the financial performance of the subsidiaries for its
production and sales of dyed fabrics at the end of each reporting period to
identify if an impairment indicator exists.

Where indicators of impairment are identified, management identifies the
relevant cash-generating units (“CGU”) to which these property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets belong and estimates
the recoverable amounts of these CGUs based on the fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use calculation, whichever is higher. Based on the
results of the assessment conducted, management determined that due to
higher value-in-use than carrying amounts of the CGU and higher fair value less
costs of disposal than carrying amounts of land and buildings and investment
properties. Therefore, there is no impairment on the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets during the year.

We identified the impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and right-of-use assets for its production and sales
of dyed fabrics as a key audit matter due to the significance of the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and right-
of-use assets and significance of management judgements adopted in the
key assumptions used in the impairment assessment, such as annual revenue
growth rate and discount rate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets (continued)

Our response:

We performed audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and right-
of-use assets which included:

- meeting with management and reviewing board minutes and other papers
to understand the Group’s latest operating plans;

— assessing management’s identification of assets which are unlikely to
be deployed in economic service in the future, and evaluating their
recoverable amount;

— assessing management’s identification of the CGUs and the allocation of
assets to the CGUs for the purpose of impairment assessment;

— understanding the internal controls relevant to the impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and right-of-use
assets for its production and sales of dyed fabrics and yarns;

- for those subsidiaries where there was an impairment indicator, assessing
the appropriateness of the methodology used by the management and
independent valuer in determining the recoverable amount of the relevant
CGU;

— comparing the forecast operating results prepared in the prior year
with the current year's performance of the relevant CGU to assess the
accuracy of management’s historical estimation;

—  checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the input
data to supporting evidence, such as approved budgets and considering
the reasonableness of these budgets by comparing the budgets to the
historical results and the market data;

—  reviewing the annual revenue growth rate adopted by management and
independent valuer in the discounted cash flow projections by comparing
them with historical performance of the relevant CGU with historical
performance, industry forecasts, external economic data and financial
budget approved by the management;

—  reviewing the discount rate used in determining the recoverable amount of
the relevant CGU by applying a range of estimates to compare discount
rate developed by independent source with the discounted rate adopted
by the management and independent valuer;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Bz HEmERE (@)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets (continued)

Our response: (continued)

— evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by management and
independent valuer on the key assumptions and inputs of the discounted
cash flow projections to evaluate the extent of such changes to the
recoverable amount;

— involving our external independent valuer to assess the methodology and
significant assumptions including discount rates adopted by management
in its impairment assessments; and

— considering the appropriateness of the relevant disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Based on our procedures performed, we found the key assumptions and
inputs used by management and independent valuer in the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and right-
of-use assets were supportable by available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Bz HEmERE (@)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors of the Company.

e  conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Lee Shun Ming.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Shun Ming

Practising Certificate Number PO7068

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
nir A Eifhl)gljgtfﬂ]§i§ﬁ§iuszfﬁligi

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #; Z£2023% 12831 H It F E

2023 2022
Notes [f15F HK$'000 F#&x  HK$000 FET
Revenue S 6 4,440,235 6,053,645
Cost of sales THE KR (4,118,246) (5,475,828)
Gross profit EF 321,989 577,817
Other revenue HgA 9a 87,582 73,001
Other gains and losses H K B5 18 9b 277,529 1,681
Distribution and selling expenses DI IHEE R (74,477) (92,291)
Administrative expenses THER (476,389) (559,179)
Finance costs BB A AN 7 (26,258) (21,408)
Share of profit of an associate EL—EHE AT 2B 17 1,152 169
Profit/(loss) before income PREFEMZ A EF
tax expense (&518) 111,128 (20,210)
Income tax expense gz 8 (43,284) (72,954)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF (B8 9c 67,844 (93,164)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: FEERFEERA (B8 :
Owners of the Company EiN/NSIEZ 2 =N 50,903 (115,532)
Non-controlling interests JEIT RS 16,941 22 368
67,844 (93,164)
HK cents #l HK cents &1l
Earnings/(loss) per share SREF (B518)
- Basic —&K 12 4.2 (9.4)
- Diluted — 12 4.2 9.4)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
RElEmkEMZERER (B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #; £20234F12H31H L FE

2023 2022
Note Bzt HK$’000 F#Erx  HK$'000 T
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERA (B8 9c 67,844 (93,164)
Other comprehensive expense, Hthz2mMAx
net of tax (8RR E)
Item that may be reclassified HEOEEHOEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmZIEE .
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBEE
translation of foreign operations bE A EE (4,130) (35,178)
Other comprehensive expense EEEHEME2EAY
for the year (4,130) (85,178)
Total comprehensive income/ =EEZEKE (X
(expense) for the year 4aE 63,714 (128,342)
Total comprehensive income/ EhEEEE2E
(expense) for the year attributable to: Uz~ (Bis%) 4815 :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NESIEF =N 47,279 (143,167)
Non-controlling interests JEIERE 16,435 14,825
63,714 (128,342)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 *2023412H31H

At 31 December

At 31 December

©12831H ®128318
2023 2022
Notes [zt~ HK$'000 F&E;x  HK$000 &
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KREYZE 13 62,609 72,225
Property, plant and equipment e EN G Y 14 1,202,956 1,307,647
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 171,364 194,534
Other intangible assets HithmP & E 16 - 3,015
Deposit paid for purchase of BB REREN
plant and equipment BfiEE 28,215 17,324
Interest in an associate R—EBE T 2 m 17 24,919 23,767
Deferred tax assets RIERR TR 18 41,969 53,030
1,532,032 1,671,542
Current assets TMENEE
Inventories 758 19 783,908 929,526
Trade and bills receivables BENREREWRIIE 20 808,091 928,721
Prepayments, deposits and FBARIE BTk
other receivables HAthrE W zrIE 21 370,052 114,952
Tax recoverable EAEE = 25,862 2,888
Restricted bank deposits ZIRBIIRTTER 22 1,897 5,457
Short-term bank deposits XGERIRITIERR 23 373,870 246,116
Bank balances and cash RITHERKAIRE 23 1,005,127 1,147,563
3,368,807 3,375,223
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and bills payables EEKREERNRIE 24 651,571 491,299
Other payables and accruals HthE N RIERETER 25 289,962 374,840
Contract liabilities SHEE 26 19,712 21,216
Lease liabilities — current portion HEadE-— Ry 27 26,239 26,768
Amounts due to non-controlling RIEVERR AR FIA
shareholders 28a 37,027 37,027
Amount due to an associate R—EHE AT RIE 28b 5,984 2,429
Deferred income — current portion IRIEW A — B 6 29 4,699 5,231
Tax payable eI IE 21,626 22,630
Bank borrowings — due within one year ~ $E{TEE ——F R EIHA 30 108,471 200,734
1,165,291 1,182,174
Net current assets MENEEFE 2,203,516 2,193,049
Total assets less current liabilities BEEHERREEGHE 3,735,548 3,864,591
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
RAEMBRRRE (@)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 220235 12831H

At 31 December

At 31 December

®12831H ®12831H
2023 2022
Notes itz HK$'000 F&E;x  HK$000 FE1
Non-current liabilities ERBHER
Deferred income — non-current portion IRIEW A —FETMENER 29 67,732 76,154
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE——FRIE 30 91,086 235,514
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEEE—-IFREED 27 99,234 116,234
Deferred tax liabilities REIRIBEE 18 8,830 12,922
266,882 440,824
Net assets BEEFE 3,468,666 3,423,767
Capital and reserves B RS
Share capital RN 31 889,810 889,810
Reserves (B 2,378,536 2,331,257
Equity attributable to owners of the NAB B ANEIEEE
Company 3,268,346 3,221,067
Non-controlling interests JEFER = 32 200,320 202,700
Total equity HmEE 3,468,666 3,423,767
The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 87 were approved and  $584ZE87E Y B ETBEF2024F3522

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2024 and are
signed on its behalf by:

LIU Xianfu
2NER
Director

EF

e
HHEFS@BAZERT TH THESH

REE !

YAU Hang Tat, Andrew
ERIEE
Director

EF

2023 % 87
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEDEHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #; Z£2023% 12831 H It F E

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAFRE AER
Non-
Share  Translation Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
kE  EREE  AERE  REERN afE ks 0 REGLE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note)
W)
At 1 January 2022 202251 81H 889,810 (25,842) 109,570 2,586,700 3,560,238 198,860 3,759,008
Exchange differences arising on BREBNERELELZ
translation of foreign operations EREE - (27,635) - - (27,635) (7,543) (35,178)
(Loss)/profit for the year =EE (B8 /B - - = (115,532) (115,532) 22,368 (93,164)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income  EEE2E (%) /
for the year Wt - 16 - (1553  (143167) 1485 (128342
Dividend recognised as distribution EERADRZKE - - - (196,004) (196,004) (10,985) (206,989)
Transfer from retained earnings HRGFRABRE
to statutory reserves EEE - - 4791 (4,791) - - -
At 31 December 2022 R2022128318 880810 (3477) 114361 2070373 3221067 202700 3423767
Exchange differences arising on BEBNERESEY
translation of foreign operations EREE - (3,624) - - (3,624) (506) (4,130)
Profit for the year REERA - - - 50,903 50,903 16,94 67,844
Total comprehensive (expense)/income  EEEZE (%) /
for the year WaiE - (3,624) - 50,903 47,279 16,435 63,714
Dividend recognised as distribution ERZADRZKE - - - - - (18,815) (18,815)
Transfer from retained earnings HAGFRAARE
to statutory reserves TG - - 3,077 (3,077) - - -
At 31 December 2023 20235128310 889,810 (57,101) 117,438 2,318,199 3,268,346 200,320 3,468,666

Note:In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of

Miat RBAERA R E A RSB (THREL) SERRER

China (the “PRC”) and Articles of Association of the company incorporated in the
PRC now comprising the Group, i.e. the PRC Operational Entity, it is required
to appropriate 10% of the annual net profits of the PRC Operational Entity, after
offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined under the PRC accounting
standards, to the statutory reserve fund before distributing any net profit. When
the balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital
of the PRC Operational Entity, any further appropriation is at the discretion of
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be used to offset prior years’ losses,
if any, and may be capitalised as capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.

In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau Special
Administrative Region, the subsidiary registered under private limited liability
company by quotas in Macau are required to transfer part of their profits of each
accounting period of not less than 25% to statutory reserves, until the amount
reaches half of the respective share capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\I'F Iﬁﬁ;ﬁi

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #; £20234F 12831 H L F E

2023 2022
HK$’000 F#E;x  HK$'000 FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES gEmH
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense BREREMZ HRI&EF] (B518) 111,128 (20,210)
Adjustments for: HEE
Amortisation of deferred income IEIEUT A 2 5 (5,206) (5,328)
Amortisation of other intangible assets B EE 2 i 3,015 3,015
Depreciation of investment properties KREMEZINE 5,308 5,521
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 28,314 28,866
Depreciation and impairment of property, YIE B REREZ
plant and equipment ERRE 171,837 171,863
Finance costs RRE A A 26,258 21,408
Interest income FEUA (30,442) (9,069)
Loss on written-off of investment properties MiHREYEZ K5I8 3,552

Gain on disposal/written-off of property, plant HE MiEmE - HERRE
and equipment W (9,600) (1,467)

Gain on compensation of land resumption TRz fEEW S (259,011)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment loss EEKRERRERWEIEZREERK
recognised on trade and bills receivables, net (BE[E) EEESFE (13,275) 17,867
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on HhEWERIE 2 R BB #50]
other receivables, net WEFE - (6,105)

Gain on lease modification BNz s (777) -

Share of profit of an associate FE(E—REE AT 2 &A (1,152) (169)
Operating profit before working capital EESEHpzEERT

changes 29,949 206,192
Decrease in inventories FEZRD 143,956 775,744
Decrease in trade and bills receivables EEREREWTIEZ R 127,726 279,543
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits BB B REMERTIEZ

and other receivables (@ (27,547) 81,099
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables ¥R ZEELHIEZEMN, Gl 165,429 (415,255)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and Hth IR ESTER 2

accruals CRiZL) /1& 10 (83,628) 50,600
Decrease in contract liabilities Aiﬁ =N (1,504) (11,485)
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to —EBE R B RIEZ

an associate iE . Ceizb) 3,555 (4,014)
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income FEIEW A Z CRIZ) /1810 (3,748) 832
Cash generated from operations CERFRSZREE 354,188 963,256
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEBHER (35,619) (10,287)
Overseas tax paid BEEINRIE (24,811) (47,335)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BE TSRS R E 293,758 905,634




90

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

RERERER @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #;ZE2023%F 12831 H IEF E

Annual Report 2023

2023 2022
Notes Hiz# HK$000 F#&7x  HK$'000 FET
NET CASH FROM SEEBMENREFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 293,758 905,634
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREIEH
Interest received BUFH 8 30,393 8,866
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE R &
plant and equipment REBFIEIE 9,943 3,367
Proceeds from land resumption T PR ISRIE 56,727 =
Deposit paid for purchase of property, BB « #25 &
plant and equipment RENENEZEE (10,891) (516)
Purchases of property, EEME - HBREE
plant and equipment (87,871) (163,631)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted ZIREIIRITERURLD
bank deposits (1) 3,560 (1,260)
Decrease in short-term bank deposits ~ REIHAH =EH L £
with original maturity over FRHRIRITERURID
three months - 16,549
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) KEEBME FrA) B
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFE 1,861 (136,625)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REIEE
New bank borrowings raised MEEZIRITTEE 38 252,796 1,193,538
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE 38 (489,962) (1,084,881)
Repayment of principal portion of the BEMEEEREZ
lease liabilities NG i 38 (26,888) (27,356)
Repayment of interest portion of the BEHEESREZ
lease liabilities R B E D 38 (7,000) (7,939)
Repayment of amounts due BEXIFERERRIA
to non-controlling shareholders 38 - (25,807)
Interest paid BFE 38 (20,034) (11,964)
Dividends paid to BKRE FIEEREEER
non-controlling shareholders (18,815) (10,985)
Dividends paid BfRE - (196,004)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING REIEEFTAN
ACTIVITIES R&E3RE (309,903) (171,398)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
RARESRER @
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 81 E20234 128318 L& &

2023 2022
HK$'000 T2 HK$'000 FE7T

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HERERRESEEN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GRL) /1EhnEE (14,284) 597,611

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REEERBRNREER

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ERIREIERH 1,393,679 808,430
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE EXEgHHRESRERIRS

CHANGES ON CASH AND IEEMFE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (398) (12,362)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MREREFEEAREHNRER
AT THE END OF THE YEAR ERERLIER 1,378,997 1,393,679

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RE&EEEFERLEBEREEN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: pAR I

Short-term bank deposits KHARITERR 373,870 246,116
Bank balances and cash RITEFRAIRE 1,005,127 1,147,563
Cash and cash equivalents in the REMBRARANRER

consolidated statement of EREREIER

financial position 1,378,997 1,393,679

Less: Short-term bank deposits with B REHAE=EAE MU LS
original maturity over three months HRERITE RN - -

Cash and cash equivalents in the RERERERANRER
consolidated statement of cash flows £FRRETIER 1,378,997 1,393,679
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M ERAR M

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H831H

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to
the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The directors of the Company consider its immediate parent is Chinatex
Yieldfull Investments Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Hong Kong, and
ultimate parent is COFCO Corporation, a company established in the PRC
and a state-owned enterprise under the direct supervision and administration
of, and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of amended HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are effective for the Group’s financial
year beginning on 1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17 (including the October Insurance Contracts
2020 and February 2022
amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar Two
Model Rules

Expect as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(a) Adoption of amended HKFRSs (continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements provide guidance and examples to help entities apply
materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim
to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and
adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions, but has affected the disclosures of
accounting policies as set out in note 4.

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 8 - Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates, and changes in accounting policies and the correction of
errors. They also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs
to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 - Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
liabilities. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
shall be applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with
any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings or other component of equity as appropriate at that date. For
all other transactions, the amendments are applied to those transactions that
occur after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

The amendments had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(@) Adoption of amended HKFRSs (continued)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of the abolition
of the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) - long service payment
(“LSP”)

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government (the “Government”) gazetted
the Hong Kong Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”),
which will come into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Once the
Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an employer can no longer use any of the
accrued benefits derived from its mandatory contributions to MPF scheme to
reduce the LSP in respect of an employee’s service from the Transition Date
(the abolition of the “offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect
of the service before the Transition Date will be calculated based on the
employee’s monthly salary immediately before the Transition Date and the years
of service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published the “Accounting implications of the
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides
accounting guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism and the abolition of
the mechanism.

The Group has considered the accrued benefits derived from mandatory
MPF contributions that are expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable
to an employee as deemed contributions by that employee towards the LSP.
Historically, the Group accounted for the offsetting mechanism by applying the
practical expedient in HKAS 19.93(b). Based on the HKICPA guidance, upon
the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, these deemed
contributions should be attributed to periods of service in the same manner as
the gross LSP benefit applying HKAS 19.93(a).

The Group has assessed the implications of the above HKICPA guidance on
the above accounting policies and has decided to change those accounting
policies to conform with the HKICPA guidance. The management has
commenced the processes on implementing the change including additional
data collection and impact assessment. It has concluded that the adoption
of the HKICPA guidance and the application of the new or amendments to
standards is unlikely to have a material impact on the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new or amendments to HKFRSs have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s
current intention is to apply these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback!
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and the related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand

Clause’
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants'
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements'
and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as described below, the
application of the amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020);
Amendments to HKAS 1 - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current issued in 2020 (the “2020 Amendments”) clarify the requirements on
determining if a liability is current or non-current, in particular the determination
over whether an entity has the right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period. The amendments specify that an
entity’s right to defer settlement must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification is unaffected by management’s intentions or expectations about
whether the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement. The amendments
also clarify the classification of liabilities that will or may be settled by issuing an
entity’s own equity instruments.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants issued in 2022
(the “2022 Amendments”) further clarify how an entity determines the current
or non-current classification of a liability when its right to defer the settlement is
subject to compliance with covenants.

The amendments require additional disclosures by an entity that classifies
liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right to
defer settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with
future covenants within twelve months.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. However, an entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is also
required to apply the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December 2023, the
application of the amendments will not result in change in the classification of
the Group’s liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis at the end of each reporting period.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS, which is the same
as the functional currency of the Company.

4., MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued
by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise control.
The Company controls an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (ji)) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests
in the associate. The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred, they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged so
as to write off the cost of investment properties net of expected residual value
over the estimated useful live using straight-line method. The useful life, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
when there is a change in use, as supported by observable evidence, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in properties revaluation reserve. The properties revaluation reserve in
respect of that item will be transferred directly to retained earnings when it is
recognised.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and the
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the buildings elements in proportion
to the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the
entire properties are classified as property plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and
freehold land) are depreciated so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of 20 — 50 years or period of the
lease term

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 — 10 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 3 /s -5 years

Construction in progress Nil

Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Costs
include any costs directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management, including cost of testing whether the related assets are
functioning properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Sale proceeds of items
that are produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples produced when testing
whether the asset is functioning properly), and the related costs of producing
those items are recognised in the profit or loss. No depreciation is provided
for in respect of construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying
amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

(f) Leasing
The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low
value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term of less than 12 months. The lease payments associated with
those leases have been expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would comprise:

()  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(f) Leasing (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use asset (continued)

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of properties under tenancy agreements which
the Group exercises its judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
assets apart from the leasehold land and buildings which is held for own use.
As a result, the right-of-use assets arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the date of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments:

(i)  fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

(i) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

@iy amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees;

(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and

(v payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability
by:

()  increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;
(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(f) Leasing (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liability (continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for
example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension or termination
option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted
using a revised discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly
revised when the variable element of future lease payments dependent on a
rate or index is revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-
use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted
to zero, any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor,
if the renegotiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for
an amount commensurate with the standalone price for the additional rights-
of-use obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate lease, in all
other cases, where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or one or more additional assets being
leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on
the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same
amount. The lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term,
with the modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable on the
modification date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.

The Group as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a number of tenants.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that was not part
of the original terms and conditions of the lease are accounted for as lease
modifications. The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification, recognising the
remaining lease payments as income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(g) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as

follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense is recognised in

profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.

Software Shorter of 5 — 10 years or period of the
contract term

(i) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note 4(m)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount; however,
the carrying amount should not be increased above the lower of its recoverable
amount and the carrying amount that would have resulted had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. All reversals are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or losses on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on trade
and bills receivables, other receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade and bills
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other financial assets of the Group, the ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrate otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when: (1) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(2) the financial asset is more than 365 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information demonstrate that aware lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

o it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset. Interest income on non credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

(iii) Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the purpose for which

the liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and bills payables, other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders/an associate and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Financial instruments (continued)
(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
future cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition
in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, bank balances and cash
comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and demand deposits) and cash equivalents.
Cash equivalents are short-term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather for investment or other purposes.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to third party contractual
restriction are included as part of cash unless the restrictions result in a bank
balance no longer meeting the definition of cash. Contractual restriction
affecting use of bank balances are disclosed in note 22.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash which
are not restricted as to use.

(k) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Governments grants related to income that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
which it is probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be
reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

(m) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of the following assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exist or may have decreased:

° investment properties;

° property, plant and equipment;
° right-of-use assets;

e  other intangible assets; and

e interest in an associate.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods
or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract,
control of the goods or services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

e  creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(n) Revenue recognition (continued)
(i) Production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments

Customers obtain control of the products when the goods are delivered to and
have been accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one performance obligation.
Invoices are usually payable within 60 days.

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers from the sale of product
provides customers a right of return (a right to exchange another product).
These rights of return do not allow the returned goods to be refund in
cash. The right of return gives rise to variable consideration. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until the
associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The application of the
constraint on variable consideration increases the amount of revenue that will
be deferred.

(i) Other revenue

Rental income under operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably.

(o) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in exchange
for goods that the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS
9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods to a
customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue before
being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set
out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in note 4(i)(ii) and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. A contract liability would
also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(p) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time to
be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

(g) Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted for
items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwiill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate tax
rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(q) Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in which
the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-
of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

(r) Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other than the
currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(r) Foreign currencies (continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as translation
reserve (attributed to minority interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the translation reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

(s) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iij) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group
if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in
(a).

A person identified in (a)() has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(t) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets
at the end of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or CGU and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
fair value less costs of disposal were assessed with reference to the market
prices of similar assets after considering the conditions of these assets.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets are approximately
HK$1,202,956,000, HK$62,609,000 and HK$171,364,000 respectively (2022:
HK$1,307,647,000, HK$72,225,000 and HK$194,534,000 respectively).
No impairment loss in respect of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets have been recognised (2022: nil) in profit or
loss.
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A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the product or service output of the
asset expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset.
The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation
is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances.

As at 31 December 2023, there is no revision of the estimated useful lives and
residual values of the items of property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of approximately HK$1,202,956,000 (2022: HK$1,307,647,000).

Estimated impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group recognises lifetime ECLs for trade and bills receivables, using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

The economic downturn and uncertainties that have arisen as a result of
resurgence of the pandemic and soaring global inflation have made these
estimates more judgemental, which the Group has taken into account in its
determination of applicable ECLs attributable to trade and bills receivables
arising from sales to customers on credit term, including the incorporation of
forward-looking information to supplement historical credit loss rate. Further
information on the impairment assessment on trade and bills receivables is
provided in note 37(b).

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of trade and bills receivables
is approximately HK$808,091,000 (2022: HK$928,721,000), net of allowance
for ECL of approximately HK$35,139,000 (2022: HK$52,109,000). During the
year, a reversal of impairment loss of approximately HK$13,275,000 (2022: an
impairment loss of HK$17,867,000) was recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of deposits and other receivables

The Group use ECL model to assess the impairment of deposits and other
receivables. The application of ECL model requires significant judgements
and estimates, and requires consideration for all reasonable and proofed
information, including forward-looking information. When making these
judgements and estimates, the Group infers expected changes in debtor’s
credit risk based on historical repayment data combined with economic
policies, macroeconomic indicators, industrial risks and other factors. Different
estimates may affect the accrual of provision for impairment. The accrued
provision for impairment may not be equal to the actual amount of impairment
losses in the future.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of deposits and other
receivables is approximately HK$248,473,000 (2022: HK$18,453,000), net of
allowance for ECL of nil (2022: nil). During the year, no impairment loss (2022:
reversal of impairment loss of approximately HK$6,105,000) was recongised in
profit of loss.

Estimated allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete inventories. The Group makes allowance for slow-moving and
obsolete items through management’s estimation of the net realisable value
for such obsolete and slow-moving items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions, including the consideration of potential
impacts on the subsequent sales orders and demand of its products resulting
from the resurgence of the pandemic, soaring global inflation and uncertainties
in the global economy. When the Group identifies items of inventories which
have a market price that is lower than its carrying amount, the Group estimates
the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for inventories. If the
market price of inventories of the Group becomes lower than its carrying
amount subsequently, an additional allowance may be required.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of inventories of approximately
HK$783,908,000 (2022: HK$929,526,000), net of accumulated provision of
approximately HK$174,981,000 (2022: HK$180,524,000).
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31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors, i.e. the chief operating decision makers, regularly
review the operating results and financial information based on distinct
geographical areas of location of customers, including Hong Kong (place of
domicile of the Company), the PRC, Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka, America, Europe
and Others, i.e. representing other geographical locations mainly Bangladesh,
Vietnam, Singapore and Macau. All of these geographical areas are operating
segments except “Others” which is an aggregation of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments and results by
reportable segments for the year.

2023 2023% Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka
B HE A i LET RS

HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000

77 T FE7 FE7 77

6. EXERSEEN

PITES BNXZEEARRE) RETRMREM
EFENMEBUEERERCEXERMBE
ko BEER (RREFMEM) - 8E 8
CHEEREMN BN EME BIEH
fth s (1 & > =275 & MNALE ~ B ~ F7 N H K
HPY) cPRARSHEINEREEDE M HAh
e B RGezEE N He

UTRTEERRFERBRERHEERT
KR RARIZ P] FREIR D RS D 2 S B R A A I
R RRIEFREZ D #fT

America Europe Others Segmenttotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
S| il EfiE HEAE 5 &a
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
A7 TE7 77 77 TE7 FE7

Revenue HEE

External sales HMEE 664,027 1,776,404 158,784 205,839 739,165 223,007 66,827 606,182 4,440,235 - 4,440,235
Ite-segment s ot NEBSE (12) 1925160 732943 - - a0 - - 8914 2018068 (291806 -
Total segment revenue DEEEBUE 2,589,187 2,509,347 158,784 205,839 913,216 223,007 66,827 692,096 7,358,303 (2,918,068) 4,440,235
Results £+ |

Seqment prot REEA 0912 80,689 5204 713 56619 11,231 2307 26,602 212,892
Interest income FIEMA 30,442
Unallocated income RAERA 267,906
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment loss 72 &38R E Bk (180,160)
Other unallocated expenses EfhxAELH (194,846)
Finance costs HERK (26,258)
Share of proft of an associate Ef-HREAD 2 ER 1,152
Profit hefore income tax expense BEERI AR 111,128
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments and results by
reportable segments for the year. (continued)
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6. EXFRAFEH (&
UTAFEEREFERENERBEEH
4 R PR IZ ] IR D AR S 2 BEBR BT
REBFEZ A o ()

2022 202 Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others ~ Segmenttotal  Eiminations  Gonsolidated
A e = #H HERRS =M Egil e TEE B &a
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
-4 - FAT T T AT &1 AT T 7T AT

Revenue EEE
External seles HiE 84537 2,046,010 319,967 339,94 978,471 524,590 74897 95229 6053645 - 6083645
Inter-segment sales fnotg) NREHE W) 3,259,209 1,101,808 - - 269,775 - - 189,727 4820519 (4820519) S
Total segment revenue NEEERNE 4,043,746 3,147,818 319,967 330,944 1,248,246 524,590 74,897 1,174,956 10,874,164 4,820,519 6,003,645

Results E= ]

Segment prof DERA 49435 129,228 19,849 21,280 79,436 42432 41 64,153 410,524
Interest income FEHA 9,069
Unallocated income AARMA 21,565
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment loss 178~ &8 R E % (180,399)
Other unallocated expenses AftRpEZH (269,730)
Finance costs EERES (21408)
Share of proft of an associate Ef—EHEAD 2 BA 169
Loss before income tax expense BEERTHASE (20210)

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at price by reference to the prevailing market rates.

The Group’s assets, liabilities and capital expenditure are predominately
attributable to geographical regions. Therefore, no analysis by geographical
regions is presented.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation of central administration
costs and other expenses (including non-production related employee benefits
expenses, directors’ emoluments, bank charges, etc.), depreciation and
amortisation of investment properties, property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets, interest income, impairment loss and gain/loss on disposal/
written-off of property, plant and equipment and investment properties, finance
costs, share of profit of an associate, etc. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision makers for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. No analysis on segment assets and liabilities is
disclosed as it is not presented to the chief operating decision makers.

Hfat i EREEE Z BRI 2RER 2 HIHERME
/’_EHO

FEEZEE BRREFAZDEZREN
IR & 15 o (AL - HE R 2 51 IR & 5 ) A o

FIRRD B Gt REW 4Tt 2 A EE
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Fo BRI ESF ARRITERARAMER (8
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit:

6. EXFRAEEMN (&
HithEE Y

BEESENERN T8

Hong Kong  The PRC Taiwan Korea  Sri Lanka America Europe Others Consolidated
&% HE as BE HEEF ESl Bl EftHE ]
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FAET
2023 2023F
Impairment loss (reversed)/ HERERRWTIEZ AEEE
recognised on trade and (C1%) /R E
bills receivables, net (2,447) (6,584) (887) (119) (2,066) (396) (23) (752) (13,274)
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REWE 2 TE 109 5,199 - - - - - - 5,308
Depreciation and impairment of property, )2  #83 Ri&B 2 i E KRB
plant and equipment 1,937 153,124 - - 16,725 - - 51 171,837
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESEZNE 542 24,097 = = 766 = = 2,909 28,314
Loss on written-off of investment WHERENE BB
properties - (3,552) - - - - - - (3,552)
2022 20224
Impairment loss recognised/ EEREREWTIEZ AERE
(reversed) on trade and R/ (Ci) 2
bills receivables, net 746 18,957 306 (383) 391 (438) 3 (1,715) 17,867
Depreciation of investment properties ~ RBEYE 7 E 109 5,412 - - - - - - 5,521
Depreciation and impairment of property, #)% \ R k&R 2 T E RiAfE
plant and equipment 2,362 151,210 - - 18,170 - - 121 171,863
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREZEEZNE 652 24,260 - - 338 - - 3,616 28,866
Loss on written-off of investment WHERENEZER

properties -
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EEEROEER (B
Geographical information Mh 35 &

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non-current  RIREHAR » ZKEBE Z IR B = (i) 1
assets (note) at the end of the reporting period: HUBZ U

At 31 December At 31 December
#12831H R12831H
2023 2022

HK$000 F#5;c  HK$'000 F&7T

The PRC F 1,321,327 1,461,800
Hong Kong 58 10,433 15,347
Sri Lanka R 155,249 135,744
Others Hfhithls 3,054 5,621

1,490,063 1,618,512
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. Kiat FERBEENBEEIERIBEE
Disaggregation of revenue BEREDTY

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by products and % ZE @ KRIREZWAEBZONELSEWA
timing of revenue recognition are as follows: 2HWTE

2023 2022
HK$°000 T %71 HK$'000 F BT

Revenue from contracts with customers EHHFHHREGENE15EHEEANTH

within the scope of HKFRS 15: ARKA :
Production and sales of dyed fabrics B RIHE BT R4
and yarns 3,639,699 5,150,345
Production and sales of garments RIS M E R TK 800,536 903,300
4,440,235 6,053,645
Timing of revenue recognition: B U A RYBER

At a point in time TR 4,440,235 6,053,645
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following table provides information about trade and bills receivables and
contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

6. EXFRAEEMN (&
TREHANEERERBEEURKEE
FERNEHamER.

At 31 December At 31 December

#12831H R12831H

2023 2022

HK$'000 F#&7x  HK$000 F#ET

Trade and bills receivables (note 20) EEYESE e NEN(TE20)) 808,091 928,721

Contract liabilities (note 26) aHaE o) 19,712 21,216
Information about major customers ERErERRZER

No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations for contracts with the customers

Sales of goods were made in a short period of time and the performance
obligation was mostly satisfied in one year or less at the end of each year,
thus the Group applied the expedient of not to disclose the transaction price
allocated to unsatisfied performance obligation.

B E2023F128331H %2022 12H31H L&
EREENERZWAMAEREELEMEE
¥ EEBE10% ©

PEEXEFAFRRBENTEINIZER

BREEEREATH ERNEEE—FA
HEEREN (NEEFEERE) KET Bt &%
BB REIRERANBITRNEENRS
BRIEET A

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMAERE
2023 2022
HK$’000 F#5c  HK$'000 FE7T
Finance costs on: B R A
Bank borrowings RITEE 19,258 13,469
Lease liabilities HEaE 7,000 7,939
26,258 21,408
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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8. FrfeMixt

2023 2022
HK$’000 F %z HK$'000 F &z
Current tax: EEERIE .
Hong Kong 58 562 ShI25
The PRC =8 15,046 20,345
Other jurisdictions Hhslaa 19,418 14,690
35,026 38,160
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BEFERENR (BEEH)
Hong Kong 5% (12) 311
The PRC & (22) 12,680
Other jurisdictions HhsaMa 1,461 1,266
1,427 14,257
36,453 52,417
Deferred tax (note 18): IRIERRIE (H15E18) -
Hong Kong 58 230 1,962
The PRC ==] ] 11,777 10,358
Other jurisdictions HhsaMa (5,176) 8,217
6,831 20,537
43,284 72,954

Under the Hong Kong two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of one subsidiary of the Company, which is
a qualifying corporation, is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits
at 16.5%. The profits of other group entities not entitled to the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at 16.5%.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries

is 25%.

REEBNSRMRS ERB—BHEER
2RI 8 2 B BRI E2,000,0007% 7T FE 3R 10 22 F)
ME8.25%  MaF THIERMBRIRKAS
16.5% - AR SFSMMARF N EMERERE
Z BN BT ER16.5%R 1

WP EEXERIRE ((REMRS

1) etk

EFEREBEMIES > TENB AR ZIRES

25%-°
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8. PRIz (@&

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the tax rate of Sri
Lanka subsidiary was 14% from January to September 2022 and has been

increased to 30% from October 2022.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

2022108 REHE AN E30% ©

R EMFARZERRIER 2022618 E
OB HMEWRMBADZMER14% LE B

HE B2 RBEENERSEREZEE

respective jurisdictions. FFZMEE -
Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 18. BRRERIEZ FIFEHIEE18 0

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) before

REERGEGERDMAMEEY = RAIFTFR

income tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 3z HEAFRFTISIRE HAT A, (B518) FUHER YN

comprehensive income as follows: TS <
2023 2022
HK$'000 F&;x  HK$'000 F#&7T
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense BREFEMSZ HEIRF] (B18) 111,128 (20,210)
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits or 2B RIEEMEBRAMNBLE 2 SR XK
losses in the jurisdiction concerned FENRIE 37,128 (3,141)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ERTENRNRBEE
tax purpose 17,681 48,146
Tax effect of income not taxable for WA BERRNR S E
tax purpose (70,921) (15,380)
Under provision in prior years BEFERETIE 1,427 14,257
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MRIEEEIERWRERNR ST E 56,068 49,292
Tax effect of other deferred tax HMRERIBREHEDNIRHBEE
not recognised 1,615 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously & A B R RN IERE
not recognised (700) (130)
Increase in opening deferred tax balances BERAME AR FYIRLERIBLLER
resulting from an increase in applicable B0
tax rate - 3,470
Utilisation of other deferred tax previously BEF RN EMIEERIE
not recognised - (6,770)
Deferred tax provided on withholding tax MAEIMNTE A B FEINREHIRERIE
on overseas subsidiaries B1E 1,061 (9,500)
Income tax on concessionary rate REEREFENMER (72) (7,291)
Others Hh (3) 1
Income tax expense PRSIz 43,284 72,954
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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9. OTHER REVENUE, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND 9. HA -HihimkEBEURE

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEE (B8
(@) An analysis of the Group’s other revenue is as follows: (@ AEBREMEAZZHUWT :
2023 2022
HK$’000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FET
Amortisation of deferred income (note i) IRIEUR A 2z 8 (B &L 5,206 5,328
Compensation income mERA 23,059 21,290
Government grants (note i) BT w8k (f &) 4,076 10,304
Interest income B WA 30,442 9,069
Net rental income from investment properties & B ¥ 2 AW ARE (#15£40)
(note 40) 13,702 14,299
Others HAth 11,097 12,711
87,582 73,001
(b) An analysis of the Group’s other gains and losses is as follows: b) TEBEMKEKMEBEZDTTT !
2023 2022
HK$'000 F#E7x  HK$'000 FET
Net exchange losses fE R ESIEFE (1,543) (6,223)
Gain on disposal/written-off of property, HE MEEYE A R Bz N aE
plant and equipment 9,600 1,467
Loss on written-off of investment properties ~ H$HIE B Y2~ k518 (H15213)
(note 13) (3,552) -
Gain on compensation of land resumption T Z i E IR (1 aEiv)
(note iv) 259,011 -
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss SR TR EWRTIE R EE A ERE
recognised on trade and bills receivables, net () R E 13,275 (17,867)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised HAhEW R IE 2 B B8 S B El s R E
on other receivables, net - 6,105
Others HAth 738 18,199
277,529 1,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
RAEMBRRAEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

9. OTHER REVENUE, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND 9. Hfthlt A - Hth S R EEUKRZE
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (continued) FEREF (BH) (@
(©) An analysis of the Group’s loss for the year is as follows: ) #TEBRRFEBEBZMAOT :
2023 2022
HK$'000 F&x  HK$'000 F &
Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at ~2FERF,/ (§518) S0 :
after charging:
Amortisation of other intangible assets HM\mA B E 28 (at16) 7

(note 16)" 3,015 3,015
Auditors’ remuneration T2 B EM 2 B

~ SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited — {5k (BE) FtENEHRT

BIRAH 2,645 2,495

— Other auditors — H % 8hm = 34
Cost of sales (note i) HHE R A (W 22i) 4,118,246 5,475,828
Depreciation of investment properties WREMEZINE WaE13)

(note 13) 5,308 5,521
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - 1% 23 K sk 8 2 T EE (W1t 14)

(note 14) 171,837 171,863
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) {FREEEZIFTE H5£15) 28,314 28,866
Employee costs (including directors’ BEMA (BIEHF10FFHNESEND)

emoluments set out in note 10) 691,167 848,355
Research and development costs B EE A AR 56,659 59,115
Redundancy costs TLERAL AR 70,100 127,390
"Included in administrative expenses BETETERERA

Notes: iz
()  Amortisation of deferred income mainly represents i) grants received from the PRC (i)
local government authority as subsidies to the Group for acquiring property, plant
and equipment for business development and energy saving scheme implemented
by the PRC local government, and ii) rental income received in advance for the
leasing of three investment properties.

(i)  Cost of sales includes HK$1,308,542,000 (2022: HK$1,417,055,000) of staff (i)
costs, depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment, depreciation
of right-of-use assets, subcontracting fee and other manufacturing overheads.
Staff costs, depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and
depreciation of right-of-use assets are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed above for each of these types of expenses.

TEFE WS A 2 81 = 2451 WEUR B th B S #hBUF
WRRTAEERERAME HERKRHEZ
W REHEDAREBERKPEEME
AT BORAAE 5T B il IH B = B B M IR
BIFHEZURA ©

$4 €& R A B1451,308,542,000 75 (20224 :
1,417,055,000%870) ZE TR KB K
REFERAE EREEERE NITERAK
HBEER ST W% KBS RRER
ERBEUREREESENETCEIEELX
PR ER AN 2 BB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OTHER REVENUE, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i

)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, government grants mainly included grants
of HK$4,076,000 (2022: HK$6,489,000) received from the PRC local government
authority as subsidies to the Group for incentive of foreign trade and steady growth
of business and there were no restrictions with the use of such government grants.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group applied for government support
programs introduced in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Government
grants of HK$3,759,000 was received from the Hong Kong Government relating
to supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees and recognised in profit or
loss. The Group elected to present this government grant separately, rather than
reducing the related expense. The Group had to commit to spending the assistance
on payroll expenses, and not to reduce employee head count below prescribed
levels for a specified period of time. The Group did not have any unfulfilled
obligations relating to this program. No such government grants were obtained for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

On 19 November 2023, the local government of Jiangyin City People’s Government
Chengdong Subdistrict Office (the “Local Government”) and Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles
Limited (“Jiangyin Fuhui”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a land resumption agreement in respect of the land use rights owned
by Jiangyin Fuhui (the “Government Acquired Land”) together with all buildings,
structures (the “Land Buildings”) and attachments threat located in Jiangyin City,
the PRC (the “Land Resumption Agreement”). Pursuant to the Land Resumption
Agreement, Jiangyin Fuhui shall surrender the land use rights to the Local
Government for an aggregate compensation of approximately RMB259 million
(equivalent to HK$284 million). Jiangyin Fuhui returned the Government Acquired
Land together with the Land Buildings to the Local Government on 25 December
2023 and thus, the corresponding right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$6,466,000 and HK$17,973,000
respectively, were disposed during the year ended 31 December 2023. Details
of relevant receivables are disclosed in Note 21. No such compensation of land
resumption was received for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, after demolition of housing
structure, Jiangyin Fuhui shall conduct the soil pollution investigation report with
respect to the land issued by an independent third party qualified investigator.
Based on the preliminary investigation conducted by an independent third party
qualified investigator (“Preliminary Result”), the Company is confident that the
result of the investigation after demolition of housing structures will be satisfactory.
Otherwise, Jiangyin Fuhui may take control measures against the land and pay
additional costs on the remediation project with respect to the land. Based on
the Preliminary Result, such provision of costs on remediation project may not be
probable.

9.

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

Hlg A~ Hfthi m RSB U KR 2
FERA (BiR) (8

iG]

)

(v)

HE2023F12B31HIEFE M EES
FWBRETEE BT RER L EAAER
EEINE R EFEIBE I R 2 #8454,076,00058 7T

(20224 : 6,489,000/ 70) » M=% 5 BURF 8 BEAY
ERIERF -

HE2022F12B31HIEFE  AEBRFEARE
HERREREBEMIAZBEXLFE 5
TERAEEYWEEZ TEMNEEBHNFZ
BT #853,759,00078 7030 FR I8 i RS0 o A 2
EIRIEEB 2T Z AT AL mIEINRAR
o AREBBAABHBANINIERS B
RIS EHMBIATATRE T ABHE LD EMRETR
TERIKF e REBEMZFE M ETABE KRBT
2 EE-HE2023FE 12831 HILFE > I EEE
I R A o

122023F 118198 /I AR KSR EE
mER ((EMBUN)) BIRRESBERAR
(DIfRTRE) ERBENEEE2BEWB AR 5
LR REEANANPEDIRE T L RR
(TEUF BB L3t ) R E R R EY
BEY) (GBI DHZERY) ) RN BT L
Bkt (TR o o R MBI
LI RERR LIRS A E BT
HEZ RN AREE259,000,0007T (HHER
284,000,000/ 7T) ° /L2 1E & 2023F12525H
e T A U B9 3t 3 [B) £ th 2 SR ) B 42 o B
5> AL R 8B E2023F 12831 H IEFEBHE
BENERREERYE BB RRFE 8D
Bl #) %6,466,0007 7T 52 17,973,000 7T © B ]
FEUBR XAV E 1B HE T 5121 V4R B8 o B E 20224
12A31HIEFE > W AR U R £ HEURBIRE

REEEPBERER REERRFHRE T
EEREANIMEEBUS =T oERAEH
BHATESLARASRE -REBUFE=/S
ERAESHRBETHNTRAE (WFER) &
REEEFERERBENASERR < AW
BB R IR RE AT A B 5% L M IRBUZFI S
> R T BV R TR B A RRINE A o 1R B
M ER BT AR AEE S EAMER-

129



130

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2028

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the Regulation)
are as follows:

10. EXREEME=EH

(a) EEM=E

RIBE R A BFREG (55622F) 383K AT (]
BEFMmER) RO (55622GE) (RA) KE

WEERMEZWMT -

Non-executive
Executive directors directors Independent non-executive directors
B7ES FHTER BiFaTES
YAU WONG
LIV SUN ZHAO ZHAO HangTat, ZHANG LI YEN TAO | NG Kwok YING  William Kwong
2023 2023%F Xianfu Fuji Yao Jianli  Andrew Zheng Gang | Gordon Yongming Tung Wei LAM Chi Total
fEE HER HiE HEE  6EE RIE | EE® Bk | EER e HER  ERT afE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS$000 | HK$000 HKS$000 | HKS000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000
FEr TEr FEr FExT FET  FEn  FEn| FEr  FEn| FET  TEn  FET  FET  FET
fnote )  (noteii) (noteiv) (notey) (note i) (note vi)
(i) (i) (Wativ)  (av) (Watii) (Wiztvi)
Fees e - - - - - - - 200 - 250 200 200 200 1,050
Other emoluments Eftif &
Salaries and other benefits’  E & R EMER 2,699 903 - - 2,567 - 1,072 - - - - - - 7,241
Discretionary bonuses” HiEsEg - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefits scheme B RERIEH BN
contribution 8 6 - - 165 - 10 - - - - - - 189
2,707 909 - - 2,732 - 1,082 200 - 250 200 200 200 8,480
Non-executive
Executive directors directors Independent non-executive directors
BiTES FoTEZ Biukangs
YAU
LU SUN ZHAO  HangTat,  ZHANG YEN TAO | NG Kwok YING Wiliam ~ WONG
2022 2022 Xianfu Fuj Yao  Andrew Zheng |  Gordon Yongming Tung Wei LAM Kwong Chi Total
ABE HEL HE e RE| BEH B AER e MER IHZ A
HKS000  HKSO00  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000| HKSO00 HKS000 | HK$000 HKSO00 HKSO00  HK$000  HK$000
FEr  FEr  FEr  FEr  FEr| FTEr FEr| FEr  FEr FEr  FErT  FEn
(note ) (hote iij (note vj)
Wst) (i) (Hiitvi)
Fees e - - - - - 200 - 250 200 200 200 1,050
Other emoluments Hitde
Salaries and other benefits* HeRkEMER - 2,708 1,547 2,567 - - - - - - - 6,822
Discretionary bonuses* HERe - - - - - - - - - _ _ _
Retirement benefits scheme iR 4R1ERISHEIER
contribution - 18 8 165 - - - - - - - 191
- 2,726 1,655 2,132 - 200 - 250 200 200 200 8,063

# Other benefits include performance-based salary and double pay.

*

The basis of the discretionary bonus is based on the profitability of the Group.

" OHMEN SRS E R E

* HERENEREENAEEENFET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(i)

(vi)

Mr. LIU, Xianfu, was re-designated as an executive director from a non-executive
director and appointed as the Chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) on
1 April 2022 and he is appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company with
effective from 1 April 2023 and an authorized representative of the Company with
effective from 18 January 2024.

Mr. LI Gang is appointed as an executive director and the vice president of the
Company with effective from 1 June 2023.

Mr. SUN Fuji was resigned as an executive director and the chief executive officer of
the Company with effective from 1 April 2023.

Mr. ZHAO Yao was resigned as an executive director with effective from 1
December 2023.

Ms. ZHAO Jianli was appointed as an executive director with effective from 1
December 2023.

Mr. Tao Yongming, was re-designated from an executive directors as a non-
executive director on 1 April 2022.

During the years 2023 and 2022, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any director as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, four directors (2022: three
directors) waived their whole-year emoluments.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees included two (2022: two) directors, whose
emoluments are set out in note 10(a) above. Emoluments of the remaining
three (2022: three) employees are as follows:

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

10. EXREEME=EH (B

(@) EFM=E (&)
Mt -

)

(i)

(i)

(v

B BRAEN2022F4B 1 HEEHRFFANITESSR
ERPTES TEZEREFE(EFE)E
%> M BE2023F4R1HIEEEZER T RBTTH
BE B2024F1B18HEEEZER T AT RE
K&

FM et B2023F6 B 1 AREEZERRTATH
TESFABE-

BBLEEB023F4F1HEEHERATH
TEERITBMEE -

R B2023F 128 1HEE B ERITES -
HERLTH2023F 128 1HEESEAMITE
%O

PEox #2022 FAF 1 HE AT EEBIE
IFITES

R2023%5F K 20225 » REEILEEEMNEES
S <2 > LUVEA N0 58 2K &2 B 2 7 0 A 7 £ [ BF
B B2 Eh ok B B A E o

B E2023F 12831 HIEFE » 411 (20224 : 3
i) EEREREZEMWE -

(b) EEM=
EEMEr5%ES B1E2I (20224F : 2f1) &
EoHEF BN EAEE10(@) © 8 T3

(20224 : 3fi) BEMMEWT -

2023 2022

HK$’000 T %57 HK$'000 F T

Salaries and other benefits e REMER] 7,795 7,421
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BIREAFHE R 146 118
7,941 7,539

131



132

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2028

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued)

10. EXREEMEEH (B

(b) EEM=E (&)

Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEZMENFLUTAER

2023 2022
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 75 22,000,00078 75 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 22,500,000 75 - 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 75 23,000,000/ 75 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 775 23,500,000/ 75 1 1

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were
within the following bands:

(c) SREEEME

ENHEMESREEENEZMEN FLUTE
il

2023 2022
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 75 %23,000,0007 7T 2 2
11. DIVIDENDS 11. iR2
2023 2022
HK$'000 F#&x  HK$'000 &1
Dividend attributable to the previous financial F—BiEFEERE(LZIRE
year, approved and recognised as KEECHERBERADIR
distribution during the year:
2022 final dividend of nil 2022F KREAREBRAE
(2021 final dividend: HK16.00 cents) (2021 FREARR E : E5216.00381L)
per share - 196,004

The final dividend of HK$3.00 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: nil) per share, amounting to approximately HK$36,751,000 (2022:
nil) has been recommended by the Board and will be subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 of HK$5.30
cents per share, payable on 21 July 2017 and remaining unclaimed on
6 August 2023, were forfeited and reverted to the Company. Details are refer to
announcement on 14 July 2023.

BEEEERNEE2023F12831HLEEE
REARG B = B%3.0078 1l (20224 © ) » & HA
36,751,000/ 75 (20224F : #%) » HEZBERF RN A
NEERERBBEFEARG AR HRES -

HZE2016F 12831 HIEFEEZ RPRESRK
5.0/ » ZB2017E7 821 BT K F20235F
8B 6H Z &k N AR BINZ IR BT LS Wt
BARRNBMB HIEE 2R B A2023F7H14
Hz A%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
A RRNEE (@

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12. B8REF (F18)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable to  AATEE AELESRERREBESRF (B
owners of the Company is based on the following data: 18) THiRE TSR & -

2023 2022

HK$’000 T T HK$'000 T

Earnings/(loss) BH (B518)
Earnings/(loss) for the year attributable to M EEREAKREERT

owners of the Company for the purpose (1) MBEZ AR BHAE A

of computation of basic and diluted FEhEERFERN, (B8

earnings/(loss) per share 50,903 (115,532)

2023 2022

Number of shares Rir& B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FtEt B ESREAREERF

for the purpose of computation of basic (5518) Mz ZERMEF 8 E

and diluted earnings/(loss) per share 1,225,026,960 1,225,026,960
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (a) EREXERF (5i8)

The computation of basic earnings/(loss) per share for the year ended 31 E;ZE2023F12H31HLEESRELREF
December 2023 is based on the earnings attributable to owners of the ./ (1) NERERALATEE AEEEF
Company of HK$50,903,000 (2022: loss attributable to owners of the 50,903,000/ 7T (20224 : & ATHEHE AFEL
Company of HK$115,532,000) and the weighted average of 1,225,026,960 £518115,532,00078 1) & 1,225,026,9600% & &

ordinary shares (2022: 1,225,026,960 ordinary shares) during the year. % (20224 : 1,225,026,9608% 8 A%) AV 0 F
HEBEHE.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) EREERF (EHi8)

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for the &, ZE2023F 12831 H &%2022F12831H L4

years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022. EARBUWEEBRTZEBTHEFE T

e
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A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REWME

HK$'000 F#&7T
Cost 25
At 1 January 2022 20221 B1H 113,160
Currency realignment SN E ZER (7,438)
At 31 December 2022 R2022F 12831 H 105,722
Currency realignment SMEEME ZER (1,118)
Written-off bl 67! (4,179)
At 31 December 2023 22023FE12831H 100,425
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2022 7202281 BA1H 29,965
Currency realignment NI E A RE (1,989)
Provided for the year EFEEEE 5,521
At 31 December 2022 1£2022412831H 33,497
Currency realignment NS R (362)
Provided for the year REERE 5,308
Written-off B/ 6= (627)
At 31 December 2023 22023F12831H 37,816
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2023 22023F12831H 62,609
At 31 December 2022 §£20224F128531H 72,225

The Group’s investment properties consisted of leased properties and leased
pier. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2023 was HK$254,142,000 (31 December 2022: HK$269,517,000). The
fair value of leased properties was HK$230,748,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$245,000,000) and the fair value of leased pier was HK$23,394,000 (31
December 2022: HK$24,517,000) which have been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent property valuer.

The valuation of leased properties was determined by direct comparison
method and term and reversion analysis of investment approach.

AEEBNKREYEREREYELEERS
Ho AREBEREYEN2023F12B31HHA
F(BEA254,142,000% 7¢ (20228128 31
H : 269,517,000 7) - HEYMEN A TFE
E%4230,748,0008 7t (2022128311
245,000,000 7T) REEHENAFEES
23,394,000/ 7t (20224128311 : 24,517,000
BT o ThHRBIUIYEMLEMKFITIHERBS
RABETHGHESHEESH

HENENGEDRERLBUEURRERR
MBS DITEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Direct comparison method is based on the principle of substitution, where
comparison is made based on prices realised on actual sales of comparable
properties. Comparable properties of similar size, scale, nature, character
and location are analysed and carefully weighed against all the respective
advantages and disadvantages of each property in order to arrive at a fair
comparison of market value.

Term and reversion analysis of investment approach estimates the capital value
of a property by capitalised rental income on a fully leased basis having regard
to the current passing rental income from existing tenancy and the potential
reversionary rental income at market level.

The valuation of leased pier was determined by Depreciated Replacement Cost
approach, which is based on an estimate of the market value for the existing
use of the land, plus the current cost of replacement of the improvements less
allowance for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation. The key input of Depreciated Replacement Cost approach is the
building construction cost per square metre. A significant increase/decrease in
building construction cost per metre used would result in a significant increase/
decrease in the fair value of the leased pier.

The valuation of leased properties takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which include the location, size, shape, view, floor level,
year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market
price. The key input of direct comparison method is the unit market price. A
significant increase/decrease in the market price would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the leased properties.

Significant unobservable inputs were used in the valuation of investment
properties. The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
18, Fair value measurement. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. The fair value measurement is based on the
above properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of 20 to 50 years or period of the lease term.

All of the investment properties of the Group are held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation.

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

13. REWE (B

ERLEBUEADUBRRRASERE MR R
FILEBRMEBRIBEBRZBREL K/ R
BB B ERE 2 P LB X5
REVEZ AR EET O RFHEEE KU
ERNAFTHELR

REMBMOERDMEDEE BIIRABEAN
EHESWRANDIZKFRBEEERERHEZUA
WERL R2REEEAERHESWABERL
st — B ENELREE

HENBENGENRTESENSEZET &
TAEDRBLIHHIREBRBE N EFL G
MEEREEEENREAEBEERERER
FRERBEANREREBIESE - NEEEN
FENEBZHABIERST T RKBEBRENAE -
BTAHRNEERETKRE LA THREHRE
ERBEZ ATEEARELA T

HEMELEREEZERENDEZBERNE
BREMERT R RB BB ERFEN K
HEER > WSHEAHHER BREBEZ
TEHABBREUTHER HIHERKE
ER/THREEHEEMEZ ATEEKREL
Ft/ Tk

EARTIRERAAZESEDARKREYES
HME-REVEZRATEERETBMBREE
AIBI3E AT EBESEFMRENIRAFEE
BHRIETZBIMEEEATFEEFE-RNBE
FERBZAERNREZLS QAT EEFE
DERUEEMEZRSREERERKE K
ST BRABILEER -

LB ERER20E50F HHEFH
UUBIEE R %) E-

AEBEMBEREVEDFIFRIVES NE AL
&e
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ARG M ERAR M

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H831H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. YE B Rz

Leasehold Furniture,
Freehold land and fixtures and Plant and Motor Construction
land buildings  equipment  machinery vehicles in progress Total
KAHEMN HEm fRffh
i THMERY RERRE BERES BEH  EEIE B
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost WA
At 1 January 2022 R2022E1818 2450 1,022,243 977814 2,227,950 21,359 25738 4,277,554
Currency realignment SMERBES - (4,584) (19,367) (5,709) (737) (254) (30,651)
Additions #hm = - 22,798 86,276 S 54,557 163,631
Transfer from construction in progress HRBTRTRE - 25,080 39,575 3,098 - (67,759) -
Disposals/written-off HE /HiH - (37) (7,459) (39,786) (1,936) - (49,212)
At 31 December 2022 12022128318 2450 1042702 1013367 2,271,829 18,686 12288 4,361,322
Currency realignment IMEHEELE 5 (527) (3.271) (285) (34) 42) (4,154)
Additions s - 19 18,204 14,295 - 60,353 87,871
Transfer from construction in progress HERTRIR - - 21,247 17,008 - (38,255) -
Disposals/written-off (note J HE /W (i) - (51,690) (79,071) (60,612) (2,415) - (193,788)
At 31 December 2023 12023E128318 2,455 990,504 965476 2,242,235 16,237 34344 4251251
Depreciation and impairment FERAE
At 1 January 2022 12022E1818 - 619,786 705296 1,599,205 17,162 - 2041449
Currency realignment IMEREER - (2,645) (7,884) (1618) (178) - (12,325)
Provided for the year REERME - 38,353 39,348 93,038 1,124 - 171,863
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /MisER - (22) (6,810) (38,604) (1,876) - (47,312)
At 31 December 2022 12020128318 - 655,472 729950 1,652,021 16,232 - 3053675
Currency realignment MEHEER - (376) (1,555) 96) (25) - (2,052)
Provided for the year REERME - 37,994 41528 91,561 754 - 171,837
Eliminated on disposals/written-off (note j) & /MisHEs hes (Hfzti) - (40,638) (71,699) (60,572) (2,256) - (175,165)
At 31 December 2023 12023E128318 - 652,452 698,224 1,682,914 14,705 - 304829
Carrying values REfE
At 31 December 2023 12023128318 2,455 338,052 267,252 559,321 1,532 34344 1,202,956
At 31 December 2022 12022128318 2,450 387,230 283,417 619,808 2,454 12288 1,307,647

The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated, after
taking into account of their estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis.

LR E B RREBERE ZRAREARKSE
Z A RIREERUBEGETE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Property, plant and equipments of approximately HK$17,973,000 represents
buildings located in the Jiangyin City, the PRC and was disposed due to the Land
Resumption Agreement entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023. Further details of the Land Resumption Agreement are set out in
note 9(b) and note 9(iv).

During the year, as the result of the unexpected poor performance of the
manufacturing plants, and further reduction in production capacity of the fabric
mill operated by Jiangyin Fuhui announced on 5 February 2024, the Group
carried out a review of the recoverable amount of the related property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets under the CGU. The
poor performance of the manufacturing plants can be attributed to the pronounced
slowdown of global economic and industry growth. These assets are used in the
Group’s production and sales of dyed fabrics and yarns.

The Group has engaged an independent professional valuer, Pretium Advisory
Services Limited, to review the VIU of the CGU. The valuation method of
discounted cash flow was adopted for the calculation of the VIU using the income
approach.

For the production and sales of dyed fabrics and yarns in the PRC and Hong Kong,
the assessment assumes that, due to the recovery of global economic and industry
growth and demand of dyed fabrics and yarns is forecasted with steady growth
under the streamlined production lines. Management determined budgeted gross
margins based on past performance, existing sales contracts, and expectations
for market development. A five-year forecast is considered appropriate. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated by using the estimated terminal growth
rate of 3% as at 31 December 2023. The estimated average annual revenue
growth rate of 8.1% (2022: nil) is similar to the average growth rate for the industry
(China Home Textile Market's most recent 5-year forecast is 7.4%). Other key
assumptions for the VIU calculation include cost of raw materials such as cotton
and yarns. Cash outflows include capital and maintenance expenditure including
the purchase of plant and machinery and other equipment. The discount rate used
of 10% (2022: nil) is pre-tax and reflects the specific risks related to the relevant
CGU.

The Group estimated the VIU of the CGU and also estimated the fair value less
costs of disposal of the land and buildings and investment properties which is
based on recent market prices of assets with similar age and obsolescence. Details
of valuation please refer to note 13. The assessment results show that recoverable
amounts of the CGU are higher than the carrying amounts of the CGU as at 31
December 2023 and consequently no impairment is recongised (2022: nil).

ir e SRR (B)
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14. ME - BRKRERE @
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(i)

WD IR KRR (IR R ED IR EEY) 49
17,973,000/ 70 > W A A E B E E20235F12
B31BIEFEFI Iz T B HBZEMPEEE o
=l gt R A E N DA (0))5+4
EIVE

RAEFE > ENREMBNRRENRTER LUKk
TLP2EEEN2024F 2850 S E—F IR E K
IRER AEBHREELBEM THNEREY
E HBERRE REVEUREREEENT
WEEEEEETRN -RERERRKETH
AR 2REERTELERBEARE ZFEE
ARAERSERIHERR R -

AEE B SZEE L EEMERMPretium Advisory
Services LimitedZ®E IR E LB ANEREE.
S EEREER THEA WA AL RMALIR
HemEWmER e

MR PERE BN ERBERH RS F
EBRRBAREREERTERENRE  EF
MEEFSNBERT B RO ERETEE
SHE - SEERBBTES BEHEGOK
HEBEENBREEEEEN R - AEH%E
BWRABEE AERBNIEESREER
2023512331 H 2 st R RRI%HEE o
EET P EE IR ERE.1% (20224F ) &
FTEEHHERER (FEARGHSRIINASE
EAA7.4%) st EEREENEMFIERSRE
FEEMB A R - REREBREEAR
HELTH BIEEERE IR R EMSREF
FMEEIREA10% (20224 : ) > BIRATALIR
o R T MRS ELEBUNETE AR -

AERGHREELEBUNERES FES
AFEERLMRERYUARKEYENEE
A HLERERBEURKAMRERENE
ERAATE ARGEZFBEFSHEINE13.

AW El&5E4858 T HIREE > ALK
SRME (20224 © 4E) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
RAEMBRRAEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. FHEEE
Land and
buildings Equipment Machinery Total
TR B EY = iE 2% 4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2022 R2022%F181H 195,169 228 1,464 196,861
Currency realignment HNHE A BT 2 (1,136) = = (1,136)
Additions B0 27,675 - - 27,675
Depreciation e (28,529) (182) (155) (28,866)
At 31 December 2022 72022812831H 193,179 46 1,309 194,534
Currency realignment SN E ERR (140) = 3 (137)
Additions )i 2,202 540 - 2,742
Disposals (note i) HE H) (6,466) - - (6,466)
Depreciation e (28,0393) (127) (154) (28,314)
Effect of modification (note i) 1851 2§28 (1 52ii) 9,005 - - 9,005
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F12H31H 169,747 459 1,158 171,364
Note: Bzt

U]

(i)

Right-of-use assets of approximately HK$6,466,000 represents land use right
located in the Jiangyin City, the PRC was disposed due to the Land Resumption
Agreement entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023.
Further details of the Land Resumption Agreement are set out in note 9(b) and note
9(iv).

Right-of-use assets of approximately HK$804,000 and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$1,581,000 were derecognised due to early termination of leases
while additions of right-of-use assets of approximately HK$9,809,000 and lease
liabilities of approximately HK$9,809,000 were recognised due to modification to
lease terms during the year ended 31 December 2023. The lease modifications are
resulted in a gain on lease modification of HK$777,000.

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying
assets is as follows:

M

(i)

ERAEEE (IR PEIRRHMN L ERE 4
#56,466,00078 7t » I (Al A5 B /R & = 20235F12
B1HIEEET Iz TR S M b e
BRAT BN E— P F BP0k
M3 5E9(iv)

HZE2023F 12831 IEEE > RIZpKEHE
M4 IEFE SR R R EE4V804,0008 T R FHE &
15491,581,000/8 70> IR R E KR 2 E KM

RIS BB E 499,809,000 T RIEE S
&#99,809,0007 7t - A E B L E £ H E 152Uk
& 777,00058 7T ©

RIEMEERR B D2 EAREEREFED
FanT

At 31 December At 31 December

128318 128318
2023 2022
HK$'000 F#&7r  HK$000 75T
Ownership interests in leasehold land and REEL M REEY 2 B R
buildings, carried at depreciated cost with BITERASERGFE THERS !
remaining lease term of:
— 30 years or more - 30F U £ 67,088 75,813
— between 10 and 30 years - 10 K30FE 2~ [H 8,744 9,094
Other properties leased for own use, HEEFBRZHME
carried at depreciated cost T EE A AN H B 93,915 108,272
Plant, machinery and equipment, B ~ 14 28 Ko 5 Ml 0 W ITE R A&
carried at depreciated cost 1,617 1,355
171,364 194,534
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
A RRNEE (@

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. HthiB B &

Software
/g
HK$'000
FAET
Cost D%
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, 1R2022F1H1H ~2022%F12831H ~
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 20231810 K20235F12831H 31,267
Amortisation N
At 1 January 2022 7202218 1H 25,237
Provided for the year BEERE 3,015
At 31 December 2022 1202212 H31H 28,252
Provided for the year BEERE 3,015
At 31 December 2023 12023F12H31H 31,267
Carrying values IREE
At 31 December 2023 72023512831 H -
At 31 December 2022 1202212 H31H 3,015

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. R—REE AT 2 ¥

At 31 December

B L

i T

At 31 December

#¥12831H P12831H

2023 2022

HK$°000 T %77 HK$'000 T BT

Unlisted investment, at cost JELMKE U ESIE 16,204 16,204
Share of post-acquisition profits FE{L UL EE R R A 8,715 7,563
24,919 23,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022 are as follows:

17. R—EBEQR 2= (8

REFBE AT F2023F 12831 H K&20224F12
B31HZEBWT :

Percentage
Form of of ownership
business Place of Place of operation and interests/voting
Name structure incorporation principal activities rights/profit share
FRiGBE R RS
=1 it Bl 3z BRE#E
tE EREBEN P EEFMEMREEET BRFBESLE
REMBEKBERAR Corporation The PRC Construction and managing 30%
of sewage treatment plant
in the PRC
=] lE RS EIR5KEIE/R

The primary business of BRFEMBEKIEBRAR is engaged in construction
and managing of sewage treatment plant in Dongguan of Guangdong
Province.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information of an associate that is not individually
material:

REMBEKBZERABDNEEZXFHNERSE
REMRERNEETKEER -

LB ERB U E ARG M BERES
o
ERFBEEBMEAT ZMHFERRL

2023 2022
HK$’000 F#&T HK$'000 T BT

The Group’s share of profit from NEFELFELSES X BT

continuing operations 1,152 169
The Group’s share of other AEEFELHEMEEmNG

comprehensive income - -
The Group’s share of total AEBRGE2EW@EE

comprehensive income 1,152 169
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

18. DEFERRED TAX

The major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods are as
follows:

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

18. IEIEMIA

AEBRAREHBRBERSHBEBNE
BREREGE,/ E&E REZHNT !

Accelerated

Right-of-use Lease tax Tax

assets liabilities depreciation losses Others Total
EREEE HESE RARERE MIEEE Hith wE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FEr FET FEr FET FET FEr

(note)

Hizt)
At 1 January 2022 H20206E1 818 25,990 (37,921) 15,124 (737) (63,654) (61,198)
Charged to profit or loss PEFERAIN R 1,421 1,898 15,767 170 1,281 20,537
Currency realignment SMEMEE R 19 9 116 - 409 553
At 31 December 2022 R2022512831H 27,430 (36,014) 31,007 (567) (61,964) (40,108)
Charged to profit or loss BRI (2,789) 3,830 (2,521) 183 8,128 6,831
Currency realignment INEIMEERR (67) (88) 59 - 234 138
At 31 December 2023 120234128318 24,574 (32,272) 28,545 (384) (53,602) (33,139)
Note: The amount represents mainly deferred tax assets arising from unrealised profit on ~ #/3Z . AREREETERFENREREA - WZEH

inventories, provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment, provision for
ECL on trade and bills receivables, and other receivables, write-down of inventories,
unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment between subsidiaries and
deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax charged on two PRC/overseas
subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$473 million (31 December 2022: HK$221 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$2 million (31 December 2022: HK$3 million) of such losses,
which represent tax losses incurred by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries as
it is considered by the management that future taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$471 million (31 December 2022:
HK$218 million) tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had unused tax losses not recognised
of approximately HK$363 million (31 December 2022: HK$197 million) arose
in PRC to carry forward to set off against future taxable profit which will expire
within 1 to 5 years from each of the financial year end date. Remaining unused
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

BRRENRERR EERZREWRIE
MR EMEWRIENTRRESRRERE 7
Bl WEB AR 2 EH SR RREBENR
BIRWEPTEENEERBEEE LU Hm
IR B 78 5 MY B A B UL B0 TR0 A8 P 2 4
BYEERIEA A

R2023%F 12831 H » AEE O] BEHKIH KK
BN RERRIBEEAA473,000,000% 7T
(2022128318 : 221,000,000 7T) ° MLt
IEE518 492,000,000 7T (20228128311
3,000,000/ 70) EERA—HIRELERIEEE b
AR BETHEABRMELENRIEERE K&
BEEEBEZERARKRNERRBA R TERILL
TRIEES 18 o 82 7 471,000,000 7T (2022F 124
31H : 218,000,000/ T) AKREFE AR RN E
MR A B R AEIERIBE 2 © i20234F
128310 » REBR F B E4E R RER KRR
SR TERS 1849 7363,000,00058 71 (20224128
31H : 197,000,000 7T) » UAEEIKIHAE R 5@
B EUAE B 45 58 H AR 1 B 54 N B HR B R AR FEZR AR
B o 87 T R BB 1B E5 18 0] 5 [R 2 #h &
1Zo

2023 %K 141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

In addition, at 31 December 2023, the Group had other deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$30 million (31 December 2022: HK$24 million)
mainly consist of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment between
subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance for ECL on trade and
bills receivables, and other receivables, and inventories. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it
is not certain that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned in the
calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies established
in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong and holds at least 25%
of the equity interest in the PRC company, reduced rate of 5% will be applied.
Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to retained profits of the wholly-
owned PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$438,098,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$329,687,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in respect
of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits after 1 January
2008 of a partially-owned PRC subsidiary amounting to HK$48,775,000 (31
December 2022: HK$29,661,000).

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:

18. IEIETRIA (18)

IE4h » FA2023F 12831 H » & B E th 7] 038
B 2 F849/430,000,00058 75 (2022412831
H :24,000,00087T) » FEBZHWBEB AR ZME
BWRERERBENREBNE FENRER
B EERERREWEIE UK HMEWSRIE
HIEHEEEERUNRGEER B EARFERTRE
SRR B A BT VEHE 84 It BT 4005 B R = 2B 0 Bk
BRI EREEARIERIEEE

RIECZERERE > BH2008FE1B1HEE  pArR
B AL I A B MBI G EE R E 120088
ERUEEENRAEGEIKRE BEMNI0%
ISR NESEMALEREETARR
ARV NERNREE  BEAERRE
5% o F K 7 2 @ 0] LAY 6 8 By = BE ¥ [B] 2 B
B MEREZEBERIENEERAZREE
WIEAMEETENBRAARERMN Y
BF 7Z= FH438,098,00078 7T (20224128311
329,687,000 7T) 4R & M TR 3R A E H 4R IE
TRIEHEH

R2023F 128318 AEEEM—EIEEZEZ
R B B A B FR2008E1 B1H B 2 A D IRE A
48,775,0007 7t (2022412831H : 29,661,000
B7T) 2 AN HHEIEERIEEHE

ARG MBRARNESMS » & TELERR
EEREEDHEHF - UTEMNERMSHIEL
MIBFEER DT

At 31 December At 31 December

#12H31H M12H31H

2023 2022

HK$’000 F#&7T HK$'000 T BT

Deferred tax assets RERIBE & (41,969) (53,030)
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 8,830 12,922
(33,139) (40,108)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
A RRNEE (@

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

19. INVENTORIES 19. &
At 31 December At 31 December
128318 R12831H
2023 2022
HK$’000 T % HK$'000 F T
Spare parts B 29,129 33,417
Raw materials il 228,013 270,560
Work-in-progress FEE 266,623 313,308
Finished goods B 260,143 312,241
783,908 929,526

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

20. EXRFEBURIA

At 31 December

At 31 December

®12831H 128318

2023 2022

HK$°000 T %77 HK$'000 F BT

Trade receivables A E ] 720,569 797,805
Bills receivables ER RIS 122,661 183,025
Less: allowance for ECL B ARG EREIERG (35,139) (652,109
808,091 928,721

The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 60 days
to its trade customers. The Group’s bills receivables were all aged within two
months and were neither past due nor impaired. The expected credit losses for
bills receivables are assessed to be minimal. The following is an ageing analysis
of trade and bills receivables based on the invoice dates, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates, as at the end of the reporting period:

AEBBERMENFOKREOREERTHE
RER - EEZ BEBUWHRIARE I WE
A A R 3t 5 38 B SR (B - RIRFE WGRIBRY TR HA
EEERETEBMIEM EXREHEBK
MIRZEZEH (RARKARSEBES) IR

HREHRBIERE DT T :

At 31 December

At 31 December

®12H31H R12H31H

2023 2022

HK$'000 F#;r  HK$'000 FET

Within 1 month ENEER 384,120 400,699
1 to 2 months 1222 267,879 274,643
2 to 3 months 2Z 3@ A 98,811 136,582
Over 3 months RIEN= 92,420 168,906
843,230 980,830

Less: allowance for ECL B TEHRE EEERE (35,139) (62,109
808,091 928,721
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A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are made to
customers with satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits attributed to
customers are reviewed regularly.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade and bills receivables.

No interest is charged on the overdue trade receivables.

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are
estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. The Group
has assessed bills receivables whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group considers that there is no
significant increase in credit risk of bills receivables since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on 12-month ECL. The Group
recognised impairment loss on trade and bills receivables based on the
accounting policy stated in note 4(i)ii).

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
debtors and bills receivables are set out in note 37(b).

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

At 31 December 2023, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable accepted by
banks in the PRC (the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in
aggregate of HK$43,795,000 (2022: HK$54,550,000). The Derecognised Bills
had a maturity of within one to six months (2022: within one year) from the end
of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse
against the Group if the relevant banks in the PRC default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills.
Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to
their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

20. EXRFEEBURIE (8)

AEERZWNEMMZLA EFEZEBEER
FREEEEAAEHEERE-FEHER
ST EESBRENER -EREEIRETE
HAF DU ST o

AEET ENE X REREBERRERFA TR
Hame

BB R BUCRIBEREHF B o

AEERENFRABREEGEENTRETE
EEBURIARB B - & X BUGRIENTEH
FEBREZEEHFANBREENERKEE
BAERF R RH D B R HERETER
WARBR R EBHEFANBTERR BHA
TR ETENERQEIRRERAIRA LA
RIBA A EETRAE AEECHERRE
BUWHREZ EEREBEVIEERURESEE
10 - AL BRI » BIREUGRK
HZEERRITEBRERM MAEBRRER2
BREMEEHETIRAERRS ~EERE
B EE4>) () P& I B TR D E X R RIEIE
WORIERY R E TR K

ERAEEEERRRREBYIRRRER
BRENEEREBRNE - P FFHNMEE
37(b)°

ERRIEINCERTHEE

R2023F 12831 AEBREE THER
HEETENIRTEMNETEEEIKSRIE
(MRIEBREE)) UEEREEES LA
43,795,0007 75 (20224 : 54,550,000 7T) BY
RATZE MR E E BRI RIREHAA
BIFERERNEERAS1E6ER (20224F 1
FER) RIFFEERE  MEMPENIERITE
HORAREEIERFEAGAERFTBRRE
(FE2H) - AN ESRRA AERAEHE
BAEBKRIEEDRZERNEAIE D AR RO
Bt EBUHMRKL IR EE MRS EE
IRENEHREE AERRFESHK L
BAZEERABLOZ SR IEEIZENARMR
ReEREMERNRAEBAENERTE X
NEEEDRA AERZFES AR IEEIE
BHNATBELAEZAK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

21. FATRRIE e R HE Mt TRIE

RECEIVABLES

At 31 December At 31 December
#12A31H 712831H
2023 2022
HK$’000 F#E7x  HK$'000 T &1
Value-add tax recoverable AIUg Bl (E R 9,201 15,524
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &< ~ JB{J 7B R H 1 EWRIE 132,153 99,428

Receivables from compensation of land T E R UGRIE (B L)
resumption (note) 228,698 -
Less: allowance for ECL B TEHRE EEERE - =
370,052 114,952

Opening provision for impairment of FHEMEWTIEZ BERE
other receivables - 6,115
Reversed during the year F Aol = (6,105)
Currency realignment MBI ZER = (10)

FRAEMBURIBZ RERE

Closing provision for impairment of
other receivables

The Group has assessed deposits and other receivables whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The
Group considers that there is no significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12-month ECL. As at 31 December 2023, deposits and other receivables
with gross amount of HK$248,473,000 (2022: HK$18,453,000) are without
significant increase in credit risk on which 12-month ECL of nil (2022: nil) were
recognised.

Note:

The amount refers to the compensation receivable from the Local Government in Jiangyin
Fuhui. It is expected to receive from the Local Government in 2024 in accordance
with the Land Resumption Agreement. The Group has assessed receivables from
compensation of land resumption whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. The Group considered that no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12-month ECL. As at 31 December 2023, such receivables with gross amount
of HK$228,698,000 (2022: nil) are without significant increase in credit risk on which
12-month ECL of nil (2022: nil) were recognised.

AEFCETEREREMERZREBEZEER
S EVRERURETEEL N  AEEDA
BYEESEUKR ZERBE2EER R &
BEEMN MAEEREI2EBEHEERS
BETIR A B o 1R2023F 12331 H » 4858 4
248,473,00078 75 (20224 : 18,453,000 7T) Z
e REMBWRIBIGEE R & B E LN
BEHRI2EREHEESEAZ (20224F :

) o

Miat -

ZRIEE IR EERWE BTN mE BtBn
2024 1RIE MR IHE B B BT WE - AEEE
S FEW LU E 2 E B R B A 1a R eB LUk
EEREERN -AEERLE ZEREZFEARKE
VIARESR LR B E LN MAEBIRE12EAE
HAE BB E R - 1R2023F 128310 » 4228
#228,698,0003 7T ( 20224 : &) WA RSEWRIE >
EERRTEBRELN B EREER12EL T8
EEFE1E (20224F @ ) o
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22. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2023, restricted bank deposits of HK$1,897,000 (31
December 2022: HK$5,457,000) mainly represented guaranteed deposits
placed in the banks in the PRC and Sri Lanka as securities for the bills
payables and bank overdraft.

23. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances, for the purpose of meeting the
Group’s short term cash commitment, carry market interest rates ranging from
0.01% to 6.61% (31 December 2022: 0.01% to 8.50%) per annum.

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

22, ZRHIRITER

7120235128310 » Z [R&IIR1TER1,897,000
HIT (20224F128318 : 5,457,000 7T) = E15
ERRHERESTEEFIRITIEAZEEMRIE
K RIT BT IRIRN B IERER

23. FEHRIRITE R R IRITHEER R E

MEITAEB PR EAEMS  EEET
ERRIRITAA RN F0.01%E6.61% (2022
F12831H : 0.01%=E8.50%) 2 hiHEFNFK5t+
Bo

24, BEREEENFIA

At 31 December At 31 December

®12H831H R12831H

2023 2022

HK$’000 T35  HK$'000 TF#7T

Trade payables EERNNIE 533,243 386,071
Bills payables ER R IE 118,328 105,228
651,571 491,299

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on the
invoice dates, as at the end of the reporting period:

EEMNZBEERMRERERQRRERSHZY
SRl DA ¢

At 31 December At 31 December

®12H831H R®12831H

2023 2022

HK$000 F#7;r  HK$'000 FET

Within 1 month EENEEN 430,215 260,063
1 to 2 months 1E2E A 135,777 146,126
2 to 3 months 2E3(EH 30,212 39,177
Over 3 months 3ER UL 55,367 45,933
651,571 491,299

All the bills payables of the Group were not yet due at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2023, bills payables of HK$1,103,000 (31 December 2022:

HK$19,200,000) were secured by the Group’s restricted bank deposits of
HK$221,000 (31 December 2022: HK$3,840,000).

The credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to 120 days.

REEHE 2EBZFARBEBARIESR
Z|HR -

7R2023FE 12831 H » ZE¥RE(IRIE1,103,0008
70 (202245128318 : 19,200,000 70) J5HZA
EE/ 2 ZRHIEEITFER221,00058 7T (20224512
H31H : 3,840,000 7T) fEAHKIF

BERNEEMRNMFI0REI20K



25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
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31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

At 31 December

25. BT RIEREtER

At 31 December

®12831H R12831H

2023 2022

HK$°000 T %77 HK$'000 F T

Other payables HihE g 109,551 131,289
Accruals FEsTE 180,411 243,551
289,962 374,840

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

26. BB E

At 31 December

FEEBHERUTWAERGNER

At 31 December

128318 »128331H
2023 2022
HK$'000 F#5;r  HK$'000 FET
Contract liabilities = I=N 19,712 21,216
Movements in contract liabilities SHNaBNES
2023 2022
HK$'000 F#;r  HK$'000 FET
At 1 January »1B1H 21,216 32,701
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of ~RHERNEREVNTAGLHEEN
recognising revenue during the year that WAMERGHNEERD
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (21,109) (32,131)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of AW EZEFRNENREMERN
advanced consideration received from BHBEEMN
customers 19,712 21,216
Currency realignment NI A ER (107) (570)
At 31 December (note 6) W128318 #at6) 19,712 21,216

Contract liabilities included advances received to deliver dyed fabrics, yarns
and garments. In general, the Group receives certain percentage of the
contract sum as advance payment from the customers upon signing the sales

contracts.

Igo

BNEREERN &M W KA E R TE
B —RME > A&EE
BEREMEGHNEZMVET A LIERATRUM

RBRBHESNER
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions from which it
operates. The Group leases various factories, staff quarters, offices premises,
warehouse and machinery and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods from 2 to 50 years for land and buildings and 2 years for
machinery. All rental contracts comprise only fixed payments over the lease
terms.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:
e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing

conditions since third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk of lessee; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and
security.

27. HE&RE
AEEBZHE (FAEEA)

AEBRHEEEZRAMEHEEZEYE K
EEHEXHAIBR BEIES MAEWE B
B Fete 83 Fe st - THE & 49— AR I [E & FF A2
E50F (LM RBEYMES) K2F L%z
B U -FTEHESNESSNAERFER
REATTR e

BN 2EERIFEEMEMED - AEHR
BHERIFAEMERED 2 ENEBERS R’
BNZNEDEERERIFEEMEME D

HEMRENEEETER BESZER
BRI AR - HEHE A G R A2 78
EBEETSRFEERZIER-

HEMARNDEAEERS ZHMEREER - HEE
HPEEZANER (FRERZEASREBML) -8
fERAME A Z 18 BEMF X BIMER ABE AR
BLUEERBREBELUER BRREGSE
ANRGHREAREEBEREZEEMRZE
TR A Z R

MEEREEMANE AL

o  ERIBEBR NMEAERABANLHEREZ
BZTRMEFAER WIFHBEURER
BESSE=AMELURRERT 2 &) ;

s FREEMZE BAMABAZEERES
BERRAZX, K

o HWHEFHETHE MEH BR &K
yrEiiiik
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

27. HE&E @

2023 ##% 149

Land and

Lease liabilities HeEaE buildings Equipment Machinery Total
T R BEY g 123 WA

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAET FAET FAET

At 1 January 2022 20221 81H 153,859 241 871 154,971
Additions =0 27,614 - - 27,614
Interest expense AMEXH 7,918 4 17 7,939
Lease payments HEME (34,207) (196) (892) (35,295)
Currency realignment IMNEEIAE E B (12,231) - 4 (12,227)
At 31 December 2022 12022F12831H 142,953 49 - 143,002
Additions a0 2,202 540 - 2,742
Interest expense AMEXH 6,990 10 - 7,000
Lease payments MHE™ME (33,7593 (135) - (33,8898)
Effect on modification (note ) 1828 > F28 (#1521 8,228 - - 8,228
Currency realignment SN = ER (1,611) - - (1,611)
At 31 December 2023 2023FE12831H 125,009 464 - 125,473

Note: HiaE -

(i) Right-of-use assets of approximately HK$804,000 and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$1,581,000 were derecognised due to early termination of leases
while additions of right-of-use assets of approximately HK$9,809,000 and lease
liabilities of approximately HK$9,809,000 were recognised due to modification to
lease terms during the year ended 31 December 2023. The lease modifications are
resulted in a gain on lease modification of HK$777,000.

The analysis of the present value of future lease payments is as follows:

() BEZE2023F12831HIEEE > FZRIKILHEE
M IEFE SR AR B E4804,0008 TR HEA
&#91,581,00078 7t » [F] B A & & R 2 (& 2

SRS N R AEE E499,809,00058 T A E
1£#99,809,0007 7t © FA E & o & 4 FE E (& 2k
T 777,000 7 ©

RKREERBEZREDHNT :

At 31 December At 31 December

®12831H 128318

2023 2022

HK$000 F#5c  HK$'000 F&7T

Current liabilities mEEE 26,239 26,768
Non-current liabilities EREFEE 99,234 116,234
125,473 143,002
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 27. fHE &/ (@
2023 2022
HK$000 F#&57x  HK$'000 FE7T
Short-term leases expenses SHATRE S 2,213 7,285
Aggregate undiscounted commitments RALIRAHATE B AR 4L %R
for short-term leases 38 311
Total cash outflows for leases which includes FAEIRERHAL%E (BELZNHEESEDN
payments of principal and interest portion KERFMEZD) RIEPHAESEH
of lease liabilities and short-term leases
expenses 36,101 42,580

28. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

28. RIFERKRR —HBEATMR

SHAREHOLDERS/AN ASSOCIATE |
(a) Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders (a) RIEERRERARIE
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRHBEAEIEF - REKREERER
(b) Amount due to an associate (b) X—EHEATRIE

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable with agreed 30 to 60 HRAFIEAEEXIF £ B KR BN30ECOKTHE

days credit period. EEHAREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

29. DEFERRED INCOME

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

29, IRZEW A

At 31 December At 31 December
128318 12831H
2023 2022

HK$’000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FE7T

Arising from government grants (notes i and i) FRE T w8 BE P EE 4 (B &2 Kili) 51,992 53,771
Arising from rental income (note i) B EWARTES B5#i) 20,439 27,614
72,431 81,385
Current R 4,699 5,231
Non-current JETRED 67,732 76,154
72,431 81,385
Notes: Mzt -

i

i)

In 2008, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$72,912,000 for the
purchase of certain assets, which had been deferred to recognise as income over
the useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfilment of the relevant conditions.
The Group has no unfulfilled conditions attaching to the government grants.

In 2021, the Group received the rental income of HK$33,941,000 for the leasing of
three investment properties, which had been deferred to recognise as income over
the rental periods of 9 to 10 years.

In 2022, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$832,000 for the
purchase of machinery, which had been deferred to recognise as income over the
useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfillment of the relevant conditions. The
Group has no unfulfilled conditions attaching to the government grants.

) R2008%F  AEE S W —THBF#R572,912,000
B ARBEETEE HESRERBRE
HREPEAHMEERRFHEID[VRA - FEH
3t 5 522 35 T 48 B P B 7 RO SR BRI £ o

i) H2021F  AEBEBWREHA=EREYEAE
E U 33,941,000 7t > B 1% EAOE10F IR IE
HEEBSUA

i)y FR2022% » A E B W —IEEUT 15 BE832,00078
7T AREEMES BN EMRER G GERR
EREEFERFHRERAWA - REEIEZ
LH AR A B R E A1 o
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30. BANK BORROWINGS

30. R1TIREE

At 31 December At 31 December

128318 128318
2023 2022
HK$'000 F&x  HK$'000 &7
Unsecured borrowings: mITIMESE !
Bank loans RITER 154,435 418,850
Import bills loans EOER 45,122 17,398
199,557 436,248
Repayable as follows: AR THHAEEE
On demand or within one year (note) EEREBEIIFA (i) 108,471 200,734
More than one year, but not exceeding 1FE L L EFRBE2F
two years 91,086 123,343
More than two years, but not exceeding 2F D HERBIASE
five years - 112,171
199,557 436,248
Less: Amounts repayable on demand B AR EERERERS
or due within one year shown 1FEANEHIERE
under current liabilities
— bank borrowings due within —1FRNEHNIRITEES
one year (108,471) (200,734)
Amounts due after one year 1E%EIREE 91,086 235,514

Note: As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the current liabilities include all bank loans that
are scheduled to repay within one year.

The bank borrowings with carrying amount of HK$199,557,000 (2022:
HK$304,701,000), including bank loans and import bills loans, of the Group
are variable rate borrowings which carry interest at the Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus a spread, ranging from 0.7% to 2.15% (2022:
0.95% to 2.25%) or Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) plus a
spread, ranging from 0.7% to 1.8% (2022: London Interbank offered Rate
plus a spread, ranging from 0.95% to 1.8%) per annum. The average effective
interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group is 5.99% (2022: 2.64%) per
annum. As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings with carrying amount of
HK$131,547,000 (2023: nil) carry interest at fixed rates ranging from 0.70% to
3.85% (2023: nil) per annum.

Pursuant to the Group’s banking facilities letters, the Group was required to
maintain a number of covenant ratios. During the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, the Group had complied with all covenant ratios.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s borrowings with the carrying amount
of HK$154,435,000 (2022: HK$287,846,000) are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios. If the Group were
to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable on
demand. The Group regularity monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note
37. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached.

H1aE . FR2023F K2022%12831H  REEEEIE

FREZEMERIIBBERZRITEN

NEBEBRMEE199,557,000E 75 (20224
304,701,000 7t) WIRTTEE (BEIRITER
REOED) AFEEE BEBRTRAERE
(TEBRTHEERED MEEENF0.7%E
2.15% (20224 : 0.95%F2.25%) B ERIG
RREMNE TEHEFRIERHBENZE) NMLEE
EZNF0.7%E1.8% (20224F : BBERITRIZE
HFEEMEBENF0.95%FE1.8%) 2 FH st
B oAREFIRTEEZFHERENEA5.99%
(20224F : 2.64%) °jR2022F12831H 7 BRE
18131,547,0005 70 (20234 : &) HIRITHEETL

BEEEMNENF0.70%%E3.85% (2023¢ ,m)
+I%\ °

RIEAEENRTRERG  NERBHEITH
B L « R E F 20234 20228 12831H
WEEE REBBEBFMAZNEEo

R2023F12A31H AEEEEES
154,435,000 70 (20224 : 287,846,000 7T)
Eﬁfﬁk:@%ﬁéﬁ%?ﬁ%lﬁﬁ“tﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ@ﬂ
o WMANERIERZHE  FTENNRERBEER
z‘széi $$%Eﬁﬁﬁ* B EBFZERENE
/R cHMEAEBEERBESRARMNE—TE
B &M 5ES7 © 7220234 K&2022F12H831H »
MEACRNRERRNZEEER
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. g%
At 31 December At 31 December
12831H R128318
2023 2022
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
BRHEE FAET g 4= FAET
Ordinary shares, TERR BETRER
issued and fully paid
At beginning and at end RER R F#E
of the year 1,225,026,960 889,810 1,225,026,960 889,810

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value.

32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

RBEBFBRABFRE (B
AE AL R EEE

32. JEEERGHE R

62225) H1351& » AN F]

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited, a 60% (2022: 60%) owned subsidiary of the Z&AT PR —RMEB AT S FE+ FAA) BEA

Company, has material non-controlling interests (‘NCI”). The NCI of all other
subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the Group are considered not to be s (TFFIERG

material.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of Ocean Lanka (Private)
Limited, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

SIHEB60% (20224F : 60%) RERERYEE K IEIZRS
51) cMIEFHAEBFHESE100%

BmZ B HEMNB AR Z IFEREDRDA

WAEKe

REBRNBEHEZA AREFE T A A
RABIIFZEREGHNMEMHBENZ5)I0TF

2023 2022
HK$'000 F#&x  HK$'000 F&T

For the year ended 31 December HBE12A31HILLEE
Revenue =5 817,443 916,806
Profit for the year EFERF 34,741 48,734
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Httzm G U&= (910) 134
Total comprehensive income iﬁuﬁ 5 A8 R 33,831 48,868
Profit allocated to NCI DEEIFFEREHNET 13,896 19,493
Dividend paid to NCI TR FIEER BRI E 18,815 10,985

For the year ended 31 December HBE12A31HILLEE
Cash flows from operating activities EEIBEMENIRESRE 98,633 115,929
Cash flows (used in)/from investing activities & &EIBER (FTA) /FRENIEERE (20,721) 7,370
Cash flows used in financing activities nEéfIE BFfANIRERE (47,328) (56,561)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXREHHINE NER

and cash equivalents HEBENFE 253 (16)
Net cash inflows BEMAFRE 30,837 66,722
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

32, JEEERRERS (&)
At 31 December

At 31 December

®12831H ®12831H

2023 2022

HK$000 &5t  HK$'000 F:ET

Current assets MENEE 443,500 437,440

Non-current assets IEREEE 155,249 135,744

Current liabilities ViEIB=NE (121,662) (89,376)

Non-current liabilities JEREEE (30,802) (26,136)

Net assets BEEZFE 446,285 457 672

Accumulated non-controlling interests R IEER S 178,514 183,068
33. RESERVES 33. (#fE

The Group wE

The Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

AERAFERBEFENREREZEHFY]

RizeEmEeE-

The Company b/ /N
Retained
earnings
BEREF
HK$'000 F &7
As 1 January 2022 12202241 81H 1,222,564
Profit for the year EEERF 3,709
Dividend recognised as distribution BEERADIRZKE (196,004)
As 31 December 2022 12022512 H31H 1,030,269
Profit for the year EFEERF 5,262
At 31 December 2023 $R2023%E12831H 1,035,531
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34. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

34. ERAB) ZMBRRRE

POSITION
At 31 December At 31 December
#12831H ®12831H
2023 2022
Notes K1t HK$'000 F#7T  HK$'000 FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE BB 761 1,778
Right-of-use assets EREEE 581 349
Investments in subsidiaries B ARKE i 7,650 7,650
8,992 9,777
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FETRVIE N 2 SR H A
receivables FEWFRIE 2,142 2,473
Amounts due from subsidiaries M S A Bl PR R R IE i 2,552,794 2,961,495
Bank balances and cash IRTTAERRRIRS 158,525 106,548
2,713,461 3,070,516
Current liabilities BER=N
Other payables and accruals HtEARIERESTER 9,051 6,699
Lease liabilities — current portion HESE -T2 227 231
Amounts due to subsidiaries KM B A BEIFRIE i 787,475 1,153,161
796,753 1,160,091
Net current assets MEEERE 1,916,708 1,910,425
Total assets less current liabilities BEEREBERTEBAR 1,925,700 1,920,202
Non-current liabilities ERHER
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEaB-IEREED 359 123
Net assets BEEFE 1,925,341 1,920,079
Capital and reserves BXRKREE
Share capital RN 31 889,810 889,810
Reserves HE 33 1,035,531 1,030,269
Total equity A 1,925,341 1,920,079

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2024 and are signed on its

behalf by:

LIU Xianfu
FNEE
Director

EF

7
E

YAU Hang Tat, Andrew

ERiEE
Director

EF

NEHFHERNREN2024FE3822HAES
B RIZOESER WA TNIEEAREE
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34. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (continued)

Notes:
() As at 31 December 2023, investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost

of approximately HK$7,650,000 (31 December 2022 HK$7,650,000) less
accumulated impairment loss of nil (31 December 2022: nil).

(i)  The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The directors of the Company do not expect repayments from
subsidiaries within next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

34. ERAB ZMBRRER (B)

ez -

() 72023F12B31H MBABKERNEANS
7,650,00078 7 (20224 12831H : 7,650,000
70) BB EHREEASE (20224128310 : ) 7
fHo

(i) MBABMRRE/RHERBRIEREL
W -REREEZRERE -FRAPDNEZHRMEL
BN g EREMEERRTZERRER

35. B ARKE
2023512831 H KR2022FE 12831 B AAT E
BB ATIRIEBINT :

Place/country of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BETR
AL Bk BRMKE/ RARMRERTRE
WEARLE BRI/ BR Bl BiRAmE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B# Rt
% %
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 95 Khnitting, dyeing, printing and sales
Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. (note b) of dyed fabrics
REDVAREGHEDRAERAR (Wap) e 307,500,000/ 7 S 2B IIEHIHERR
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics and yarns
RHEXERAT X 3,000,000t BHEREBYER
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of yarns, dyestuffs and
chemicals
ERBRAT B8 3,000,000%7c RO RBIEHES
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BENHERAS R 2AT RRE7
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (note g) The PRC United States Dollar (‘USD’) - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of dyed
110,000,000 fabrics and yarns
IRREGHERAT (W) e 110,000,000% ¢ (T%£7t)) HEFENHERTRED
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
EBIEBRERAH R 2ET RERR
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (nofe a) The PRC USD10,000,000 - 55.5  Production and sales of garments
ERABRKERAT (Hfita) HE 10,000,000% 7T RERBENK
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Socialist Sri Lanka Rupee (‘LKR") - 60  Khnitting, dyeing, printing and sales
Republic of Sri Lanka 985,000,000 of dyed fabrics
BEER A BRAT HERFRIHNE 985,000,000 HE RE DIENHERS

IHHNE HERFEL (B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

35. B ABHRE (&)

Place/country of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B&TR
B4 AT BRMRES/ FARMRERTRE/
WEARAHE BEm/EX L E N BRRAMILE TEEHK
Directly Indirectly
B# fitE
% %
Oceanstar Textiles International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEGAREERAT & 2AT RRES
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BEMBERAT oy 2ET RaZk
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited ~ Macao Macau Pataca 100,000 - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs and
chemicals
% (RFREFHERY) BRAT il 100,000:2P9 1% FOREBLHES
Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd. (roteg) ~ The PRC Renminbi (‘RMB’) - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
5,000,000
TEREGBERERAT (Wia) e AR (ARE)) BHES
5,000,0007%
FINENGHERERAE fote o) (Hita) The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
H A #35,000,00070 BhES
Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note g) The PRC USD800,000 - 555 Production and sales of garments
BRARRKRERAT (Wia) e 800,000% 7T RERHBENK
RRERSMERERAR fofe ) (Hizta) The PRC RMB90,000,000 - 100 Heating supply
o A %90,000,0007t BAfifE
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited (note g) The PRC USD149,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of dyed
(2022: USD109,900,000) fabrics and yarns
BHREHBERAR (Wita) e 149,000,000% 70 HE RENEERRREY

(20224 : 109,900,000%77)
Notes:

a. Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.
b.  Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of the Group for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and liabilities of the Group
at the end of the reporting period. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

ez -

a. RABEMSINEBEEEERINAT -
b. RABUSEEENSIFLRABINAT -

NEXRBNMBABDENRERTDEETRR
HEAERERFEXEAEEREUEBNLE
ERREHRNEEREREZRL DMK -
FRBERI R EMMBATDNFFEESI
HRREER IR
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A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
borrowings disclosed in note 30, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-going
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the share capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group may balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts and the redemption of
existing debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total liabilities divided
by total capital. Total liabilities is calculated as current liabilities and non-current
liabilities. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the Company. The
gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

36. EAE R EE

AEEEREAZEN AN EREAEERSE
BRUFESE FIREENEGEHFEERZ
BNREFE SFNEFDERALR - FEH
BUEES RS R F—2 o

AEENEARBEEES (EREEMNES0
PRIRBEREE) R ABHEE ABG#ED (81
BETRE KRB o

K’&ﬂ%%ﬂzﬁ%iﬂ—ﬂaﬁﬁﬁixﬁ BRI
& — CRRBEFEBERNAAARE
E%E%ﬁﬂl&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂé%%b@ REEE
B BIRER B~ BT R KB R LUKk 3%
THEFREOREEFUTFHHERZRREE AR
o

rEECHEAGRELER (RIS EAZERUE
BX) BEHER -BEQENDRABEREKLIF
MBEEFE - EXBELARBER ABILE
moMBEMRNEABRLERNT !

At 31 December At 31 December

©12831H R12H31H

2023 2022

HK$’000 T#x  HK$'000 F&7T

Total liabilities aEMa5mE 1,432,173 1,622,998
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z~AF#EA A B m 3,268,346 3,221,067
Gearing ratio BRBELE 43.8% 50.4%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

37. £t T A
(a) &I EER

At 31 December At 31 December

¥12831H R12H31H
2023 2022
HK$’000 T T HK$'000 F &
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost & IH At EMN S RIE &
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BiEREAERIRSER) 2,437,458 2,346,310
Financial liabilities Ed =Nl
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost Zi#SH At EMN SR E 978,285 1,097,031

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group include trade and bills receivables,
deposits, other receivables, restricted and short-term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders, amount due to an associate and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. To
mitigate the risk of foreign currency, the Group manages the foreign currency
receivables, payables, bank balances and bank borrowings by performing
regular review. The Group will continue to assess if the use of the foreign
currency hedging strategy as appropriate in order to mitigate the foreign
currency risk.

(b) FAFEEEERBRREER

FEENTIEZEERTACEEEREREIR
B e HEWRIE S R IRGI KSR F

R IRITHRBRIRE - EEREBRBAREH
f’ﬂﬁ’éﬁ RIE AﬂH’“HyEx%E’J NIR N R — R E
REWRIEBERBTEE - ZFEMITAZFE

EHA%QMT&EP#BZ%OE%#%H&IEE%@E’J
HIEMPJ%FE%HBM( 5 1R B e A R R )
S %HB‘””°TY§Y§‘J§%§§UT—JB¢
BZERBIRK - EEEEEREEZER
B > DUBE £ Fe B A0 75 MUt ER BV ' 7 o

A
0 EmmE
AEMETERANER S > WAL R
1 LR o

FEREEREEINERRE  UERAENA
R EREGE B8 T o A EEINE RS AEEE
B E AR ST U IR IMNE 2 FE UG IR IR RRIE
RITHEBRKRRTEE AEBREETERES
£ A48 2 SN IS SR SR BE LA R SMNIE BB o
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31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Group that are
considered significant by the management are as follows:

37. TR T A ()

(b) MBRAREEBEREE (@
AR ()

() EHEmE G

RBREHE EEERSBERNEER I
KIEMEREEREBEENEREEDT

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: EEERERAaR
Assets Liabilities
BE &
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
128318 128318 "12831H 128318
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$'000 FEmx  HK$000 F87r  HK$000 F#EmrT  HKS000 FE7
usb ET 818,019 1,029,322 158,000 207,408
RMB AR 583,677 462,224 404,816 395,774
Canadian Dollar (“CAD”) ho7e (Mhnrel) 515 7,532 = -
LKR Bt 61,361 2,794 - 2,363
HK$ BT 1,014 2,413 13,961 18,331
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR’) EEE (TENEED) 117 518 1,810 3,460
Sensitivity analysis BRAEDT

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation of USD, RMB, CAD, LKR
and HK$ when such currencies are different from the functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

The following table detail the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase and
decrease in the above foreign currencies against the functional currency of
the corresponding group entity, except for HK$ against USD since HK$ is
pegged to USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
On this basis, there will be an increase/(a decrease) in pre-tax profit for the
year (2022: a decrease/(an increase) in pre-tax loss) where foreign currencies
strengthen against the functional currencies of the corresponding group entity
by 5%, and vice versa. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2022.

FEBEFEIRET ARE M- EEERE
T (BERFEREERERERNIIEERT
[EIRF) BB ED R

TREFMEIAERN CMSNERERERE
B E A EHRESBNHRE > A ET
SRITHE  BILEB TR ETIRIN 6% BMAE
EEBEAERNIM2MIIMERRKREEANSHIE
KO EL BT A RBMRELL R
BREIFTELERELREHREBELINES)
BENEBIER  H5%MNIINEREHBEAM
Ho-mILEE BB RERERBERIIES
BHES% BEERAET K EEM (b
(2022%F : MAIEGERRL, (8I0) > RZIK
PR BRAD M TH 12022 RIE R B EETT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities:

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

37. &M T A (&

(b) MBEAMREEBFEREEK (&)
iR ()

() EEEE &

BREDH (B
ENBENRERER:

At 31 December At 31 December

128318 *12831H

2023 2022

HK$000 F#5;r  HK$'000 F&7T

Increase/ Decrease/

(decrease) (increase)

in pre-tax profit in pre-tax loss

MaiBFEM - MEiEERD

GRZL) (% hn)

RMB against HK$ ARERBT 8,943 3,323
CAD against HK$ R AT 26 377
LKR against HK$ EE BT 3,068 22
12,037 3,722

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk primarily in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR or SOFR arising from the Group’s variable-rate
bank borrowings. In view of the frequent changes in market interest rate, the
Group shall monitor the interest rate fluctuation closely and arrange appropriate
financial instruments to minimise the interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for non-derivative instruments (included variable-rate borrowings
only as the directors of the Company consider the exposure of cash flow
interest rate risk arising from variable-rate bank balances is not significant) at
31 December 2023 and 2022. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 (31 December 2022: 50) basis points increase or
decrease in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

(i)  FEREE

AEENRESREMNXARETERF BIRITE
FREEAR AERENBREHEFHIRTE
BRFHARUBBAFEENRAR A&
ENReERENXERTIEEPNAEERY
BIRTEEELEZEBRTAXFEXEERF
[RARRMENKKE - HINHHHRAEES K
EEERYEENERKE TLESENTR
TARRERRER-

BRE D

THSKESWIRBIETETR BEEEZE
EE AARBEERAIERTHERELE
REMEFER I AEAKN) FR20234F 522022
F12B3MHNFIERBEE - BRESMILER
REPREEEENEBREBERAFEREFE
WNEAREENBREMER BEEEEAE
P EB 2 3RFZ A B2 TH 3R AS0(E (2022812831
H 1 501@) ERpFARE RREEBHFIZESE
B EFITE
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31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk(continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax
profit for the year would decrease/increase by HK$998,000 (31 December
2022: increase/decrease in pre-tax loss by HK$1,524,000).

As at 31 December 2023, certain borrowings of the Group are linked to
interbank offered rates which may be subject to interest rate benchmark
reform. The Group has closely monitored the market and the output from the
various industry working groups managing the transition to new benchmark
interest rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default on their
contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group. As at 31
December 2023 and 2022, the maximum exposure to credit risk by the Group
without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements,
which will cause a financial loss due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amounts of the recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only made to customers with good
credit quality and repayment history. In addition, the Group regularly reviews
the recoverable amount of debt on both collective and individual basis to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In response to the global economic uncertainty, management has also been
performing more frequent reviews of credit limits for customers in regions and
industries that are severely impacted. During the year ended 31 December
2023, a reversal of a net impairment loss of HK$13,275,000 (31 December
2022: an impairment loss of HK$17,867,000) in respect of the trade and bills
receivables was recognised.

37. ER T A (&)

(b) MBEKRERBRKREER (&)
iR (%)

(i) F/EREEE (B

BREDH (@)

MIETERTEEMS  WHERLEH TH
SOEEE M EthE SR ~E  BlAE
ENREEZRARARRELD, /18 HN998,000
BT (2022128310 | MATEEE M, HD
1,524,000 7T) ©

R20283F 12318 AEEETHEEHREAER
MERERNEXEZRTEERER o AE
EERYBERMSERZITETHENIEERE
EMEERERZHR

FEmEE

FERBEAEENEFHEREGHNELREM
BHAREBPFEIEZ A - 71020234 %2022
F12B31 0 AEERERF L REBITEEM
ERPFRINESEERR Rt R EMRE
BERERmEMEERHE) HEBEK
GHMBR AR ERIETMNEENREE
o

AEBEERR AEENEEBERZRK—HE
ANEEBEETEERBE 8B MNREMERE
2R UHEARIEREE TSR CIEARE EH
EEHERRETETEERTEEEZRENT
HWER oI REB T THIRER R ER
HERHETEM O] R [CI 7058 - LU R RE A IR
EIFZEEH BB REERKX - BRE 2 KEH
FRETH EEENEHTIBREFENHME
RTENERETENBENEERBEED -
REE2023F12831HIEFEER  KEEER
EENEREWRTIERD R EELERLFEE
13,275,000 70 (2022128310 [ ABEBXK
17,867,000 7T) ©



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following

categories

Category
bRl

Performing

R

Doubtful

RER

Default

i
i

Write-off

EEEE(RE)ARSE

2023 % 163

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

FEERE (&%)

Description
i pan

For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit impaired (refer to
as Stage 1)

BHURBESBNTEIUREERBIREZENMERCEEAENEMEE BA
F—REE)

For financial assets where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

BYPRBUREERARBEEZENEEEERENERHEE BHE KR

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred
(refer to as Stage 3)

E-ENZEHTMEENGHARKRESREET N ENEHELR  BRAEE
BT REERE BRE=RE)

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

BEETNEFSAAREMBRE B AEEERIEIREE R

FEERTEERR

37. &M T A (@
(b) MBEEAREREERBE (B

SHRIEZRBLFE LU T 485

Basis for

recognising

ECL

MR THHRE E S IERIRIE

12-month ECL

128 R FRHIE ERBIE

Lifetime ECL — not credit
impaired

FRATEREERE—®
EERIE

Lifetime ECL — credit
impaired

FRAAHREEBHE-
EERE

Amount is written-off

WEE R IAE
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets, as well

as the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades:

37. M T A (@)
(b) MBERAREEREREE @)

FEmEE ()

THRREEERARNRFINTERTHREERN
EEERUNRAERMEERNRSESERR

Internal credit  12-month or Gross carrying Net carrying
2023 2023F Notes rating lifetime ECL amount Loss allowance amount
12{BAFERA
izt REEETHR REEEESR MEEE{E BEEE REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
FET FET FET
Trade recelvables EERNE 20 (Note) Lifetime ECL -
not credit impaired
(simplified approach) 720,569 (35,139) 685,430
(Mz) ERABHEERE-&
EERE (E1E7E)
Bllls receivables ZRRITE 20 Performing 12-month ECL 122,661 - 122,661
Rif 128 BHEEER
Deposits and other receivables BEREMEWE 21 Performing 12-month ECL 248,473 - 248,473
Rif 128 BHEEER
Restricted bank deposits SIRGIRITER 2 Performing 12-month ECL 1,897 - 1,897
Rif 128 BHEEER
Short-term bank deposits BERITER 28 Performing 12-month ECL 373,870 - 373,870
Rif 128 BHEEER
Bank balances and cash BOEBRRE 28 Performing 12-month ECL 1,005,127 - 1,005,127
Rif 128 BHEEER
2,472,597 (35,139) 2,437,458
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

37. &M T A (@
(b) MBEEAREREERBE (B

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

Credit risk (continued) EERE (@&
Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying Net carrying
2022 20206 Notes rating lifetime ECL amount  Loss allowance amount
12EANERRA
3 REEETR BREEERE BERE(E EiefE REZE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W TE7m T
Trade receivables BERIHE 20 (Note) Lifetime EGL - not credit
impaired (simplified
approach) 797,805 (62,109) 745,696
(h58) ERNBREESE-&
BERE B
Bills receivables ERENTE 20 Performing 12-month ECL 183,025 - 183,025
RiF 12EARHREESE
Deposits and other receivables RERAMERTIE 21 Performing 12-month ECL 18,453 - 18,453
RiF 12EARHREESE
Restricted bank deposits SREIRTER 2 Performing 12-month ECL 5,457 - 5,457
RiF 12EARHREESE
Short-term bank deposits RHRTER 23 Performing 12-month ECL 246,116 - 246,116
RiF 12EARHREESE
Bank balances and cash BOEHERS 23 Performing 12-month ECL 1,147,563 - 1,147,563
RiF 12EARREESE
2,398,419 (52,109) 2,346,310
Note: Vo

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL on these
items by using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience
based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current
conditions and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk
profile of these assets is presented based on their past due status in terms of the
provision matrix.

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past default
experience of the debtor, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtor and
the economic environment is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

MEEBWREMNS  AEEERRBEBHBTRE
EHBORBLERFRANBHEEBIEtEHIER
HoAERBZRTRARBEREEEXTEBNERE
iR BEEBABTERANBEEEHERE
EETT(EE WP B SR B URMRE AR R
RBER R AL ZFEENEERBHESIR
BREEHEERESBEEINREY]

AR AEENBEEEFRERTERBRIEZR
DENBEERNATHEER RIBE—FEOE
EETRZEFEREEBANBTEQLER  TIRE
BAREAEMER R R EHIRE T URENER
B e
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and ECLs for trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2023 and

37. ER T A (&)

FEmEE ()

(b) HBEAREEBFEREEK (&)

TRIBERN ARER72023F 2022412531
A EREERRFIEFRERNEERMR A

2022: TEHAE EBENER
Expected loss Gross carrying
2023 20235 rate amount Loss allowance
TERARSIE LE=R HEREE 5151 E
(%) HK$000 3%t HK$'000 F#ET
Not yet due KR E|ER 1.68% 702,326 11,801
Overdue 1-60 days #HA1-60K 1.93% 94,780 1,828
Overdue 61-365 days 7B HE61-365K 44.88% 44,659 20,045
Overdue >365 days A HR B E365K 100.00% 1,465 1,465
843,230 35,139
Expected loss Gross carrying
2022 20224 rate amount Loss allowance
FEHRES IR EE = MRmEE B IR
(%)  HK$000 FHET  HK$000 FET
Not yet due R EHA 2.47% 810,528 20,051
Overdue 1-60 days #HHA1-60K 2.69% 99,164 2,664
Overdue 61-365 days #1H61-365K% 37.22% 66,497 24,753
Overdue >365 days HIHRHBIB365K 100.00% 4,641 4,641
980,830 52,109

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 5 years.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions & Z#E o 5%
during the period over which the historical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected

lives of the receivables.

Ho

RV
P

B RERDIZBESFEFNERBRERD
LHEEDLREE URRERERESE
HEABEEER R BRI U R A ER Y
FE YRR IR B9 TR HA 4 HA A R

M2 B ENE
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

37. &M T A (@
(b) MBEEAREREERBE (B

Credit risk (continued) EERE (@&
Movements in the loss allowance are as follows: BIEEBE 2 EHINT
2023 2022
HK$000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FET
At 1 January M1B1H 52,109 36,832
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised EEEL e NP A EE=ES
on trade and bills receivables, net (#[Q) FERFE (13,275) 17,867
Amounts written off as uncollectible (&I By W [B] i s B9 <& 58 (3,324) (344)
Currency realignment MR EER (371) (2,246)
At 31 December ®128318 35,139 52,109

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade and bills receivables included in the
loss allowance with an aggregate balance of HK$35,139,000 (31 December
2022: HK$52,109,000) was impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The following changes in the gross carrying amounts of trade and bills
receivables mainly contributed to the decrease in the loss allowance:

— decrease in lifetime expected credit loss after assessing existing or
forecast change in business, financial or economic conditions which may
cause deterioration in the operating results of the debtors;

— decrease in the adjustment factors to expected loss rates as a
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic; and

- written-off of uncollectible trade and bills receivables.

Furthermore, the Company only provides financial guarantees to its subsidiaries
after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial conditions. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large
and unrelated.

1R2023F 128318 » st A RE B G LGRS
35,139,000 7T (20226F12831H : 52,109,000
B NAREEXRRBREBUGRIBERE &
SR EARZFERT A EARRR

EERERRERERREEZUATEHTE
AP RS IR B R D P ER

— KA EEREBAZKEERESEZ
EB - WHBAKERRZIRENERES
BRIV FRNTARESHSE ;

— FEEREHHREEMRD BB ERH
BEE, &

— AR ERE E R R RRIE

St ZRBERERS BREMBADNME
R E T M E M E A SR MM BHER - BLLbm
S ARAEERR/FTEBRNEERBREANRE
AR

EERRETERISHNEREREABEER
3 o
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31 DECEMBER 2023 20234128 31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

For other non-trade related receivables, the Group has assessed whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group
considers that there is no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based on 12-month
ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by reputable credit-
rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with the relevant loan covenants.

Other than equity, the Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2023, the available unutilised banking
facilities of the Group are approximately HK$2,316 million (31 December 2022:
HK$3,020 million).

37. M T A (@)
(b) MBEAREERRRBE (@
15 BB ()

PEMIFE ZAMBWRIENS ZEH BT
HEERRBPBEBURESEER M &
EERHEPBREBLR 2ERBEZEER
fair MEAEIE N MAEBERBE12EAEHRE
BEEsHRREREE -

KEENRBESEERRBER  RHEFHIH
BEEENEETREBATEREETRIVIE
170

BAERERNETEEEFRIBTHABES
ZEERBRERIN AEBTERHNEARER
SERR ARROBNZEHFS-

REE T
REEBRDESRBF  rEETERRMER

EEERARNKTNREREFRREIER
NENAERZEMRRABRERERIN
TE - EEESRERBTEENERBR L
RETHBAEMIEL -

BRI REMBBRTEEBEATERY
BE R R2023FE 128310 AEBER O H)
R{ERERRTEEEEL%52,316,000,0005 7T
(20224128318 : 3,020,000,0005 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
their non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms.
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest is floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted
average  Less than
effective 1 month or 3 months
2023 2023%F interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months to 1 year

mEFs  DifER
BRfIEZ  HEER 1EMER  EREIF
%  HKSU00  HKSD0O  HK$000
&7 &7 &7

ir e SRR (B)

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023512831 H

37. ﬁl‘ﬂIE (n\E)
(b) MBERBEEEERBEEK (@)
EEEEE (&)

TERFVREREEEGRRNEERIFTESR
BENHTENERBER ZRDREEET]
EERERTMNRFHRRBESRME GRS
RREAERN ZREBANEREERER
BN ERAFHFRZRERN KRR
TSR 2RSS -

Carrying
Total  amount at

undiscounted 31 December
1-2 years 2-5years over5years cash flows 2023
1420235

FERRE  12A31A

1525 2F5%F BiB5E TEEE HIREE
HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS$000
FAET FET FAET FAET FET

Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 £ R& &

Trade, bils and other payables &% ZEREMEMTE 437,443 195,089 103,185 - - - 735,717 735,717
Amounts due to non-controling ~ RIEERIREZIE
shareholders 37,027 - - - - - 37,027 37,027
Amount due to an associate Gl A= UNGIENE] 5,984 - - - - - 5,984 5,984
Bank borrowings RITEE
- variable rate - %8 6.06 14,464 30,148 73,469 93,425 - - 211,506 199,557
- fixed rate -EE 3.85 - - - - - - - -
494,918 225,237 176,654 93,425 - - 990,234 978,285

The maturity analysis of lease HE&E25#H
liabilties are as below: P :
Lease liabilities HEat 5.06 3,936 5,121 22,984

24,826 34,273 120,930 212,070 125,473

Total B 498,854 230,358 199,638

118,251 34,273 120930 1,202,304 1,108,758
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

37 ﬁnEIE (/\\E)
(b) MERBEEEEREEK (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) RENEZEE (18
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted 31 December
2022 20226 interestrate ondemand  1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years over5years  cash flows 2022
20026
mgrs  DMEAR FERRE 12A318
BEAZE  FEER  1ZEMER  EAEIE 1205 2254 BEsE  RERE NREE
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAET FET FAET FAET FET FAET FET FEr
Non-derivative financial liabilities JE£74 £ R & (&
Trade, bills and other payables &% ZEREMELH 415,077 139,544 66,706 = = = 621,327 621,327
Amounts due to non-controling ~ RIEEIRIRE A
shareholders 37,027 - - - - 37,021 37,027
Amount due to an associate R—EHEARRE 2,429 - - - - 2429 2,429
Bank borrowings RITEE
- variable rate - 38 3.36 6,593 15,304 65,646 134,680 114,699 - 336,922 304,701
- fixed rate -8 1.35 132,218 - - - - 132,218 131,547
508,344 154,848 132,352 134,680 114,699 - 1129923 1,097,031
The maturity analysis of lease HE&E25BE
liabiliies are as below: AW
Lease liabilties REEE 5.2 4,018 5,492 23912 30,953 52,954 98,422 215,751 143,002
Total B 597,362 160,340 156,264 165,633 167,653 98,422 1345674 1,240,033

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

(c) Fair value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include restricted bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders, amount due to an associate and bank borrowings.

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables,
trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders and amount due to an associate approximates their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

HFEBNEZEHARNNREPRIIEEZ
MG B EMFTTESMEBEFRTEA
ZEEPBE B PN E

(c) 2FEE
WU FEEHFEZZM TR

WIENAFEESEZ M T AAEZRAIR
TER-RERFRREER EXERRBERK
TRIE S EAh AR URRE A%EZTTJ‘EFEHTAIE “H
B R IE s RIFERIRERE S R —HBE R
BIMRERRITEE -

ZYNEREE Iiii B RRBIRITER RE M FF
RELEE - EXRREEUGRIE - H M & U
= A%)ﬂzm#%ﬁmﬂé HAh I RRIE RIE
ERRRRIAER KX —EEE A RIENIREIE
BHEAFEBEES

NEBIBAATEIEM AT ENSH T AN
EE > B E 2023 12531 H &2022F128
STHNAFBETESAER



38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
A RRNEE (@

31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

Bank borrowings

Amounts due to
non-controlling
shareholders

38. MEEBEENERZHIR

Lease liabilities

RIEVERG
RITEE B ERFRIE HeEa’
(note 30) (note 27)
(Hta£30) (Ht5227)
HK$’000 FE7T HK$'000 F 7T HK$'000 F &1
At 1 January 2022 ¥2022%F1851H8 327,342 62,834 154,971
Changes from cash flows: WEREEH .
New bank borrowings raised MEEZIRITESR 1,193,538 - -
Repayment of bank borrowings EIBIRITHEE (1,084,881) - -
Interest paid BENFHIE (11,964) - -
Repayment of amounts due to BEXIFERKENIE
non-controlling shareholders - (25,807) -
Repayment of principal portion of BEREEEZAEED
the lease liabilities - - (27,356)
Repayment of interest portion of BEHEaEZMEHD
the lease liabilities - - (7,939)
Total changes from financing MERSRESEERE
cash flow: 96,693 (25,807) (35,295)
Other changes: H &) .
Interest expenses (note 7) MERX (W1a27) 13,469 - 7,939
Increase in lease liabilities from FRFTUIMEEMER
entering into new leases HESEIEMN
during the year - - 27,614
Currency realignment SN IR E R (1,256) - (12,227)
Total other changes Hih& &5t 12,213 - 23,326
At 31 December 2022 H42022512H31H 436,248 37,027 143,002
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38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Bank borrowings

Amounts due to
non-controlling
shareholders

38. MEEBEENERZEHR (8

Lease liabilities

RIELERE
RITEE BE RIS HEAR
(note 30) (note 27)
(H15%30) Bt5#27)
HK$'000 FE7x  HK$000 FEr  HK$'000 FET
At 31 December 2022 1£2022512831H 436,248 37,027 143,002
Changes from cash flows: REneEs) .
New bank borrowings raised MMEEZIRITEE 252,796 = -
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRTEE (489,962) - -
Interest paid BEAHE (20,034) - -
Repayment of amounts due to BB R IR R ANIE
non-controlling shareholders > - -
Repayment of principal portion of BEMESGRZAEED
the lease liabilities - - (26,888)
Repayment of interest portion of BERESEZNED
the lease liabilities - - (7,000)
Total changes from financing MERSREEBNIELEE .
cash flow: (257,200) - (33,888)
Other changes: HhEs) .
Interest expenses (note 7) MEREZ W5E7) 19,258 - 7,000
Increase in lease liabilities from entering RIFE NI L A EMER 2
into new leases during the year HEaEEm - - 2,742
Effect of modification Bl 2 - - 8,228
Currency realignment SN IR ERR 1,251 - (1,611)
Total other changes HithE g5t 20,509 - 16,359
At 31 December 2023 /*¥2023%F12H31H 199,557 37,027 125,473
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31 DECEMBER 2023 2023%12H31H

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. EARKIE
At 31 December At 31 December
128318 128318
2023 2022
HK$’000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FE7T
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BB X MR RRERBAZBEEL
provided in the consolidated financial ERGEFRRABIFEHEREZ
statements in respect of acquisition BEARME
of property, plant and equipment 86,721 86,607

40. OPERATING LEASES
As lessor

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group during the
year was approximately HK$15,076,000 (2022: HK$15,823,000). The related
outgoings amounted to HK$1,374,000 (2022: HK$1,524,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants, in
respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease receipts.

40. SEMHE

EAHMAAN

REER AEBEMKREYEFMRENE
S AARELN 15,076,000 7T (20224

15,823,000/ 7T) B REZ H 41,374,000 7T
(20224F : 1,524,000 7T) ©

REBESHE AEEEBERUEEYECSITN
BRREREEERANMT o

At 31 December At 31 December

®12831H R12831H

2023 2022

HK$'000 F#5;r  HK$'000 FET

Within one year 1ER 8,209 12,836
In the second to fifth year inclusive FOEEFESFN (BEMFBEEN) 14,100 19,198
Over five years 5FEM 9,432 12,667
31,741 44,701
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41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the eligible employees
of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees. The retirement
benefits cost charged to the profit or loss represents the contributions payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate in state-
sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes operated by
the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to make the required
contributions.

During both years, there was no significant forfeited contribution, which arose
upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes, available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, amounting to HK$58,151,000
(2022: HK$79,884,000) have been charged to profit or loss for the year and
included in employee costs as set out in note 9(c).

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
(a) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out in
the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 28.

(b) Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related
parties:

41. RIREF 1S
AEBRRBR RN EERPIEMBRIL—IEE
BmtETE (TRERIREHE) RIBEREIMER
BE T BRAIRII—IERGIME B8 (8
BESE)) FTRECERNAEREEBES
EMESENEENBINAEREELRE
SEABE - EIREAMFRAVRKBRALATF
EERBFBMELLRABNEBANESHR

FEBHEMBEME N ESRIESEZFEM
& BT & B SR IR @ F 5t B S E R R ET
Beo-rEBRAREBEEHFMNETEDLEHRT
ZESAERENEZ AERNZFHEN
ME—BERRREFH MR-

RmEEE  FHEESRHRKEF S E MR
BYMHRR AL B K 0 W RRIE I B AR R0 R R 2R 4
EBIEM R

EREREEEERD AR ERKRER T EIH R
£ %8 458,151,00078 75 ( 20224 : 79,884,0007
70) » B st AT FFE 2 B E R4S/ o

42. RN R RAE AN LRI E

(a) PBEEEATHOEEER

7 8 [ SRR M A RO K BB AR BRI
EEFIRR R R 528 o

(b) BBALZSE
SEEFERERHATETTIRS

Related party Nature of
Name of related party relationship transaction 2023 2022
RAE AT 2TE BARAE A THIRAR 3z 31 HK$000 &t  HK$'000 FE7T
REMBEKBERAR Associate Sewage expenses 19,407 15,138
i —J/N= TEKERIEE

None of the related party transactions disclosed above constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

FHREEZ BB A LR Z WA ER L HRAIS
1AABPRRE 2 FER Z W ERER 5 ©
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES 42. BBt &BAE A THIEE (&)

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (c) BAEALRS
Name of connected party Nature of transactions 2023 2022
REANLT B XA HK$’000 F#E7x  HK$'000 &1
The FM Group (nhote i) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts 267,389 272,086
FM&EE (752) EE5mE A~ A SR Ee
The AH Group (note i) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts 153,153 212,565
AHEE (F73Li) EEmk A~ A R AR EC 4
Chinatex Group (hote i) Purchase of yarns, cotton and other materials 10,013 18,461
for the manufacture of fabric, garments and
cooking oil and foodstuffs
rRAREE R (0 3ii) REEM A ~ tTE R 4 E ARV R A4 piAk
MUEiEHE @
Huafu Group (note iv) Purchase of cotton yarn, cotton blended yarn, - -
top dyed melange yarn and other yarn products
EZEME (fativ) PRI~ 1R B4 A R H A ZE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEHBFT
COFCO Finance (nhote v) Maximum daily balance of deposits placed by 155,000 55,000
the Group

g (aEv) FEEGFRNRSEAFRER
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes:

U

(i)

The Company and Mr. Feroz Omar (“Mr. Omar”) entered into a renewed FM Master
Sales Agreesment (the “2024 FM Master Sales Agreement”) regarding the sales
of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts by the Group to the FM Group on 16
December 2021. Mr. Omar is a director and substantial shareholder of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The FM Group comprises companies which Mr. Omar
and his associates and relatives individually or together exercise or control the
exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at general meetings or control the
composition of a majority of the board of directors. Accordingly, members of the FM
Group are associates of Mr. Omar and hence connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2024 FM Master
Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2024 FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2024 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December
2024 under the 2024 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$450,000,000,
HK$450,000,000 and HK$450,000,000 respectively as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2021.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$450,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2021.

The Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani (“Mr. Hirdaramani”)
entered into a renewed AH Master Sales Agreement (the “2024 AH Master Sales
Agreement”) regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts by
the Group to the AH Group on 16 December 2021. Mr. Hirdaramani is a director
and substantial shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
AH Group comprises companies which Mr. Hirdaramani and his associates and
relatives individually or together exercise or control the exercise of more than 50%
of the voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of
the board of directors. Accordingly, members of the AH Group are associates of
Mr. Hirdaramani and hence connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2024 AH Master Sales Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The 2024 AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2024 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December
2024 under the 2024 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$450,000,000,
HK$450,000,000 and HK$450,000,000 respectively as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2021.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$450,000,000 (2022: HK$450,000,000) for the year ended 31 December 2023
as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2021.

42. Rk R AEALTHNRE (&)

(c)

MEALRS (@

Bt -

)

(i)

AAT BFeroz Omarfc & (TOmardt &) 12021
F12H 16 AEBRAFMER L ERE K
A R RS ST LS EEFMAR S E 1R
(M 2024 FFMABEH E 5% 1) cOmart £ B AR A
BRI ENBARNZEETHTERE R
BLEHRA - RAEXAB ZEBEAL -FMEER
THREATEEHOMarEE R EME A T RE
BOEZEATNRERNE L@ EE M
TSI ST EEE U ER RS 14 5%
LZNFEEFGAREOMEN AT FIL > FME
B ERATAOMareE 2 BB AL WME
BETRA FMEBAE AR ZHAEAL R
¥ FHIRBFE14AE > 2024 FFMAR S & 5518
TRETZRABREAQAB ZIFERERS -

20245EFMAR S & 17358 ~ EE 2R FR20224E1 B 1 HEE
E2024F 12831 (BEEEMRX) °

HUMAAT HEEA2021F12816B 22 S
Fra > 2024 FFMAR I EHZE N B 220245
123 1HIE=Z B BREENEELRESED
Bl %450,000,0007 75 ~ 450,000,000 7T K
450,000,000 7T ©

ZEMERZ I EBBAATHEA2021512
F16AZ ASFREEH E2023FE12831HIEEE
Z [ £ E450,000,0007 7T

K/ABE)EANIl Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramanisc &
(THirdaramanifc 4 1) 122021512816 L&
SEEBAHEBE R E BRI B4 ~ M4 K R B
SN RS EBAHEIEE R E (T 2024 FEAHARIHE
#3%&1) o Hirdaramanife & B A A B — B IE2 B
BREIZEESRFTERR RELMHRI S
KRB ZHABAL AHEBZHEAGBIER
Hirdaramanifc £ R BB A T KB B 2%
NEREA G @R I F) AT R IEHITT
FEBFHU LKA AEFZERBDEE
FRBOREN AT BHIb AHEBZHEA
Bl AHirdaramanifc £ Z BB A L+ tSRmiRE L™
R AHEBEB ARSI ZEEA LT RIE L™
B FE14AE » 2024 FAHAR S E R BB T E
TZRGERRAB ZIFERERS

2024 FAHABIE E ik 2 FEAFR2022F1 B 1HE
20245128310 1E (BIEEREMXK) ©

HUAAT HEEA2021F12816B 22 &
FEl» 2024 AHBIN E B N E 20245
12ATALE=ZEBMBREENEELRESESD
Bl 2450,000,0007 75 ~ 450,000,000 7T &
450,000,0003 7T ©

ZEMEBERZ U EBAARAT BEEA2021F
128168 2 A EFr & E £20235FE12831H 1
FEZHEE LIR450,000,000# 70 (20224 :
450,000,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

The Company and Chinatex Corporation Limited (“Chinatex”) entered into a
renewed Material Purchase Framework Agreement (the “2024 Material Purchase
Framework Agreement”) in relation to the purchase of yarn, cotton, other materials
for the manufacture of fabric, garments, whereas cooking oil and foodstuffs for the
provision of meals to the employees by the Group from the Chinatex Group (i.e.
Chinatex and its subsidiaries) on 16 December 2021. The Company and Chinatex
entered into a supplemental Agreement (the “2024 Meaterial Purchase Framework
Supplemental Agreement”) in relation to the revision of the existing annual cap on
15 May 2023. Chinatex is a controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, members
of the Chinatex Group are associates of Chinatex and hence connected persons
of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the
2024 Material Purchase Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2024 Material Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December 2024
under the 2024 Material Purchase Framework Supplemental Agreement are
HK$63,000,000, HK$363,000,000 and HK$363,000,000 respectively as set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2023.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$363,000,000 and HK$63,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
2022 as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2023 and 16
December 2021 respectively.

ir e SRR (B)
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42. R EAEANTHNRE (8

(c) MEALRS (@)
izt - (@

)

ERBETEPHERBRAT (Mhinl) i©
2021F12R16HMAERATHER BIF 4
REMBRAT) HEBILL BT~ HtEERE
HEENERME - R URAR AR EERER
HERZIEHB R IKEBMERBERD
& (M 2024 ERBERWZE)) - A RBESp
ZEEA2023¢5H15E|§M SIIRBFE LRI
Ttk (T 2024 F Y ERBIERMBRIE) o F
M rBZERRE  EIt R LRI
PR ERE ZRIEAL BN RiE LR
A - i ERZHERRRPHZBMBEANL
EmmE s zBEAL - REBELHRAIE4A
%QO%E%%T?%%?FE RpBEETHETZR
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(c)

(continued)

Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(V)

The Company and Huafu Holding Co., Ltd. (‘Huafu Holding”) and its subsidiaries
(*Huafu Group”) entered into a purchase framework agreement (the “2022
Purchase Framework Agreement”) and a renewed purchase framework agreement
(the “2025 Purchase Framework Agreement”) on 29 November 2019 and
13 December 2022 respectively. Pursuant to the 2022 Purchase Framework
Agreement and the 2025 Purchase Framework Agreement, Huafu Holding agreed
to, or procures its subsidiaries to, supply cotton yarn, cotton blended yarn, top
dyed melange yarn and other yarn products that may be needed for the Group. The
cotton yarn, cotton blended yarn, top dyed melange yarn and other yarn products
that may be needed to be purchased by the Group will be used for the manufacture
of textile products of the Group.

As Hong Kong Tin Shing Trading Limited (“Tin Shing”), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly owned subsidiary of Huafu Holding,
completed the acquisition of 16.33% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company on 1 November 2019, Tin Shing has become a substantial Shareholder
and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Huafu Holding,
as the holding company of Tin Shing, is an associate of Tin Shing and, therefore, is
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement
and the 2025 Purchase Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive) and 2025 Purchase
Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ended 31 December
2022 under the 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$600,000,000,
HK$600,000,000 and HK$600,000,000 respectively as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2019.

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ending 31 December
2025 under the 2025 Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$40,000,000,
HK$40,000,000 and HK$40,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$40,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2022.
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HizE o ()
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES 42. BBt &BAE A THIEE (&)
(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued) (c) FAEALRS @)
Notes: (continued) Bzt - (&)

(v)  The Company and COFCO Finance Company Limited (‘COFCO Finance”) entered  (v) ZAFF2022F7H14H B g #EERESEA

into a finance services agreement (the “Financial Services Agreement”) on 14 July 5 (T igBf#5)) sT i RS =Z (S RRFS
2022. The Company and COFCO Finance entered into a Supplemental Agreement %) o RABIR2023F5815H Bl i B 75 5k
(the “Financial Services Supplemental Agreement”) in relation to the revision of ETIREFEE LRI IEHE (SRR EE
the existing annual cap on 15 May 2023. Pursuant to the Financial Services TihE)  BESRERSERS NEHEEER
Agreement, COFCO Finance agreed to provide deposit services, comprehensive REBRUEEIRE 2EEFREEREMS
loan services and other financial services to the Group. As COFCO Finance is MR AR E AR REI ATH
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate parent, COFCO EEENRIZEE2EWBAE  FItbiEE EHiR
Corporation, and hence COFCO Finance is a connected person of the Company Al PIgM A RATINREEA Lo

under the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the Financial Services Agreement constitute SRREHEE TRETZXSEREATR
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the FHIREBE4AZIE N2 I BRIER S

Listing Rules.

The Financial Services Agreement is for a term commencing from 14 July 2022 to SRREHZ 2 EHHB2022F7H14HERE
13 July 2025 (both days inclusive). 2025 7B 138 (BIEEEMXK) ©

The maximum daily balance of deposits (including accrued interests) placed by MUNA AT BHEEA2023F58158 2 ASFTE
the Group pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement is RMB155 million or its RERRFHEERENERRAN > ~XEEIRE
equivalent on any day throughout the term of the Financial Services Supplemental TRRFEEENN RS S HENGEE (BFEE
Agreement and the maximum fees payable by the Group for the other financial sTHB) AAREE15 5008 ol EE B A EM
services pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement is HK$500,000 or its SHRFM=S > AEBRESHRSHEEN
equivalent on an annual basis as set out in the announcement of the Company WS &R AS8E500,0008 T HEE

dated 15 May 2023.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the maximum daily ZEMET ST EBBEANT HHEA20234F5
balance of deposits of RMB155 million (2022: RMB55 million) or its equivalent on B15HZ AES&E&E £2023F12831H IEF
any day throughout the year ended 31 December 2023 and the maximum services EHRENESEHEREHRARE15,5008 7T
fees payable on annual basis of HK$500,000 or equivalent as set out in the (2022%F : AR¥5,5008 T) IEEERERRS
announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2023. FE & RS 500,0008 e HEE

(d) Compensation of key management personnel (d) TEEEASHEHM

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during HKEEZEELEMTIBEEAENFMAOT
the year was as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 F %57 HK$'000 T #7T

Fees wWE 1,050 1,050
Short-term benefits SRR A 7,241 6,822
Post-employment benefits BREEN 189 191
Discretionary bonuses Sk =3 - -

8,480 8,063
The remunerations of directors and key management are decided by the ZEZERIFIEEEBEAEHMEHEBEEZRXBAN
Board and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Tz & EXEE -ERRIBLOLEETISATE

Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market FMEE > THIFMNEEEER
statistics.
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(e) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by enterprises directly or indirectly owned, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (collectively the “state-owned entities”). The
Company’s directors consider that state-owned entities are independent third
parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are concerned.

During the year, the Group had transactions with other state-owned entities
including, but not limited to, the sales of finished goods, purchases of raw
materials/utilities and transactions with state-owned banks.

The sales of finished goods and purchase of raw materials/utilities to these
state-owned entities are individually not significant. In addition, the Group’s
bank balances (including short-term bank deposits and restricted bank
deposits) and bank borrowings of HK$837,931,000 and HK$21,284,000 (31
December 2022: HK$696,574,000 and HK$121,138,000) respectively are
placed/arranged with state-owned banks as at 31 December 2023.

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group reduced the production
volume of the fabric mill operated by Jiangyin Fuhui and streamlined the
production team of Jiangyin Fuhui. Taking these circumstances into account
and to mitigate further losses, the Group has decided to further reduce the
fabric production capacity by solely maintaining fabric knitting production
capacity at the fabric mill operated by Jiangyin Fuhui. Details are refer to
announcement on 5 February 2024.

42. Rk R AEALTHNRE (&)

() BEHMPEEERRETNRS
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837,931,000 75 5&221,284,0007 75 ( 2022412
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
ARERE

Listing . Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 20 April 1988

Stock Code . 420
Board Lot . 2,000 shares
Shares Issued . 1,225,026,960

(as at 31 December 2023)

Financial Calendar

Financial year end 31 December 2023
2028 interim results announced 25 August 2023
2023 annual results announced 22 March 2024
Register of members closed for 18 — 21 June 2024

determining the right to attend and

vote at Annual General Meeting
Annual General Meeting 21 June 2024
2024 interim results to be announced Late August 2024

Shareholder Services

For enquiries about share transfer and registration,
change of correspondence address, etc.,
please contact the Company’s share registrar:
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F.

148 Electric Road, North Point
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2153 1688

Fax: +852 3020 5058

Investor Relations

Ms. Charmaine CHENG
Company Secretary and
Deputy General Manager
Corporate Governance Department of the Group
Block A, 6/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung
New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 3478 6267
Email: pr@fshl.com
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New Territories, Hong Kong
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